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CORPORATE PROFILE
NEIR> AV

China Foods Limited (“China Foods” or the “Company” and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), a subsidiary of COFCO Corporation (“COFCQO”) and the
only focused beverage platform of COFCO, is listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 506).

The Company mainly manufactures, distributes, markets and sells the Coca-Cola
series products at nineteen provincial-level administrative regions in the PRC through
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“COFCO Coca-Cola”), a 65%-owned joint-venture
with The Coca-Cola Company. COFCO Coca-Cola offers twenty-four brands of products
in ten major types of beverages which include sparkling drink, juice, water, milk
drink, energy drink, tea, coffee, functional nutrition drink, sports drink and plant-
based protein drink.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREE

REVENUE
E 3T ON

(RMB million)(AREBEEIT)

6%

19,784 20,968

ADJUSTED EBITDA
KA EEBITDA

(RMB million)(ARE B EIT)

2021
1,998

15.2% 2022
A

2,302

EARNINGS PER SHARE
BREF
(RMB cents/share)( AR¥ 5,/ &%)

2021
20.46

15.3% 2022
A

23.59
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TOTAL ASSETS

(RMB million)(AR¥EBEIT)

2021 -0.7%
15,168 w
Current
k)
® Non-Current
ERE

LIABILITY TO ASSET RATIO
EERMBLER

‘3gppt‘ )

NET ASSETS PER SHARE (Owners of the Parents)
BRFBFEE s a55 0

(RMB/share)( AR /FA%)

7.1% 2022
oA 1.97

2021
44.7%

2021
1.84




MAJOR EVENTS IN 2022
2022F KRER

Full commitment for the beverage item availability and on-site services in Beijing Winter Olympics
2HEFLRLEFTRESHRERRSRE
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In 2022, China successfully hosted the 24th edition of the Olympic Winter Games. To ensure the smooth progress
of the Games and to provide better service for the sport competitions, referees, workforce and spectators, COFCO
Coca-Cola’s 53 employees, coming from 17 bottling plants, joined the Coca-Cola Winter Olympics volunteer team,
which was allocated in three different competition areas among Beijing and Zhangjiakou and served 12 competition
venues, 24 non-competition venues, three athletes’ villages and three media centers. In addition, the Company
provided 1,280 refrigerators and 192 Costa coffee machines, so as to ensure beverage supply during the
competitions.
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2022 20224 A % 72

Promoting digital transformation in the Company comprehensively

EHEHARANHFER

h =

In 2022, COFCO Coca-Cola began its digital transformation comprehensively. We have established a digital
governance committee and office, for making reasonable assessment of long-term objectives and short-term needs,
thus integrating digital transformation strategy with our business needs and enhancement. Through the transformation
from the old “scattered point” to the strategic “system-based” of information system building, we have broadened
our digital engagement from exploring digital applications to establishing a digital new norm. The construction of
data platform, data governance system and digital team capabilities was already in progress, which is aiming to
lay a solid foundation for realizing the blueprint for digitization and big-data application.
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2022 20224 X % i

“Rubik’s Cube” project on market refinement launched
TS ERNESER EXKE

Cortels | @ 22

36

In 2022, the “Rubik’s Cube” (BEJ7) project of COFCO Coca-Cola was launched among 20 bottling plants. The
“Rubik’s Cube” project combined the source of internal and external data, for the purpose of subdividing the
market scientifically, seeking reasonable benchmarking targets, providing quantitative opportunity analysis, assisting
the team in respect of decision-making with science base and providing accurate implementation. The project
facilitated COFCO Coca-Cola in pushing forward its digital transformation and high-quality development.
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2022 20224 X % &7

The establishment of Yuexiang Club, which is wholly owned by China Foods and focused on providing online
services for consumers

TERREEREEARERNRY BERSRHEER LR
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On 13 June 2022, COFCO Yuexiang Club (Hainan) Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (Figli=E (&m) &FEREE
FRAA]) (“Yuexiang Club”) was established. Yuexiang Club is 100% controlled by China Foods. The purpose of
which is to adapt the changes in consumer trends, improve corporate competitiveness and build-up the channel
to reach the consumers directly. Through the construction of operation system for consumers, we are capable to
analyze consumer demand, realize accurate marketing strategies for targeted customers, as well as enhance online
sales. In the future, Yuexiang Club will facilitate the Company in strengthening our communication with customers,
promoting high-quality development with more accurate products and marketing strategies.
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The 20th bottling plant, COFCO Coca-Cola Guizhou Plant, was completed in construction and commenced its
production and operation

FoTREME-FRBUOTRENERERTELRALEEE

The 20th bottling plant of COFCO Coca-Cola, Guizhou Plant, started its operation on 29 April 2022, and commenced
its production on 10 July 2022. With the commencement of production of the Guizhou Plant, the supply chain
layout of COFCO Coca-Cola in the southwestern part of China was further improved, resulting in a linkage effect
between Sichuan, Chongging and Guizhou provinces and cities, and greatly improving the efficiency of the supply
chain. At the same time, it will accurately connect with the consumption demand of the region, so as to achieve
more efficient production on demand, and continue to provide consumers in the southwest with a wide range of
quality and diversified beverage options.
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2022 2022 X % ir

COFCO Coca-Cola has awarded the Coca-Cola Global Best Commercial Leadership Awards for the fifth
consecutive year, and the 2021 Coca-Cola Greater China and Mongolia “Candler Cup” champion! Got the Coca-
Cola Global “Candler Cup” final again!

REAOALEESIFESA N LAGL2RBHEE AR WEH20211FAOAREAFERTLE [
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COFCO Coca-Cola retained its champion in the 2022 Coca-Cola Greater China and Mongolia “Candler Cup”
competition on the back of its strong performance, reaching the final of the Coca-Cola Global “Candler Cup”.
2022 A AR AP ERTHE [REH IMFEED  FRAOAJLBEEFSHEERBEBEET  BAAE
AIARTEER TR R | MREE -

In the Coca-Cola Global Best Commercial Leadership Contest, with our advanced technology, good consumer
experience and the notable results in practical application of the COFCO Coca-Cola “Thermoelectric Cooler and
Warmer” (RBEE)RHE) project, we have awarded the Coca-Cola Global Best Commercial Leadership Awards for
the fifth consecutive year.
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Completion of the acquisition of the non-sparkling production lines and promoting the development of our
heverage husiness

TERFEAKEERNUELE  EBHZRERBRBRE

In 2022, through almost one year of planning, communication and negotiation, COFCO Coca-Cola completed the
acquisition of non-sparkling production lines among its operation area. The project filled up the deficiency in the
production of non-sparkling beverages (i.e. fruit juice, fruit milk, tea and coffee) by COFCO Coca-Cola, and marked
a new stage of development for COFCO Coca-Cola. It is of great significance our enterprise to further optimize
its product structure, respond to market demand and promote its strategy on industrial capacity.
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STATEMENT FROM CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

2022:TREND-BUCKING GROWTH

The year of 2022 has been truly extraordinary. Although affected
by unexpected factors including the impacts of the pandemic and
complex international developments, China’s economy withstood
the pressure and achieved continuous growth, with its GDP growing
faster than other major international economies, remaining the
world’s second largest economy in terms of the scale. COFCO also
overcame the combined adverse effects of various tests, interwoven
risks and multiple challenges, with new highs recorded in its results
of operation, fulfilling its mission of “seeking food for the country”.

2022 also represents an extremely special year for China Foods.
The pandemic caused slowdown in the domestic economy and
consumption, and the cost of raw materials remained at a high
level due to fundamental factors, which brought unprecedented
difficulties and challenges to the business development of China
Foods. However, with the joint efforts of 20,000 employees of
China Foods, and inspired by the enterprise spirit of “Act”, “Fight”
and “Win”, the Company overcame difficulties, and achieved trend-
bucking growth with an increase of 6% in revenue, faster than
the industry average level; and an increase of 13% in total profit,
representing continuous improvement in profitability.

In 2022, China Foods has further implemented the business
approach of “improving quality, enhancing efficiency, innovation,
system, openness and green”. In terms of improving quality, we
have continued to promote the sales of products with high price
and high gross profit, making the share of Costa coffee rank the
second in the industry. We have also further advanced the
optimisation of channel structure, strengthened the layout of new
retail channels; and expanded supply chain layouts. The merger
and acquisition of non-sparkling drink production platforms has
greatly improved capacity and quality of the supply chain. In terms
of enhancing efficiency, we have further deepened the regional
integration of the supply chain, expanded centralised procurement,
and strengthened the accuracy and efficiency of resource
investment. In terms of innovation, we have promoted digital
transformation in all respects, built digital marketing, digital supply
chain and digital governance capabilities based on the blueprint
plan, and continued to achieve results in data empowerment. In
terms of system, we optimise the organisational structure and
salary incentive mechanism in the contributor-oriented principle
to provide guarantee for the rapid, healthy and sustainable
development of the business. In terms of openness, we remain
committed to platform building, featuring, on the upstream side,
sharing information, inventory and spare parts with suppliers to
jointly reduce costs and increase efficiency, and on the downstream
side, applying digital marketing tools to open up B2B2C links in
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a way that jointly expands the market share with customers. In
terms of green, with efforts to fully practice environmental
protection, we have been committed to energy conservation and
emission reduction and the achievement of the carbon peaking
and carbon neutrality goals at national level. 19 bottling plants
have been awarded the title of energy and water saving enterprises
in the industry.

In 2022, great efforts have also been made to promote the
innovation business by China Foods. The smart retail business of
COFCO Zhishang Technology Ltd. (FFREZE MBI BRAR])
(“COFCO Zhishang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, achieved an
increase of 76% in turnover, ranking the second place in the
industry in terms of the number of equipment. Another newly
established wholly-owned subsidiary, COFCO Yuexiang Club
(Hainan) Digital Technology Ltd. (FFiERZEE (8F) HFERHE
ARRARF) (“COFCO Yuexiang Club”), has fully taken over the
online consumer marketing work, and achieved an increase of
33% in turnover.

In 2022, China Foods has overcome difficulties, achieved a
satisfactory performance, improved management and toughened
the team, laying a more solid foundation for future development.

2023: LEVERAGING OPPORTUNITIES TO ACCELERATE
DEVELOPMENT IN FULL STRENGTH

In 2023, China will put the recovery and expansion of consumption
first in the economic development, and increase the income of
rural and urban residents through more channels. This will drive
the rapid development of the FMCG industry. With what experienced
in 2022, China Foods is confident that it will continue to maintain
its leading development in this round of consumption recovery.

As for the Coca-Cola bottling business, we will further improve
quality and efficiency, and make use of digital tools, innovative
management models and market-oriented incentive mechanisms
to expand the range and optimise the existing, thus ensuring that
the business scale and profitability will reach a new high.

We will continue to devote great energy to promoting the innovation
business. The global consumer marketing platform of COFCO
Yuexiang Club has started to build, with an aim to provide support
and guarantee for C-end precision marketing. COFCO Zhishang*
will further seize presences and optimise categories, striving to
take the first place in the industry.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Regarding the organisation team, we have a three-year plan for
talent development in place. Through the building of three talent
teams equipped with strategic management, compound
management and specialised skills, and continuous improvement
of the salary incentive mechanism, we will establish and continue
to empower and activate key talent pools for the Company, to
ensure its sustainable development.

With regard to social responsibility, we have released the ESG
White Paper of China Foods, to fully implement the concept of
green and sustainable development, and put forward challenging
goals with a responsible attitude in aspects of carbon reduction,
energy conservation and environmental protection, quality
assurance and community responsibility, making contributions of
a state-owned enterprise in building a beautiful homeland.

The performance in 2022 proves that the Company’s strategic
direction is correct, and demonstrates the attitude and ability of
the team. Facing the full recovery of the external consumption
environment in 2023, the team will, with full enthusiasm and
confidence, leverage the momentum to realise opportunities,
expand its advantages in the new round of competition, and
accelerate development.

On behalf of the Board and the management team, | thank our
shareholders for their trust and confidence in China Foods. We
shall not cease in our efforts to return their trust with better results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WA

CURRENT STATUS

China Foods exclusive franchise to manufacture, market and
distribute products under the Coca-Cola series encompasses 19
provincial-level administrative regions, covering approximately 50%
of mainland Chinas population. The Company provides consumers
with 10 major types of beverages namely sparkling drinks, juices,
water, milk drinks, energy drinks, tea, coffee, functional nutrition
drinks, sports drinks and plant-based protein drinks under 24
brands.

The Company has approximately 10,000 salespersons to serve
over 2.6 million customers. Our marketing network reaches 100%
of the cities, 100% of the counties and more than 60% of the
towns within our operating regions, with the controllable business,
being customer orders served directly by our sales representatives,
accounting for nearly 90% of the overall business.

Apart from operating the Coca-Cola series products business, the
Company has been developing its smart retail business and new
retail business in recent years, both of which have achieved
remarkable results during the year. In the future, we will continue
to explore the development potential of both above businesses
and proactively develop sales channels with the vision of becoming
the largest full-service beverage supplier and digital retail platform
in the PRC.
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

In 2022, trends such as healthy living, channel sinking and digital
transformation will continue to impose a profound impact on the
domestic beverage industry. China Foods will implement its total
beverage strategy by focusing on the satisfaction of the ever-growing
expectation of the people for a better life. Under the direction of
high-quality development, it will be firmly committed in the business
approach of improving quality, enhancing efficiency, innovation,
system, openness and green, and take a better business portfolio,
strong network coverage, flexible and efficient new business
development and leading digital construction as key dimensions,
to drive high-quality growth in performance. During the year, we
will remain focused on “Market-Oriented, Globalisation, Risk
Containment and Business Optimisation”, renew our commitment
in the enterprise spirit “Work! Work hard! Win!”, and promote the
realisation of the development goals of “High Quality and
Sustainability”. The details of operation concepts are set out below:

o Improving quality: Place emphasis on resource investment,
guide the differentiated development of various business
segments, continue to make efforts to upgrade its product
mix, and focus on promoting the layout of the entire channel
in order to achieve optimisation of business portfolio.

° Enhancing efficiency: Improve the level of diversification and
differentiation of marketing execution management, and
promote more precise and efficient marketing execution
strategies in segmentation; promote supply chain integration
and digitalisation of production and logistics, focus on
efficiency improvement, and gradually improve the
standardization, centralization and flexibility of the supply
chain system with standardized process construction.
Establish a central planning centre for central co-ordination;
set up a flexible and efficient business unit to stimulate new
business vitality.

° Innovation: Seize the trend of digitalization in the industry
and build up our capabilities in digital marketing, digital
supply chain and digital governance; carry out digital
transformation of the whole chain, develop digital marketing
projects, and set up big data center, gain deep insight into
consumer needs and consumption scenarios through big
data technology to establish a client-oriented Business-end
operation platform “Coke GO” and a consumer-oriented
Consumer-end operation platform “Joy Club”. At the same
time, develop digital factory projects, so as to provide
intelligent support for production and operation decision-
making.

EEL L

2022 - REAEE -BEETN BlFbE
AEBAFETEARTEEEFEY
2 hEEMBEREREMEHRHEBLY
ISR LU ARBR AR RAELT
EERERZL - UREEBERAAM F
B [IRE 830 2l BB R FR 4%
BINEERES UENEEMNEKAS -
BAMPHRESZ BFES MM EBEEN
LEENBTEZANF THEENS
EEER KRS FEEU B B
bRk S22 | ATIEXE HEE
Bl !9t B! N EBe HEHER
[BEE AIRFEINEEEZE ARB%RE
o/ N

. EE - BRERRIRA 5| BEEBR
RERZRLCER FEENERS
BAR ENED2EREBHRR UE
BEBHEEHEL -

o X REMBHTEENZITE:
ERKF - HEBENBESEAT
BHITREEAIMEVEE  HEH R
EA. LEVMREF  BEMEE
T UBE N RERR BFRD
HEERGNIZE(CRE N - RARE
MEMEEN - RIPAAEPLE
BRRFEEHH  ZUBARANE
AR BB ERIE S

o  BIFMEEEHT(BE  ER
FLEH BT EEEL T
REZHHEEN AEERYF
fbEE A FREMT(LEHIELR B
REFEF L - BBREBIEEMNEAR
RHBETFRREESS BEYEN
BEFEmMBIREL F A A 4G60] &
AREEENCHELFTAA hit
gl RABERZFTLIHEER A%
EEERARIREEE( -

FEERAERLTE Fik 2022

10



10

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & #2 JZ i #7

o System: In order to actively respond to market challenges,
the Company’s system will be upgraded in all aspects, such
as development mode, system mechanisms, concepts
capabilities, and cultural soft power, and continuously
optimize the organizational structure to adapt the changes
in the external operating environment and the internal needs
of the Company’s long-term development; establish a
contribution-based talent incentive and training mechanism
as well as focus on youthfulness and increase the proportion
of young cadres selected to provide sufficient manpower
resources for strategic development.

o Openness: Adapt to the new era of consumer demand with
model innovation and enhance the overall competitiveness
of the value chain; explore and design innovative business
models for key strategic projects and build an ecosystem
layout.

o Green: Adopt a sustainable development model to enhance
safety, quality and environmental protection and achieve
low-carbon green development.

INDUSTRY ENVIRONMENT

In 2022, China’s domestic economy remained challenging under
the impact of a complex and volatile international environment
and adverse conditions such as frequent outbreaks of domestic
pandemic. Fortunately, under the national measures for the
optimisation of prevention and control in due time, China recorded
a year-on-year growth of 3.0% in GDP, which broke through the
RMB120 trillion, which marked for the first time and comfortably
ranked second in the world. Affected by the epidemic, the pressure
on consumption recovery was obvious, but the domestic
consumption expenditure still accounted for more than half of the
total GDP of the whole year, which played an important supporting
role for the economic development. Such domestic large circulation
is expected to remain the major driving force for the domestic
economic growth in the future. The actual growth rate of consumer
spending for the whole year dropped slightly year-on-year. While
the per capita consumption expenditure of nationwide residents,
after deducting price factors, dropped slightly 0.2% year-on-year,
and the overall sales of the non-alcohol ready-to-drink industry
remained stable.
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REVIEW OF RESULTS

Below is a summary comparison of 2022 and 2021 annual results:

E 3G

2022F FFEH2021 FRAMLELBENT -

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021 Change

BZE2022F HZE2021F
12A31H1E 12H31H81E BEE

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR¥EHER) (ARERST)
Revenue WA 20,967.8 19,784.4 +6.0%
Sales volume HE -2.0%
Gross profit margin EFIE +0.1
percentage points
B

In 2022, although the sales volume of China Foods recorded a
year-on-year decrease due to the impact of the frequent outbreak
of domestic pandemic, its revenue grew by 6% year-on-year,
benefited from overall price growth of products and continuous
optimisation of product and packaging structure. During the year,
affected by factors such as easing monetary policies in various
countries and strong domestic demand of the PRC, the prices of
bulk commodities in international market increased to a certain
extent. The gross profit margin of the Company was slightly lower
than that of the corresponding period last year. However, since
the management actively implemented a series of optimisation
and integration measures (such as central planning center, supply
integration and production and logistics digitization projects) to
improve efficiency, which effectively reduced the ratio of selling
and administrative expenses, the operating margin was improved.
At the same time, the Company continued to pay attention to the
management of capital expenditure and operating cash flow, in
order to control risks.

2022 XENRBEZHAETE B
RmiHERLAM K EXENERER
Btk EmkeREBSERLT K
AREDNERFERER - FR X EB TR
EBRRMNBAFTRBRYEREZE - B
AREERERHHE IR ARFEF
KRR AEREFKE  BEEBRBE
BEE—RINBLLEAEBITRAESD
O HEES MEEYMREFEEFRBE IR
R EREREEERERERAE L2
MBRA PTERE - B R - KRR ER
AEAMTHREEERSTROEIE 12
Rz -
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Business development hy beverage category was as follows:
Sparkling drinks

The growth in the category of sparkling drinks slowed down during
the year due to the impact of the pandemic. During the year, “Coca-
Cola Peach Coke” joined as new member of the Company’s traditional
sparkling drinks. The product adopts a new peach-flavored formula
with a unique and refreshing taste, and has been launched in a
romantic pink-packaging. Several new products have been added
to the sugar-free series during the year: “Sprite Lemon Mint Flavor,
Sugar Free” — a brand new Sprite sugar-free formula infused with
real mint essence, plus the original “Sprite Lemon Flavor, Sugar
Free” and “Sprite Fiber+”. Such Sprite sugar-free series provided
consumers with more choices, and their annual sales were satisfactory.
In the future, we will continue to invest in the Sprite sugar-free
products by introducing more packages to fit various consumer
scenarios, in addition to various promotional activities, so as to
enhance consumers’ drinking experience; “Coca-Cola Sugar-Free
Vanilla Coke” — which preserves the taste of vanilla Coca-Cola, but
features sugar-free and fat-free; and “Fanta Baobab & Tamarind
Soda” — a perfect fusion of baobab fruit and tamarind, which creates
a novel, unique fruity taste with an eye-catching color of Barbie
pink. Fanta sugar-free flavored products were launched on a pilot
basis in the second half of the year, and the sugar-free soda product
portfolio was further improved. Also, the “AH!HA!" sparkling water
that was marketed last year launched two new flavors in this year,
being Strawberry White Chocolate and Waxberry White Wine, to satisfy
young consumers who prefer to taste a fresh delicacy.

During first half of the year, the limited product “Starlight”, which
was originated from the concept of the space, and another limited
product “Byte”, which was originated from the concept of metaverse,
were released on the Coca-Cola Global Innovation Platform, “Coca-
Cola Creations” in China. In the second half of the year, we have
also launched a limited sugar-free soft drink named “Soul Blast”
jointly with popular comics brand, which effectively increased online
exposure by becoming a influencer-marketing product. In order to
create a richer immersive experience, Coca-Cola launched AR
(Augmented Reality) games in the year. As long as consumers scan
the code on the can of Coca Cola “Byte”, they can unlock the
Metaverse AR game experience. This strengthened the interaction
between products and consumers.

During the year, the market share of our sparkling drinks maintained

a high market share of more than 50% in our operating regions,
continuously surpassing our major competitors’ products.
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Juices M

The domestic juice industry maintained its recovery momentum BANRAITHLEE EFEE&ITE [ BRE]
of last year. The revenue from “Minute Maid Pulpy Orange Juice” WWAFBEIRT N L RN EKEIRE - &5
recorded a significant increase, and the sales of new products AN E R RBUA R L EUS & 7 #1E
achieved satisfactory results, driving the Company’s revenue from g o

the juices segment to achieve double-digit growth.

During the year, Minute Maid sparkling juice series were launched. FRETEFTRVAEARY ERTSEST
The products feature sugar-free and fat-free, and have real fruit B BEERT N6 $TEERFTOK IR
juice infused with sparkling to create a refreshing new taste. Three HEH BE ER-BOKRE WA
flavors of peach, grape and apple are available, added by zinc, HOBEBERY MABHESEEA B
niacin and other ingredients to supplement the daily nutrition g EEEeE-

intake. They are delicious sweet and sour, healthy and free of

burden.

During the year, the market share of our juice products in terms FR - ARNRKELRIEANES RIEEERED
of sales revenue in the Company’s operating regions was basically FBEEANE T BERNITEYM -
unchanged, maintaining our leading position in the industry.
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Water

Affected by the domestic pandemic, the revenue from water
products declined. During the year, we newly launched Chun Yue
Pineapple-flavored Water, which is infused with real fruit juice on
the basis of zero sugar, zero fat and zero energy. The fruit juice
and water are of best ratio, enabling consumers to drink every
sip with a light fruity aroma. During the year, a new apple-flavored
of “Chun Yue Soda Water” has also been launched, continuing
to enrich the taste of its products to meet the diverse needs of
consumers. Amid the normalcy under the pandemic, during the
year, we will continue to develop home consumption scenarios,
seize the opportunities of home consumption, and meet the
business opportunities for consumers water consumption at home
through e-commerce and community partners, thus promoting the
growth of large-package revenue. At the same time, cooperation
between water stations and community partners will be
strengthened, so as to meet consumers’ daily water consumption
needs at home.

In the future, we will maintain our focus on promoting the
mainstream water brand “Chun Yue” products, as well as promoting
domestic water among the customers continuously. At the same
time, we will explore the strategy of high-end aquatic products,
and strive to enhance the profitability of aquatic products and
drive the overall profit. As the Company’s water segment remains
in the painful updating and upgrading phase, the market share
during the year decreased slightly.

-’;ﬁl!% 2 "H; /)
K= N
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Ready-to-drink coffee

During the year, the Company initially launched its “COSTA” oat
coffee, which is rich in dietary fiber, low sugar and zero lactose.
Its target consumers are middle-income and high-income white-
collar workers in first-and second-tier cities. Through marketing
activities such as free drinks in key channels, store promotions
and 020 activities, the Company’s ready-to-drink coffee achieved
double-digit growth, higher than the industry average, with its
market share continuing to rise. COSTA remained the second
largest brand of ready-to-drink coffee in key markets, achieving
remarkable results.

Ready-to-drink teas

During the year, the Company launched the “COSTA” light milk
tea beverage for the first time. The product features low-sugar
and low-fat, especially suitable for the new generation of urban
consumers who are concerned about health, with a total of three
flavors of white peach oolong, grape jasmine and lychee black
tea available on the market. It has achieved outstanding results
in the year. Together with the “Fuze” sugar-free lemon tea, which
was launched last year and achieved a satisfactory increase, the
revenue from the tea segment recorded a remarkable increase
during the year.
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Business development by development channels was as
follows:

The Company keeps expanding its customer base and adjusting
customer structure, and has achieved significant increase in the
number of customers it serves. During the year, we strengthened
our partner development efforts, expanded our point-of-sale
coverage and increased our point-of-sale penetration, and
continued to increase the proportion of controllable revenue, further
strengthening our core strengths.

Modern channel: Vigorously develop multi-packaging, through the
listing of new high-margin products, to gradually improve the gross
profit margin and profitability of the product category; seize the
sales opportunities of “community supermarkets” and develop sales
potential.

Traditional channel: Achieve satisfactory growth in revenue through
channel optimisation and the promotion of the “Coke GO” platform,
which improves the efficiency of business visits and enhances
point-of-sale services.

New retail channel: complete the D2C (Direct to Consumer) store
layout of the mainstream channel to reach the end consumers
directly; to complete the distribution network layout, warehouse-
saving distribution with the capability of third-party logistics to the
factory to pick up and deliver goods, the revenue has been
significantly improved.

Eating and drinking channel: The channel maintained a rapid

growth throughout the year, as sales volume increased and the
number of new active and serving customers increased significantly.
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Outlook

Achievements were made in the PRC government’s efficient overall
planning for epidemic prevention, as well as economic and social
development in 2022. Based on the analysis of recent data, it is
likely that the economic has reached the bottom of the abyss, as
pandemic surge has passed the peak in China. As the epidemic
situation continues to evolve, policy effectiveness releases, market
confidence is gradually returning. Coupled with the recovery of
normal production and living conditions, as well as the expansion
of offline consumption scenes, consumption is expected to be
gradually normalized. These factors lay a solid foundation for a
sustainable economic recovery in 2023. It is expected that the
economic growth in 2023 will surpass that of 2022.

It is expected that in 2023, the demand for crude oil will turn to
be strong, international oil prices will rebound. Hence, polyethylene
terephthalate (PET) prices will continue to be at high levels as
affected by the rising oil prices. Domestic supply of white sugar
is short of demand, and the import cost is increased due to the
impact of the increase in international sugar prices. While the
price of the can is still closely related to the price of international
aluminum, which both continues to be at high levels of prices.
Due to the fundamental influence of domestic corn supply and
demand, price of fructose is easier to rise than fall. In 2023, it
is expected that the prices of major raw materials will remain high,
and pressures will be further imposed on the gross profit of the
Company. The management will continue to actively promote key
strategies such as product structure upgrade, business portfolio
optimisation, and supply chain integration to reduce the pressure
on profits from high raw material costs. In early 2023, the Company,
together with The Coca-Cola Company and Swire Pacific Limited,
completed the acquisition of the non-sparkling beverage production
business of the tripartite joint venture in our franchise area. The
transaction is expected to help improve the synergy between
production and sales, establish a more efficient supply chain
network, and effectively reduce the production and management
costs of the Company’s non-sparkling beverages, thus further
improving the overall profit margin. The management is confident
of full-year revenue and profit growth and our results can maintain
a stable growth in 2023.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

In 2022, although the sales volume of China Foods registered a
slight decline due to the impact of the pandemic, the revenue
achieved a year-on-year growth of 6.0%, driven by increased
product prices and continuous optimisation of product and
packaging structures.
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GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The gross profit margin of the Company was generally level with
that of the previous year.

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET

Other income and other gains-net recorded a year-on-year decrease
of 27.5%, which was mainly due to the decline in interest income
and the increase in external donations during the year.

DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES RATIO/
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES RATIO

During the year, the Company effectively reduced the distribution
and selling expenses ratio and the administrative expenses ratio
through the improvement in efficiency.

FINANCE COSTS

There was no significant change in finance costs.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense amounted to RMB404 million, representing
an increase of 16.0%, which was in line with the profit growth.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Company'’s treasury function operates as a centralised service
for:

o Reallocating financial resources within the Group;
o Procuring cost-efficient funding for the Group;
o Managing financial risks, including interest rate and foreign

exchange rate risks; and
o Targeting yield enhancement opportunities.

The treasury function regularly and closely monitors its overall
cash and debt positions, reviews its funding costs and maturity
profiles to facilitate timely refinancing. Cash pooling is applied in
Mainland China for the more efficient utilisation of cash. Also, the
treasury function formulated financial risk management procedures,
which are subject to periodic review by the senior management
of the Company.
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In the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, the Group’s unpledged cash and cash equivalents
totaled approximately RMB1,037 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB1,592 million). Net current liabilities were
approximately RMB1,297 million (31 December 2021: RMB1,619
million).

Having considered the (i) forecast cash flow from operating
activities of continuing operation, (ii) existing financial resources
and gearing level of the Group, and (iii) existing banking facilities
available to the Group, the directors believe that the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to fund its debt payments, day-
to-day operations, contracted capital expenditures as at 31
December 2022.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022, the total number
of issued shares of the Company remained unchanged at
2,797,223,396. In the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, the Group had no interest-bearing bank
borrowings (31 December 2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no other borrowings
(31 December 2021: Nil). As of 31 December 2022, net assets
attributable to owners of the parent were approximately RMB5,520
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB5,157 million),
and net cash position of the Group (unpledged cash and cash
equivalents less interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) was
approximately RMB1,037 million and the gearing ratio was nil (31
December 2021: approximately RMB1,592 million and the gearing
ratio (ratio of borrowing position of the Group to equity attributable
to owners of the parent) of nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities nor assets pledged (other than certain bills payable) (31
December 2021: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE MANAGEMENT

Majority of monetary assets, monetary liabilities and transactions
of the Group were principally denominated in Renminbi and
recorded in the books of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
(functional currency as Renminbi).
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Although the Group has not used any financial instruments for
hedging purposes, the treasury function of the Group actively and
closely monitors foreign exchange rate exposure. The foreign
exchange risk exposure at the operational level is not significant.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 19,243 staff in
Mainland China and Hong Kong (31 December 2021: 19,189).
Employees are paid according to their positions, performance,
experience and prevailing market practices, and are provided with
management and professional training.

Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement benefits,
either under a Mandatory Provident Fund exempted ORSO scheme
or under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well as life
insurance and medical insurance. Employees in Mainland China
are provided with pension insurance, medical insurance, work
injury insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance
and housing fund contributions in compliance with the requirements
of the laws of China.

The Group firmly believe that talent is the most valuable asset
and the basis for its sustainable development of a corporation.
The Group has established comprehensive policies and systems
for employee recruitment, labour contracts, remuneration and
benefits, attendance management, training and development,
performance appraisal, disciplinary policies, protection of employee
interests, etc, in order to protect the basic interests of employees,
eliminate discrimination by nationality, age and gender, etc, and
prohibit the employment of child labour and any form of forced
labour.

The Group also adheres to the talent development concept of
“contributor-oriented”, and provides employees with a solid career
development platform and a comprehensive training system. It
has formulated relevant management systems and regulations such
as the Training and Management System, and provides various
training on management skills and professional skills for employees
at all levels through the internet and in the form of video
conferences, live broadcasts and online college to improve personal
knowledge and skills, which secures joint development of the Group
as well as its employees.

The Company and its subsidiaries have no share option scheme.
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CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FRRITES

MR. QING LUUN By Ei&4

MR. QING LIJUN

Mr. Qing, 53, was appointed the chairman of the board of the Company in September 2022 and has been as
an executive director and the managing director of the Company since January 2020. Mr. Qing is currently a
director and the chief executive officer of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a 65%-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qing joined COFCO Corporation and/or its
subsidiaries in July 1993 and has held various positions including the director of strategy department of COFCO
Corporation during the period from July 2016 to March 2019. Mr. Qing was the deputy general manager of COFCO
Coca-Cola Beverages Limited during the period from December 2007 to June 2016. Mr. Qing has concurrently
served as the strategy planning director of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited during the period April 2004 to
March 2014. During the period from April 2004 to June 2016, Mr. Qing has also concurrently served various
positions including the director of the public relations department and the director of the finance department of
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, the general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Shandong) Limited
and the general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Beijing) Limited. Mr. Qing has served as the deputy
general manager of Jilin COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited during the period from June 2002 to March 2004
and a sales operation manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited during April 2000 to May 2002.

Mr. Qing graduated from Renmin University of China and Guanghua School of Business Management of Peking
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and a Master’s degree in Business Administration, respectively.
Mr. Qing has extensive experience in beverage production, marketing, strategy planning, finance, public relations
and general management.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITES

MR. SHEN XINWEN t¥rcsksE

MR. SHEN XINWEN

Mr. Shen, 51, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in September 2022. Mr. Shen is currently
a deputy general manager and the deputy chief financial officer of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a
65%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Before joining
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, Mr. Shen served as the executive deputy general manager of COFCO
Technology & Industry Co., Ltd. (formerly known as COFCO Engineering & Technology Co., Ltd.), a company listed
in Shenzhen, from August 2020 to September 2022. From 1995 to August 2020, he has served various positions
in certain subsidiaries of COFCO Corporation, including the head of COFCO International (Beijing) Co., Ltd., the
senior financial manager of CTA Makro Commercial Co., Ltd., the general manager of finance department of
COFCO Commercial Property Investment Co., Ltd., the deputy general manager of finance department of COFCO
Land Limited, the deputy general manager of COFCO Land Limited, Beijing Branch, the general manager of Xidan
Joy City Co., Ltd, the general manager of Grandjoy Holdings Group Co., Ltd., (Northwestern Region), and the
general manager of Xi'an Qinhantang International Plaza Management Limited. Currently, Mr. Shen was a director
of COFCO Technology & Industry Co., Ltd., a company listed in Shenzhen until October 2022.

Mr. Shen holds a Bachelor’s degree in economics and a Master’s degree in EMBA from the University of International
Business and Economics. Mr. Shen is an intermediate accountant, and has over 20 years of experience in finance
and accounting. He also has extensive experience in corporate administration.

M

LS - B1BR - M2022F9 AR ERARRRMITES < IL R LR /AR R A% IAEHNE AR FEA O A
LYEHNERAREAEEREEFEVMHEERARAETHERRES - IMAFIER AR LR BR QA - LT
A R202058 A E2022F9 A IHARY LW P BRI TROARAR(TAIEFP R IEMZBROABR AR ) E
ERBREKEHE - N1995F E2020F8 A M R BREEERATNE THEBARLRECZEARY Eh e
EREEEREULDERAREE TEMETEREXARAASAMBLE TREXFKREBERA A E AL
B hREMARATMGHAALE PEEMERARIERAREALIE AERNMAR A REEE KN
HEREEROARAR (AR BB RALTREERRESEIEARQRBLIR LAESERY LT
TRMIERNERARNEEEE20225108 -

MEERAHMNEOEE G RBEBEEE+ 20 REMBATE L 26 o LA E R RGN RUBREFHTEAR
THFEOER MEARTRER T EERE LR -

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE % ¥ ] & R & F2 /5 5 7P

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FHITES

MR. CHEN ZHIGANG PFR=ZEMI&4E

MR. CHEN ZHIGANG

Mr. Chen, 59, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in October 2020. Mr. Chen is currently
a director of each of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited and COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) Investment
Limited, both of which are 65%-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and the director of the quality and safety
management department of COFCO Corporation and concurrently a director of each of Shenzhen Qianhai COFCO
Development Co., Ltd. and COFCO & Technology Co., Ltd. (both subsidiaries of COFCO Corporation). Mr. Chen
joined COFCO Corporation in 2008 and has held various positions, including the director of the safety production
department, the deputy director of the audit and legal risk management department, an audit specialist, the
deputy director of the quality and safety management department and the general manager of safety and environment
protection division of the quality and safety management department. Prior to joining COFCO Corporation, Mr.
Chen has served various positions, including the deputy director of the department of technical and equipment
of National Workplace Emergency Management Center, the director of the first division of the department of work
safety coordination of The State Administration of Work Safety, the director assistant of the safety science and
technology research center and the director of the department of technology development of The State Administration
of Work Safety, and the deputy director of the department of advisory of technology development of the safety
science and technology research center under The State Economic and Trade Commission of the People’s Republic
of China.

Mr. Chen graduated from Anhui Normal University with a major in chemistry, and then graduated from Beijing
Institute of Technology with a master of science degree in engineering, specializing in energetic materials. Mr.
Chen has extensive experience in quality and safety management.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FHITES

MR. CHEN GANG PRI 54

MR. CHEN GANG

Mr. Chen, 51, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in August 2021. Mr. Chen is currently
a director of each of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited and COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) Investment
Limited, both of which are 65%-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chen joined COFCO Corporation in 1994
and is currently the director of the Cooperation and Development Department and the general manager of the
Supply Assurance Department of COFCO Corporation. Mr. Chen has been the executive deputy general manager
of COFCO Yellowsea Grain and Oil Industries (Shandong) Co., Ltd., and the general manager of COFCO Northsea
Grain and Oil Industries (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chen has also held various management positions of the Group
during the period from 2008 to 2016, including a deputy general manager, an assistant general manager, the
chief legal counsel, the general manager of each of the confectionery business unit, kitchen food business unit
and procurement department of the Company. From October 2016 to April 2019, he served as the deputy general
manager of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, once a company listed in Hong Kong, and a director of the
preparatory office of the COFCO Yingkou Lingang Grain, Oil and Food Industrial Park.

Mr. Chen has extensive experience in the research and practices of operating management of national policies,
industrial development, international trade, production and processing, brand marketing and technological innovation
in the field of grain, oil and food. Mr. Chen also serves as the Vice President of the China National Vegetable Oil
Association, the Vice President of the Qil Chapter of the Chinese Cereals and QOils Association, and a member of
the National Cereals and Oils Standardisation Technical Committee.

Mr. Chen graduated from Peking University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in law, and from Tsinghua University
with a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration. Mr. Chen also held a PhD degree in Economics
from Institute of Population and Labour Economics, Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
BYFHITES
MR. LI HUNG KWAN, ALFRED ZE3885% 4%

MR. LI HUNG KWAN, ALFRED

Mr. Li, 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in November 2008. Mr. Li
was a member of each of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel of the Securities and Futures Commission and the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and an expert member of the Finance Committee
of Kowloon Canton Railway Corporation and an executive director and the chief finance officer of Hang Lung
Group Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong.

Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in economics and sociology from The University of Hong Kong,
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland. Mr. Li has more than 40 years of experience in finance and accounting.
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MR. MOK WAI BUN, BEN E#3RE4E

Mr. Mok, 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in August 2017. Mr. Mok
is currently an independent non-executive director of Yashili International Holdings Ltd., a company listed in Hong
Kong. Mr. Mok served as a senior consultant for COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a 65%-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in 2012 and also served as the general manager of Beijing Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. from
2002 to 2011. From 1993 to 2001, Mr. Mok was the general manager of Hangzhou BC Foods Company Limited
and Nanjing BC Foods Company Limited and also served as the general manager of Swire Beverages Limited
responsible for overseeing bottling plants of Swire Beverages Limited in China.

Mr. Mok was awarded a Bachelor’s degree of economics from McGill University, Canada in 1975. Mr. Mok has
extensive experience in beverage production, marketing and general management.
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MS. LEUNG KA LAI, ADA, ses RREBLZ T (BEMesH)

Ms. Leung, age 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in June 2022. Ms.
Leung is currently a member of Standing Commission on Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of Service of the
HKSAR Government. She joined the HKSAR Government in September 1983 and has served in the civil service
for 35 years until her retirement in 2019. Ms. Leung joined the Intellectual Property Department (IPD) of the
HKSAR Government as a senior solicitor in 1995 and was the director of Intellectual Property and Registrar of
Trade Marks, Patents and Designs since May 2014 until her retirement in March 2019. Prior to joining IPD, Ms.
Leung was a senior crown counsel with the then Attorney General’s Chambers (now Department of Justice). She
had worked with both the Litigation Unit and the Advisory Unit in the Civil Division. Ms. Leung was also a part-
time Lecturer, Faculty of Law, of University of Hong Kong during the period from October 2020 to August 2021.

Ms. Leung was appointed as an Official Justice of Peace by the HKSAR Government since 2012 and until February
2020. She was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star (SBS) by the HKSAR Government in 2018.

Ms. Leung has over 20 years professional experience in IP law practice as well as financial and staff management,
management of outsourcing contracts as well as planning and implementing promotion and public education
programmes in the public sector. She also has extensive experience in formulation of policy, law and practice in
different areas of intellectual property as well as building and maintaining network with local and international
stakeholders, including the legal profession, intellectual property practitioners, trade and business organisations,
overseas and Mainland counterparts and inter-governmental organisations. She has also represented Hong Kong,
China in different international conferences and meetings in formulating IP policies at the international level. She
also has experience in civil advisory, civil litigation and criminal prosecution with the then Attorney General's
Chambers (now Department of Justice).

Ms. Leung holds a Bachelor Degree in Science from the University of Hong Kong. She then obtained a Government
Legal Training Scholarship and studied law in the University of Buckingham in England. She was called to the
Bar in England and in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SNEEE
MR. HU JIANZHI HEE &4

MR. HU JIANZHI

Mr. Hu, 51, joined COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a 65%-owned subsidiary of the Company, in May 2011
and is currently the deputy general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hu joined COFCO Corporation in 1993 and has held various positions in the
group of COFCO Corporation, including deputy general manager of the risk management division of the strategic
department and assistant general manager of the oil and fats department of COFCO Corporation, and the general
manager of Top Glory (London) Ltd.. Mr. Hu has extensive experience in operations and management. Mr. Hu
graduated from the University of International Business and Economics with a Bachelor's degree in Economics.

HEERE

BRSEAE - B15% - B2011F5 A MARRBR B65%BEH M B AR FIERI AR KHER AR WATIER ORI K
HERAFRBKERARFRETHBARESR - AEERIINBFMATRER  BEETREEERAREERN
Z(BBRAL - B35 7 1S 5 B B Al e ' T D B AR A T N PR RR AR AR IR B IE - LA K Top Glory (London) Ltd. (BE#I(fm
FOERRBMAKIE - HELAFREZHELEREELR HELEXNTINMSBEE I RERKEHEE T8 -

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE % ¥ ] & R & F2 /5 5 7P

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BREEE
MR. ZHAN ZAIZHONG RHEFEE

MR. ZHAN ZAIZHONG

Mr. Zhan, 51, joined the Group in 2004 and is currently a deputy general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited, a 65%-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
(Beijing) Limited. Mr. Zhan has held various positions in the group of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited,
including the general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Xinjiang) Limited and the general manager of
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Inner Mongolia) Limited. Mr. Zhan has extensive experience in operations and
management. Mr. Zhan graduated from Wuhan Institute of Technology with a Bachelor’'s degree in Resources
Engineering.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SNEEE
MS. LI REN Z#H &+

MS. LI REN

Ms. Li, 47, joined the Group in 2002 and is currently a deputy general manager as well as the director of the
office of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a 65%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Li has held various positions in the group of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited, including the general manager of the data center and the general manager of the customer services
center of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited. Ms. Li has extensive experience in operations and management.
Ms. Li graduated from Jilin University with a Master’s degree in Business Administration.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERERBRS

NOTES ON REPORT

This report is the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2022 of China Foods Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the
Report”), which has been approved by the Board of the Company
and incorporated in the annual report of the Company as a chapter.

Reporting Period

The Report covers a period from January 1, 2022 to December
31, 2022. However, certain statements may be beyond the aforesaid
period to ensure the integrity of the Report.

Scope of the Report

The scope of the Report is consistent with the annual report for
financial year 2022, covering China Foods Limited, together with
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a 65%-owned subsidiary
and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as “China Foods”, “the
Company”, or “We”/“us”).

Principle for Preparation

The Report is prepared pursuant to the Guidelines of the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council for Central Enterprises to Fulfill Social Responsibility,
the Guidelines of Shanghai Stock Exchange for the Preparation of
Social Responsibility Reports of Listed Companies, and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and with reference to the GRI
Standards for Sustainability Reporting, ISO 26000: Guidance on
Social Responsibility (2010) and CASS Guidelines on Corporate
Social Responsibility Reporting for Chinese Enterprises (CASS-
CSR4.0). In addition, the Report is based on the principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency.

Materiality: The materiality of the Environmental, Social and
Governance (hereinafter referred to as the “ESG”) matters of the
Company shall be determined by the Board, and the communication
with stakeholders, the process of identifying material issues and
the matrix of material issues are disclosed in the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOTES ON REPORT (continued)
Principle for Preparation (continued)
Quantitative: The statistical standards, methods, assumptions and/
or calculation tools for quantitative key performance indicators in
the Report, as well as the source of the conversion factors, are
explained in the definition of the Report.

Balance: The Report presents the Company’s performance during
the Reporting Period impartially, without improper influence on
the decision or judgment of the readers of the Report.

Consistency: The statistical methods and coverage of the
information disclosure in the Report are consistent with those in
previous reports, unless otherwise specified.

Data Description

Unless otherwise specified, the financial data involved in the Report
is abstracted from the audited annual report of the Company, and
other data is from the internal official documents and relevant
statistics of the Company.

Unless otherwise defined, the terms and expressions used in the
Report shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
Annual Report 2022 of the Company.

Form of Publication

The Report is included in the Annual Report 2022, and published
in printed and electronic form. The electronic version is available
on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
website of HKEX News (www.hkexnews.hk).

Contact Us

The Company believes that sound ESG performance is crucial in
maintaining its future sustainability in development, achieving long-
term objectives and creating long-term value for shareholders. We
hope that the Report will elicit constructive suggestions from out
stakeholders to further enhance our performance in ESG areas.
Please send your feedback on the Report by e-mail to
chl@hg.cofcoko.com.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREARE

ABOUT CHINA FOODS

Company Profile

China Foods Limited (hereinafter referred to as “China
Foods”) is a branded consumer goods company listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock Code: 506). It is the only focused average platform
of COFCO Corporation and is the holding company of COFCO
Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“COFCO Coca-Cola”).

COFCO Coca-Cola owns 20 bottling plants in 19 provincial
markets (including Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shandong,
Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning, Shanxi, Shaanxi, Sichuan,
Chongging, Inner Mongolia, Gansu, Ningxia, Qinghai, Tibet,
Xinjiang, Hu’nan and Guizhou), covering 81% graphical area
of China and 49.4% mainland population.

Franchised by Coca-Cola, COFCO Coca-Cola produces,
delivers, promotes and sells Coca-Cola series products. It
offers 24 brands of products in 10 categories including
sparkling, juice, water, milky drink, energy drink, tea, coffee,
functional nutritional drink, sports drink and vegetable
protein.

As one of the fastest growing Coca-Cola bottling groups,
COFCO Coca-Cola has become one of the top ten Coca-Cola
bottling groups in 10 years since established. While becoming
larger and more important in the market, COFCO Coca-Cola
always maintains stable and healthy profitability and delivers
good returns for the shareholders.

As a leading food and beverage enterprise in the industry,
China Foods always adheres to the guideline of “Market-
orientation, Globalisation, Risk Containment and Business
Optimisation” and the social responsibility philosophy of
“being loyal to national policies and making people’s life
better”, and regards green concepts as an important part
of its core values.

Corporate Governance

Board diversity is a key factor for the Company to maintain
sound corporate governance, realize sustainable development
and achieve strategic goals. The independence of Board
members is a crucial guarantee for the interests of the
Company, especially the minority shareholders.
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As one of professional platforms directly under COFCO
Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “COFCO"),
China Foods adheres to the sustainable development
philosophy of quality and efficiency improvement,
innovation, system, openness and green. We integrate
economic benefits with social benefits, regard green
concepts as an important pillar of our business
philosophy, pursue sustainable development of the
Company and the society, economy, environment and
stakeholders, promote the low-carbon economy, and
explore technologies and methods of energy
conservation and emission reduction to achieve a
model of “low energy consumption, pollution and
emissions” in routine operations.

The Board is the top decision-making body of the
Company in terms of ESG, and is ultimately responsible
for the ESG work of the Company. During the year,
the Board reviewed ESG-related matters twice,
including guidance and decision-making on
determination of material issues, setting of environmental
goals, and ESG information disclosure.

In order to put into practice the sustainable
development philosophy of China Foods, the Company’s
ESG Committee and its ESG Task Force formulated
ESG-related policies, strategic planning, annual work
plan and annual work budget, assessed and identified
the ESG-related risks and opportunities, supervised
the risk management and control system, regularly
reviewed the Company’s performance in ESG work
and progress in achieving ESG-related goals, and
assessed the results of ESG work during the year. It
held a total of 1 thematic working meeting, to make
relevant arrangements for material ESG-related work
on ESG management goals, response to climate
change, improvement of work safety, annual ESG
information disclosure, etc. Besides, it made specific
efforts to further improve and make innovations to its
ESG management system, actively optimize its ESG
management measures, and effectively enhance its
ability to uphold its social responsibilities.
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2. ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

HERERME

2.1 Board Statement on ESG Governance (continued)

With the authority of the Board, the Company’s ESG
Committee and its ESG Task Force collected and made
disclosures of ESG information in 2022, and prepared
the Report pursuant to the Guidelines of the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council for Central Enterprises
to Fulfill Social Responsibility and the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and with
reference to the GR/ Standards for Sustainability
Reporting, ISO 26000: Guidance on Social Responsibility
(2010) and CASS Guidelines on Corporate Social
Responsibility Reporting for Chinese Enterprises

(CASS-CSR4.0).

The Report is issued after consideration and approval

of the Board.

2.2 ESG Strategic Core and Goals

2.2.1 ESG Strategic Core

Over the years, China Foods has always been
engaged in ESG actions in conjunction with the
government, industry organizations, value chain
partners and peers. By efforts in tackling climate
change, protecting green ecology, producing
green and healthy products, pursuing sustainable
development together with partners, strengthening
community co-construction and contributing to
industry development, China Foods has showed
its “CARE” for and emphasis on ESG, and
constantly improved its ESG management and
practice. Besides, China Foods has defined the

core of its ESG strategy —

“CARE” (C: Climate,

A: Alliance, R: Responsibility, E: Environment),
hoping to integrate multiple forces to “CARE”

for the Earth and
development.
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2. ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

2.2 ESG Strategic Core and Goals (continued) 2.2
2.2.1 ESG Strategic Core (continued)

Climate

— —a

Shoulder the responsibility as
a large enterprise to fulfill the
climate commitments

RIEEEITRIEAER

Alliance

pN

— —a

Go hand in hand to create a
mutually beneficial eco-system
BFIWEITEARAER
Conduct win-win cooperation
to contribute to the industry
development

AIEARERMITERR

Core of China Foods’ ESG Strategy —

M ERERHRE

Responsibility

\\

Strive for excellence and
adhere to quality assurance
BREERTRERE
Stand together through thick
and thin to strengthen
community co-construction

ENSSIEPSIIE: Tad =2:S

HcARE"

FE R [CARE| ESGERE# /L

2.2.1 ESG Strategic Goals
As a leading company in China’s food and
beverage industry which is striving to be a world-
class bottling group, China Foods will continue
to treat world-class enterprises as a benchmark
in the future, and strive to make efforts in the
three major areas of low-carbon transformation,
product innovation and environmental protection

based on ESG,

in an effort to become a world-

class food and beverage group.

ESG goal hy 2023

2023%ESGE &

Build a sound ESG management system,

and set clear, quantitative and advanced

environmental and social performance

goals.

BRTENESGE I F - filE AN -
B8 EATEREMNRRNEGE

WERE-

ESG goal by 2025
20255 ESGHE &

Take the lead in creating a series of key
projects based on material ESG issues,
develop internal best practices, and
promote them throughout the Group step

by step.
HEESGEZZAB N RAITE—RINEH
BE WMEASZEER A RE#EE
Bifs
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Environment

S —

Regard lucid waters and lush
mountains as invaluable
assets, and protect the Earth
FOKEILTEMHERE
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ESG goal by 2030
2030FESGE &

Create the characteristics and
advantages of China Foods based
on material ESG issues, and become
an industry model in terms of ESG
practice.
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As a leading food and beverage enterprise in the
industry, China Foods always adheres to the guideline
of “Market-orientation, Globalisation, Risk Containment
and Business Optimisation” and the social responsibility
philosophy of “being loyal to national policies and
making people’s life better”. In its corporate mission,
China Foods is “dedicated to providing healthy
beverages and creating long-lasting value”. We attach
great importance of ESG governance. The Board is
the top decision-making body of the Company in terms
of ESG, and is ultimately responsible for the ESG work
of the Company. The Board is responsible for
considering and making decisions on material ESG
issues, assessing and identifying the ESG-related risks
and opportunities, supervising the risk management
and control system, and regularly reviewing the
Company’s performance in ESG work.

The Company has established the ESG Committee to
assist the Board in guiding and supervising the
implementation of its ESG practices, to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and to
meet the expectations of various stakeholders of the
Company. Currently, the ESG Committee consists of
three Directors, namely, Mr. Shen Xinwen, an executive
director, Mr. Chen Zhigang, a non-executive director,
and Mr. Mok Wai Bun Ben, an independent non-
executive director, and is chaired by Mr. Shen Xinwen.

An ESG Task Force has been established under the
ESG Committee as the executive body to fully
implement the ESG management and practices of the
Company. The ESG Task Force is responsible for
setting specific ESG goals and implementing matching
work plans; identifying material ESG issues; regularly
conducting statistical analysis of ESG-related KPIs;
regularly retrieving significant information or policies
and materials related to ESG to serve the decision-
making of the Board and the ESG Committee; assisting
in the preparation of the Company’s annual ESG report;
communicating feedback from major investors and
stakeholders to the management. The ESG Task Force
comprises the heads of various functional departments
of the Company, with specific division of responsibilities
for each department.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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2. ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) 2. ESGREE(#E)
2.3 ESG Management Model (continued) 2.3 ESGEEEN (&)

. Taking full responsibility for the Company's ESG work, leading and making decisions on the Company's
ESG management, and determining the Company's ESG strategic planning and annual work plan
HARESGI{FEE BEAREBESGERMBEIRK T REAMESCEBRE FET ‘
(G
Appointment
and removal,
supervision
and decision- Assistance
maklngg and reporting
ﬁ. EE- 1587 - B3R
‘ Consisting of three Directors to take charge of the construction of ESG management system and the
overall ESG management, and assist the Board in guiding and supervising the implementation of the
. Company's ESG practices
° ESGZEGH=FEFMEN ARESCERBRRRIREBESGERTH HHEFEEFNEEAR ‘
- A BIMWESG T {EH) T e
Coordination
and
organization
R R
R
. Consisting of the heads of various functional departments of the Company to fully implement the ESG
management and practices, set specific ESG goals and implement matching work plans; identify material .
ESG issues to serve the decision-making of the Board and the ESG Committee
. 3 HARBEBMAEIPIEBEE E ALK 2EEEESGERE T (E - #F ABESGR EREETIE5
2 HPIESGERNER  RBNEFFHESGEEGIRE
Communication
iz Regularly

reporting ESG
information’E
L3R
ESGIE S

_’

‘_

specifications

. Equipped with ESG management personnel to organize and promote the implementation of ESG
practices in the subsidiary according to the Company's overall requirements and management .
. FCBESGEIEAR  REB DR RMEREEERRE - AMHEESC TEFEAREM N EHE

China Foods ESG Management Structure
FEHERESCEIELRE
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The Company constantly keeps communication with
stakeholders, including shareholders, customers,
partners, employees and communities during the
course of operation. The establishment of diversified
communication channels enables us to improve the
communication and feedback mechanism, promote
the management of stakeholders, and balance interests
among various stakeholders, in an effort to gain respect
and understanding from all stakeholders and mitigate
the social risk of the Company’s operation.

"R ERHE

Stakeholders
Flz=EEEA

Governmental and

Communication mechanism

EEEE

Policy guidance

Stakeholders’ demands

NN TEL iﬂ%fq:‘ iiﬂ%
Hi%‘%ﬂﬁ*%’?ﬁﬁ*é\l*ﬁ@
L BRABVZTLHBEER
BT EAREREKY  RE
P ERE FEHSME
R R ARE N 58
EE’J—E}EWEM P (R 1h 2258
gt gk

Our response

MG SR

Response to national

RATF]E E

Serving national

regulatory bodies e BUKIES strategies strategies
BT S E e Report at the special o ZRERREES o RSB ERE
meeting e |egal and compliant e Adhering to steady
s HEEREN operation operation
e Regular information o SPEAHEE o EBSIBELE
disclosure e Abiding by laws and
o THEEHE regulations
o EPEEER
Investors/Shareholders e General meeting e Continuous creation of e Good business
HEHE/ME e REKRE value and returns performance
e Board meeting o FEBIEEERW o RITHKEZRES
s EFET e Regulating corporate e |mproving corporate
e Daily communication governance governance
s HEBR o REARAIE o TENEDARE
e Transparent information e Timely release of
disclosure information
o FRAMEERE o REEERM
Customers/Consumers e Customer service e Product quality and e Ensuring product safety
BF/HEE hotline safety s REERTE
o HREAR s EmHEERE e Strengthening quality
e Satisfaction investigation e Information and privacy management
e MEEHAE protection o JBESE
o Visiting o EERTRE * Improving service
o EFIFAM e Provision of satisfactory system
e Propaganda material service o TERBER
e EEm o RUHWMERES
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Employees
BT

Suppliers/Partners

IR, A IERH

Community and public
HERMAR
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Communication mechanism

EEET

e Employee representative
meeting
o BINKAE

e Daily communication

o HAEES
e Corporate culture
activities

o BXRLAH

e Regular information
disclosure

s THIEEHE

e Thematic conference

o THEEHED

e Business
communication and
cooperation

o EBEIERR

e Regular communication

o THIER

e Business
communication and
cooperation

o EBRMAE

e |nvolvement in industry
associations

s TXHESHE

e Regular information
disclosure

s TEHEEHE

e Public advertising

s NFRELEEE

e Feedback channel

o ETRREME

e Participation in public
events

o ZHENFIEEF

Stakeholders’ demands

MR G SR

e Reasonable
remuneration and
welfare

o SIEXHBET

e Healthy and safe
working environment

o RBELZEHMIIERER

e QOccupational
development and
training

o BREEBREIF

e (Care for employees

e BTHE

e Fair and impartial
cooperation

o RFRIEATE

e Reasonable and
responsible marketing

s AEARMELH

e FEnergy saving, and
emission and carbon
reduction

o ERBERHEPETR

e FEcological environment
protection

o RELLIRE

e Win-win cooperation
o Gl
e Joint development

o HRZERE

e Harmonious community
o HFEHE

e Rural revitalization

o ABFIREL

e Environmental

protection

o IRIREXE

e (Care for vulnerable
groups

o RBAESBEE

Our response
PN (1)

Protecting legitimate
rights and interests
RIESEHE R
Ensuring work safety
REZ2EE
Improving training
system
TEHIER
Organizing employee
activities
HEHETED

Strengthening supplier
management
negi R e
Reducing environmental
impact

WARBE R E
Promoting sustainable
development of value
chain

REEBERAIFEER

Carrying out strategic
cooperation
MBS & 1E
Participating in
formulation of industry
standards
SHETERESE

Promoting targeted
poverty alleviation
HEERRELRE
Contributing to
community development
Bt @B R
Engaging in public
welfare activities
FE QI EE)
Consolidating green
development
INsRAR 3R
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2. ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)
2.5 Identification of Material Issues

The Company makes active efforts to assume social
responsibility, strengthen the communication with
stakeholders, respond to the demands of stakeholders,
and continuously improve its sustainable development
capabilities. Based on the division of responsibilities
and contact interfaces of each department, the
Company has established a daily communication
mechanism that accommodates to the communication
habits of various stakeholders, and carried out
evaluation of material issues during the Reporting
Period. Material ESG issues of the Company were
identified and assessed by collecting and recording
feedbacks from stakeholders, so as to accurately and
completely disclose the information of operation and
management as possible as practicable.

2.

ESGAIE (4)
25 EEZERG

RAREHRAELSET M
R EF AR A AB R AR
o] fEF %5 FE B 5 MY e sk - 1B
RAGCEMNFEZEREE D A
NEIMREESEFIRNEBEE S LA
BEERm BYTRHAZARE
AR REENE S B
Bl WEREHANFAER TEER
EREIE-BAERENRET
SRFISAERE T R - Rk B LAY
HARNBIESGEEH B &= 1
BEER PEMBEELSER
EEE S

J Relevant social responsibility issues that cover corporate governance, environmental protection,

interests and rights of employees, supply chain management, customer responsibility and

practices based on the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

WERSDNER F2EEH
\ M ERER FPAM HBRERAFTEMBRLERTHR

community investment were identified by collating feedbacks from daily communication with
stakeholders, and collecting major issues related to the Company's operation and management, with
reference to the international and domestic sustainable development guidelines and industry

3R IR SR 5 A B 05 A0 FRE I R MR BUR A AL IR AR R B R - iR BB 2 AR(ESG
NRSEERIESI R AXEE  BAHEE AR RERE BT

Issues ldentification

o

perspective

BE

J

In the form of questionnaires, the management, customers, employees, suppliers and other major
stakeholders of Company were invited to evaluate the materiality of each issue from their own

ORI BREAREER FF BT HERSIENSABIRASARTGESRENEER

Issues Evaluation
AL

Based on the two dimensions of “Materiality to stakeholders” and “Materiality to the Company”, the
materiality of issues was ranked by the issue matrix. External experts were invited to participate in

the discussion, and 32 material issues were identified as the priorities of the Company’s ESG

management work, and disclosed in the Report as key items

ER[AEHMEAMIOER Y | B REHAARMER I | MERE  RiBE 2 EDEHH®
RERMETHT B BER2 RN G R TREEEUHAB AL AU TRAEEETIFE

SRR WA RS PEITERRE

Issues Sequence

REGEF
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued) 2. ESGRE(#E)
2.5 Identification of Material Issues (continued) 25 EEZERB(E)
H_igh

=]

Materiality to
stakeholders
EF S5 AR B O
M E M

Low Materiality to China Foods High
1% S vl g B ) [

Materiality Assessment Matrix of the Material ESG Issues of China Foods
TERMESGEEMREETEMHIER

TERMERAT Fik 2022

49



o0

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT % %%

2.

13.

13.

17.

17.

21.

21

25.

25.

29.
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ESG GOVERNANCE (continued)

2.5

Environmental compliance

RIREH

Hazardous and non-
hazardous waste disposal

BT BEREMEE

Whole-chain quality control

PEXBEERE

Employment compliance
and anti-discrimination

ERARERESR

Energy
consumption management

RERRREEE

Fair procurement

NS

Participation in community
development and

public charity
LENBERANGES

Digital transformation
and reform

N E (gt

Identification of

2.

10.

10.

14.

14.

18.

18.

26.

30.

30.

Legal compliance and
ethical operation

REARENEEE

Occupational health and
safety
BERREZS

Water resources
management

KERER

Employees’ rights and
benefits

BT REZHEET

Anti-corruption and anti-
money laundering
management mechanism

RES - RAEEE#

. Packaging management
2.8

KmeR

Occupational training and
development

CBEEIERR

Response to climate change
risks

EHREZ(CRR

Material Issues (continued)

3.
3.

7.

11.

11.

15.

15.

19.

19.

27.
27.

3L
3L

Food quality and safety
EREEHLE

Regular pandemic
prevention and control

RRACRBIE

Environment and natural
resources protection
REERABRRE

Environmental and social
risk management of
suppliers

HEBRRHEARER

Customer service and
communication

BPRBEARE

. Consumer privacy protection
23.

HBERLRE

Responsible marketing

BREEH

Rural revitalization

HRE

25 EE

4.

12.

12.

16.

20.

20.

28.

32.

32.

E%%E*%EU (&)

Food raw material
management

RaRIHER

Improving the corporate
governance system for
sustainable development
TECEAREERENR
%

Air pollutant emission
management

ARBRNFRER

. Development of new

low-sugar and healthy
products

K% - REHERRE

Board engagement in ESG
governance
EZQ2H £SG RE

. Information safety
CfERZ2

. Intellectual property

protection

MBERERE

Entrenching poverty
alleviation achievements

KERREE
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT

Nowadays, climate and environmental issues have become
a global challenge. Enterprises play a key role in tackling
climate change and protecting the Earth. As a leading
company in China's beverage industry, China Foods has
always put into practice the development philosophy that
“lucid waters and lush mountains are invaluable assets”,
upheld the basic principles of “saving energy resources,
reducing pollutant emissions, actively protecting the
environment and fulfilling social responsibility”, actively
implemented environmental protection measures in
commercial activities and routine operations, and established
a long-term management mechanism from the aspects of
effective utilization of water resources, improvement of energy
efficiency and reduction of packaging, so as to achieve
sustainable development.

Special topic: Strive to achieve low-carbon transformation
and tackle climate change

In recent years, global climate risks have been increasing,
and climate change has become a severe challenge facing
all human beings. In this context, China Foods has actively
implemented national policies, attached great importance to
greenhouse gas emissions during production and operation,
and promoted the integration of climate change response
into corporate governance, risk management system and
routine operations, with focus on the physical and transition
risks brought by climate change, according to the suggestions
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
(TCFD). Led by technological innovation, China Foods has
continuously developed products such as green and healthy
drinks, improved its environmental protection capabilities,
and contributed to protecting lucid waters and lush mountains
and tackling climate change through practical actions.

RERRE

wme e RIERREREEK/ER
AFRmBOEE CXRRYRER
i REHIRRE TR HRAE D
T oAERMAESTEKBITEESL
TR MERERMISKSLUREZ L
RILIWBRIES  BIE[ENERE
RS RPN RIRRERE
BrieaEd mERRE E8B%
B RARAEEST BHRERR
R EBRMAKER 1278
RUENMBEYHE L BITRER
EIRHS BRASERR-

EEBHIERERER  BYHRK
21

MR B RIRER T LT /R
{22 AR IR R A0 B IR DR B -
TEEMBEREERFZEER SEE
BEEELBRETREEREHEN £
H2LRRIRBBEYHE SWE LA
(TCFD) 2% - BERIRE (L HRNE
f8 Rl AN EE AU ARy - HE )R SR R 2
fEBMARBDEE REREEERNA
FEZ UARMAIFSIBERT A
SERRGERERRFERME
BRARTHIRREE JI7KF - IR T AR 7K
BUSERRE - LEBRTB AR R
REIFLER -

FEERAERLTE Fik 2022

o



o/

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT &% - # & K

The food and beverage industry is an important
industry related to people’s livelihood, and its
sustainable development and measures to tackle
climate change are becoming an important topic for
the future development of enterprises in the industry.

Impact of value chain

The long industrial chain of food and beverage industry,
from production, processing, transportation, packaging,
retail to waste disposal, has caused a significant impact
on climate change. According to the report released
by the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United
Nations (UNFAQ) at the 26th Conference of the Parties
(COP 26) to the UN Framework Convention on Climate
Change, the emissions of upstream agriculture and
food system in the food and beverage industry
accounted for 25% to 30% of the global emissions.
As such, the performance of this industry in emission
reduction is crucial for achieving the objectives set in
the Paris Agreement. The national ministries and
commissions of China have successively issued
relevant regulations on sustainable development of the
food and beverage industry, with an aim to urge
enterprises to take environmentally friendly measures
in practice and actively respond to climate change.

Changes in consumption habits

With the increase of consumers’ knowledge and
awareness of the impact of food production and
consumption on the environment, enterprises with a
better image in sustainable development will be more
likely to win consumers’ recognition and increase
market share, which helps to encourage enterprises
to actively develop climate-friendly products and
improve their ESG performance. At present, there are
more and more consumers who take into account
environmental protection factors when making
consumption decisions, more and more products with
“carbon label”, “healthy formula”, “low-carbon
packaging” or “zero-carbon emission” on the market,
and more and more food and beverage enterprises
that disclose their ESG performance in sustainable
development reports, implying a green and low-carbon
consumption revolution.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

PN

(=hv=]

K

EmMEBITERERREN
BEETE ZTENAURFER
RAMEHRIERE(CHERE LR

RRITEALERKERNE
ZRERE
BEELE

EmMABITENRERRE
- feEE-MIT E&- &
K TEIBEVRESFRNY
HRIEFLCELETERTE-
RIEH: & B2 R AR (UNFAO)
EE0EHEBERIEZILAE
(COP 26) & MHIME - Ran
MABITROEHRENER
AR EEERABINE
B25%ZE30% * 5% 17 5 B9 Rl BE
RAEHEBEIERGE)EZRE
REZ -BRIZHELL S
R MR ITEA S ERRR
B EEER T RIUR

{8

HEEEX®

HER HEEHURRMEE
THBEHRIRTZENRANE
B REERTZR BTN
TEREERLEBHEEER
RATMSNE BEPR
BT XTSI ERIRTE
EmITRRE g kal
(ESG)XRI:R - B AT - KB Z 1
HEFELERRERRABER
R-mBLIBER][RER
ITEREE T THhRA
RE MR % BB A
ERMEHEBEESGHEMM R m
MERE R B TEIE I 4R S
EHORB R EAEEL -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT &% ~ # & Kk B 8 # &

GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
Climate change risk assessment and response
(continued)

2.

Top-level design of climate change response
Management of climate change risks

The Board is responsible for the supervision and
management of the issues and work related to climate
change. The Safety, Quality and Environmental
Protection Department is responsible for leading and
coordinating the issues related to climate change, and
making relevant action plans for climate change
response, which will be implemented by relevant
departments and subsidiaries.

Strategies of climate change response
Comprehensively analyze, investigate and check the
carbon emission sources of the Company in the whole
process of production, transportation and office, and
work out relevant action plans; vigorously popularize
the use of clean energy to help to achieve the Company’s
climate change goals.

Goals of climate change response

In terms of climate change response, the Company
has set a long-term goal by 2030 and a phased goal
by 2025:

[ | Cut the carbon emissions per ten thousand yuan
(output value) by 30% by 2030, compared to
the data of 2020.

[ | Cut the carbon emissions per ten thousand yuan
(output value) by 18% by 2025, compared to
the data of 2020.
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HERELRE

3. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 3. RERE(E)
Climate change risk assessment and response RIES{LRABTGREY(F)
(continued)
4. Identification of climate change risks 4.

Risk categories Risk description Time dimension Impact on strategy, business and finance

Bk [lz8 s KEEE HEE  XERMENSE
Policy risk National policies which urge food Medium-and long-term The Company will set medium-and
DR R enterprises to reduce emissions R long-term strategies and short-term

ERBHHRTER M ERE goals, and work with suppliers to
implement/achieve them

RERHERRABELEHAR &
Rk R R BB B

Technical risk

BAE

Green plant projects and green
beverage development to achieve

Medium-and long-term

B &

Diversify the Company’s technical
methods and directions of energy

green operation
#ETHER RatRmifs - ERE
BiEE

saving and carbon reduction, increase
the production and utilization of clean
energy, and raise the costs of product

research and development
SERREEREREMTFRETE - A0
NEZRREERTA - EnERA
oy
Market risk More and more consumers take into  Medium-and long-term Carry out low-carbon management in
mHER account environmental protection factors ~ # ~ & the whole process of product

when making consumption decisions development, production, sales and
HRHEZHEEELRRAZHAEE after-sales service, improve the
RE traceability and transparency of carbon
footprint, and increase
management costs
RERRE  £F  HEREREZNE
EMERICER - AR IR BRI
EERE  EMERKA

Reputation risk

BERR

The Company is engaged in the food  Long-term
and beverage industry, which is an &

Low fault tolerance in green and
low-carbon development and food

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

important industry related to
people’s livelihood
ARBRmMAHTE  REHREN
BEAE

safety, and high correlation with

the Company's brand reputation
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Climate change
(continued)

risk assessment and

response

4. Identification of climate change risks (continued)

Risk categories
BB &R

Acute risk

Ykl

Chronic risk
feE R

Risk description
B fi

The Group’s business in coastal areas
may be adversely affected by typhoons
and sea level risk

/u/ l:ﬁ%fx—f QK‘JE\EL ) Eﬁ
@iﬂMXWTﬂwg

The sustained high temperature
weather in some areas has a negative
impact on the working environment
of employees
BowEFERRARAAREE L
BHBRTHYE

The Group’s business in areas with
frequent droughts and floods may be
faced with operation and production
risks such as waterlogging, low
temperature and drainage
EEETR  HEREREANES A
BEREASTEN  REBEN RIS
FEEERR

The Group's supply chain may be in
extreme weather areas, which may
cause risks
ERHERTEENRRARRE NS
RV

Time dimension

BREEE

Long-term

=

Long-term

=

REREE)
RIRBLEBTEREY ()

Impact on strategy, business and finance

HER  ERRMBOTE

Make contingency plans
HEESHER
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Risk categories

Vel

Policy risk
R B

Technical risk

BAE

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Countermeasures

EHEE

Set up a Leading Group and a Working Group of Carbon Peaking
and Carbon Neutrality at the Company level and the plant level
RNAIRTE IR ER - iR AMEE/ AR T A

Develop China Foods ESG strategy and action plan
HE R B R mESGEIBE B 1T BN R El

Release China Foods White Paper on ESG
BB RMESGEHK &

Disclose environmental data such as energy consumption and
carbon emission in strict accordance with the rules and reporting
guidelines of regulatory agencies every year
BEBRREREEHBORAIRERES SESNARKE
FERE - BEE S IRIREUR

Improve the management system of energy conservation and
emission reduction, and prepare the Specifications for the
Management of Energy Consumption Quota
TEMRBFEERE REANAFKAETREERLE)

Take an active part in carbon emission trading
TEMR 2 BB R 5

Actively use renewable energy and improve energy efficiency

TEEA A BERIR  RBITRERER KX

Reduce the carbon footprint of products and increase green
labels

e (B2 o BV Bl B 6 SR S DA B AR R

Optimize the production process to reduce the use and emission
of CO2, including carrying out pilot projects of replacing carbon
dioxide with nitrogen for pressure preparation in the pull can
production line of some plants. Currently, Sichuan Plant has
completed the transformation, which can reduce carbon dioxide
emissions by 190 tonnes throughout the year

BLEETITER D CO2RE RPN - BEEE » T B
ARBR-ZSE AR EEERERE - B AT RS ST
& REALOR D ZEAb IR FE R 190ME

Improve the utilization of vehicle loads and optimize the route
through the intelligent logistics task assignment system to reduce
the carbon emissions of vehicles

FMASEMRELIRS RAZHMESAAE  BLEE B
K E B IRBE



Risk categories
BB ER

Market risk
Mm% RER

Reputation risk

BERR

Extreme weather risk
1R 3ty X SRR B

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT ##15 ~ it @ R E A&

Countermeasures

B

Save energy and reduce consumption by making full use of new
energy-saving technologies, including reusing the waste heat
generated in the process of production to reduce the consumption
of steam and energy such as heat; popularizing the use of biogas
generated from sewage treatment for heating in the sewage
treatment process, and reducing energy consumption and carbon
emissions

MR ET BRI - BIRETREIERE - BREANAEERE R HIERE
BEMA - RAOFAEAEMAEFERERE  HEMNAITK
BRIZMEREERAR  ARSKERBEME  BEEERE - B
EHXBEE

Strengthen the research and development of green and low-
carbon drinks
MR ERERRmAENE

Refine the assessment indicator for energy conservation, that is,
divide the energy consumption per unit product into energy
consumption per unit product (sparkling water), energy
consumption per unit product (water products) and energy
consumption per unit product (preform products), so as to make
assessment more precise and scientific
HEETREZIZIEIR R EMNERFEE —HES 28 A%
IKEE mm BB EE mn AR RE 4B 1R ~ /K EE o BB U = mo AR e HR IR AR 22
mEBEREMFEREED  EEREINBERE

Organize public service activities with the characteristics of China
Foods, explore more stories behind products, and enhance the
Company’s green and healthy corporate image
REBFFERMEECNARTE ETEREZNERNE 17
ARBGZERERECERR

Work out the Contingency Plan for Extreme Weather and
Atmospheric Environment

HE T(RImRRARRIRESIER)

Heighten the flood control steps and improve the resistance to
natural disasters
mEP A AR  IREER A AR EFae

Develop risk prevention and control measures for safety under
the situation of supply guarantee in extremely cold winter
HIEBEREF D TLZ TR ERARMERE

FERmERDR FIK 2022
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Case: We Care ahout green and low carbon — COFCO Coca-Cola Sichuan Plant became a “Low Carhon + Action”
response entity

Zh #EERRMEF-FRITOTLRIERBER+THERLRX

In November 2022, China Foods Sichuan Plant became a “Low Carbon + Action” response entity
and won the honorary title of “Fashion Brand” at the press conference of “Tan Hui Tian Fu Low
Carbon+ Action” sponsored by Chengdu Ecological Environment Bureau and Chengdu Commerce
Bureau.

202211 A HFRERMIOIBMEKBTERLRRER TAKREFRN [ RERN 2ER+178) | Ehe
AR AR RIR+1TE) | R [ BM e | BT -

Chengdu is the first city in China that proposes a carbon benefit mechanism, which combines the
concepts of “credit rewards for public carbon emission reduction” and “development and operation
of project carbon emission reduction”. As one of the first leading enterprises joining the mechanism,
COFCO Coca-Cola Sichuan Plant fully advocated green and low-carbon behaviors, and guided the
public to live a low-carbon life, which has helped to attract more than 700,000 users for the “Tan
Hui Tian Fu” platform.

ERETEEAFAREEREANARBRBIES ZE HERRERRES | RERTHOIRE B’
Hll o PSR O AT ZE 00 )| R 1E R S HEBEBE D N AELE) - 2EEEKERKIRTTA  SIBRARBITERIRE
& EBABRERN] FEaRs|B/I0ERAF2H -

The Company has always attached great importance RAREREEERE KT
to water conservation, actively created the “3R” model 1B BIRSEE/KER] 3R"EL
of water resources, and continuously improved the TiE BEEAEERKAA
utilization rate of water for production. In order to Lo BEBMFIAKER  RF
make more effective use of water resources, the NTBEMGTETERKERE
Company and its subsidiaries have formulated and BAHREIE Fr B AR - B S AR K
improved relevant procedures and specifications for FERE  @{tAKEEBRE
water resources management, established a water- HHl: AT —mEEKE
saving solution database, and strengthened the water REREER #UBHKE
management system and mechanism; analyzed the RAARGER  BBEPKE
water resources management and practices of first- WERKIEARFRARIER
class enterprises, and established their own evaluation FHKERFI R o

system of water resources utilization; greatly improved
the utilization efficiency of water resources through
upgrading technologies such as reclaimed water

recycling.

During the Reporting Period, the Company set the WERA - BE—FINEAK
phased and long-term goals of water resources B ARARETKERE
management and took appropriate measures, in order 1P ER M B R H B AZ 30 BRENAR
to further strengthen water management. R TEHE ©

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

3.1

Water Resources Management (continued)
3.1.1 Goals of Water Resources Management
Phased goals
[ ] Cut the water consumption per ten
thousand yuan (output value) by 8% by
2025, compared to the data of 2020.

[ ] Continue to maintain 100% compliance
of all self-owned plants and foundries with
wastewater discharge standards.

Long-term goals

[ ] Cut the water consumption per ten
thousand yuan (output value) by 15% by
2030, compared to the data of 2020.

[ ] Achieve 100% water return by 2030.

3.1.2 Measures for Water Resources Management
During the Reporting Period, the Company took
the following major measures (without limitation),
in order to further strengthen the conservation
and recycling of water resources:

- Prepare the Company’s Guide for Water
Balance Tests to improve the effectiveness
of water balance tests and standardize the
procedures of water balance tests;

- Formulate the Company’s Specifications
for the Management of Water Consumption
Quotato further promote water conservation
and improve the water resources
management system;

- Study and discuss the water consumption
of plants for the production of different
products and product mixes, thus
providing a basis for setting the water
consumption targets;
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3. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
3.1 Water Resources Management (continued)
3.1.2 Measures for Water Resources Management
(continued)

Establish a database of best water
conservation practices. During the
Reporting Period, 48 best water
conservation practices were promoted.
Most of them have been put into use in
20 plants of COFCO Coca-Cola, and the
rest will be promoted after feasibility
confirmation;

Promote 8 technical measures for water
conservation throughout the year, which
is expected to save 160,000 tonnes water;

Require each plant to carry out the water
resources management project once every
five years to evaluate the supply and
vulnerability of water resources, thus
ensuring the safety and long-term effective
supply of water. In 2022, seven plants
carried out the water resources
management project; and

Introduce the internationally accepted
AWS International Water Stewardship
Standard. In 2022, one plant conducted
self-assessment.

3.2 Energy Management
In strict accordance with the Energy Conservation Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations, the Company has established
an energy management system, incorporated energy
conservation requirements into the whole process of
production and operation, strengthened technological
transformation and upgrading, increased the use of
gas boilers, utilization of PV and recycling of biogas,
and improved energy efficiency, thus becoming a
resource-saving and environmentally friendly enterprise.

During the Reporting Period, the Company set the
phased and long-term goals of energy management
and took appropriate measures, in order to further
strengthen energy management.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
3.2 Energy Management (continued)
3.2.1 Goals of Energy Management
Phased goals

Cut the energy consumption per ten
thousand yuan (output value) by 10% by
2025, compared to the data of 2020.

Install PV devices on all roofs suitable for
the installation of PV devices.

Install solar PV devices on all roofs of new
plants.

Achieve a coverage rate of 100% of
sewage biogas recycling projects.

Long-term goals

Cut the energy consumption per ten
thousand yuan (output value) by 16% by
2030, compared to the data of 2020.

3.2.2 Measures for Energy Management
During the Reporting Period, the Company took
the following major measures (without limitation),
in order to further strengthen the energy
conservation, emission reduction and low-carbon
operation of new projects:

Develop the Green Procurement System
to ensure that the newly purchased raw
materials and equipment meet the relevant
environmental protection and energy
conservation standards;

Formulate the Specifications for Energy
Consumption Quota, and the Standard
Operating Procedures for Energy
Management, Management Rules for
Energy Conservation and Environmental
Protection and other system documents
for plants to further manage the energy
conservation of plants;

Formulate the Standard Operating
Procedures for Vehicle Oil Consumption
Control to reduce energy consumption
during transportation;
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
3.2 Energy Management (continued)

3.2.2 Measures for Energy Management (continued)
- Formulate the Management Measures for
the Use of Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection Funds to ensure
that the energy conservation and
environmental protection inputs and funds
of all plants are used for the specified

purpose.

3.3 Emissions and Waste Management

Emission and waste reduction is one of the important
ways for the Company to pursue green development.
We strictly abide by the environment-related laws and
regulations, including the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Air Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment, etc. The Company has
independently formulated the Management Measures
for the Operation and Maintenance of Air Pollution
Prevention and Control Facilities, COFCO Coca-Cola
Regulations on Waste Management and COFCO Coca-
Cola Visual Guide for Hazardous Waste Management
to further strengthen emission and waste management.
On the basis of improving its own environmental
management system, the Company constantly explores
feasible emission-reducing technologies and techniques
for its operational processes, and strives to reduce
the environmental impact caused by production and
operation activities. During the Reporting Period, the
Company did not have any major violations of
environmental emission standards.

The Company has adopted internationally recognized
environmental management standards to manage its
environmental effects. All subordinate production units
have established and operated environmental
management systems in accordance with 1SO14001
standards and accredited by third-party authorities
designated by the Coca-Cola Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Company set phased
and long-term goals and took appropriate measures,
in order to further strengthen waste management.
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
3.3 Emissions and Waste Management (continued)
3.3.1 Goals of Waste Management
Phased goals

Reduce the emissions of hazardous waste
per ten thousand yuan (output value) by
3% by 2025, compared to the data of
2022.

Reduce the output of hazardous waste per
ten thousand yuan (output value) by 10%
by 2025, compared to the data of 2022.

Long-term goals

Ensure that all recyclable waste in the
plants will be recycled as social resources
by 2030.

Reduce the output of hazardous waste per
ten thousand yuan (output value) by 30%
and achieve 100% compliant disposal of
hazardous waste by 2030.

Achieve 100% harmless disposal of
kitchen waste pursuant to local
requirements by 2030.

3.3.2 Measures for Waste Management
During the Reporting Period, the Company took
the following major measures (without limitation),
in order to further strengthen waste management:

Carry out classified management of waste
by classifying waste into general non-
recyclable waste, recyclable waste,
hazardous waste and kitchen waste,
realize compliant disposal of general non-
recyclable waste, and actively promote
non-recyclable waste reduction and
resource reuse projects;
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3.

GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)
3.3 Emissions and Waste Management (continued)
3.3.2 Measures for Waste Management (continued)

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Realize the full replacement of lead-acid
batteries by lithium batteries, and reduce
the output of hazardous waste per unit of
output value by more than 5%;

Complete the low-nitrogen transformation
of a total of 19 gas boilers in the 20 plants,
install low-nitrogen boilers for the new
plant in Guizhou, and adopt emission
standards stricter than the local standard
requirements for all boilers;

Equip the sewage treatment systems of
all plants with odor collection and
treatment facilities to collect and dispose
of the odor generated in the process of
sewage treatment;

Complete the installation of VOC treatment
facilities in all plants, collect, process and
discharge VOC generated from techniques
including preforms, bottle blowing and
coding in the production process according
to the emission standards, and install new
VOC treatment facilities for new production
lines;

Study and promote a total of 4 energy-
saving and emission-reducing solutions,
including filling temperature rising, air
compressor heat recovery, power
consumption reduction in power supply
and comprehensive energy-saving
measure of packaging machine. Two of
them have been put into use in all plants
of COFCO Coca-Cola, and the other two
will be promoted after the pilot project is
completed;
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3. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 3. REBRE(E)
3.3 Emissions and Waste Management (continued) 3.3 HHYREEYEE(E)
3.3.2 Measures for Waste Management (continued) 3.3.2 fEEY )

- Carry out the pilot project of PET bottle - A BPETIR B E &
weight reduction. At present, the weight 2 B ATE 58300
reduction of 300ml bottles have been MERETE 7B
completed, which is expected to save raw SEFALAEER
material and reduce waste by a total of MR EB A EEY
342 tonnes throughout the year; and H3421F ;K&

—  Organize two trainings on hazardous waste - #EOMAFESE
management and one training on hazardous BIREIT T2RE
waste management records by making full MEZEYE RS
use of COFCO resources. A MLAEBES

BERYMEE &KL
Bl

Case: Recycling and reuse of waste cans
PI: B 2 h R R IR B A

The Company performs fine management of the waste cans from production lines, which are

uniformly delivered to and briquetted by the cans supplier and then sold to the aluminum

factory for treatment. The downstream waste products are returned to the upstream aluminum

factory by taking advantage of the supplier’s resources, thus realizing the recycling of waste

aluminum cans. In the future, we will further explore and promote the relegation and utilization

of waste cans.

NRABEEZR TOERSHUEETEACER KB E SN EHRER &2 uEEERE
TR WERRMEEE - FAREENERES B TFERRELEMY LHFEME &
WTEREEOBNA - KK BPIKEBTERSUBEOREF A S EMEZHREMHELE -

L]

Fine Manement of Wast Cans
BmI AL ER
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3. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued)

3.4 Ecological Protection
China Foods strictly abides by relevant national laws,
pays attention to each link of pollutant and emission
treatment in the process of production and operation,
carries out environmental impact assessment, and
actively organizes thematic activities on environmental
protection to avoid or minimize the negative impact
of production activities on the water, soil and natural
ecological environment.

With an aim to further strengthen ecological protection,
the Company took the following major measures
(without limitation) and achieved the following results
(without limitation):

- The Company promoted cleaner production
audit. Xinjiang Plant has completed the cleaner
production audit, and Tianjin Plant and Hebei
Plant have started to prepare for the audit, which
is expected to be completed from the end of
2022 to the beginning of 2023;

- In order to prevent the impact of sewage pipe
network on soil, the Company required each
plant to inspect its sewage pipe network with
advanced testing methods once every five years.
In 2022, 3 plants completed the inspection of
sewage pipe network;

- In order to improve the Company’s environmental
emergency response capability, all of the 20
plants organized an emergency drill training in
2022. All plants were required to revise their
respective environmental emergency plan once
every three years. In 2022, 7 plants revised their
respective environmental emergency plan and
filed it with the local environmental authority;

- In order to prevent the impact of operation
activities on soil, the Company carried out soil
tests. In 2022, 6 plants completed soil
investigation, showing that operation activities
had no impact on soil.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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During the Reporting Period, the Company was
recognized by all sectors of society and received
several awards and honors by its unremitting efforts
in the fields of energy conservation, consumption
reduction and ecological and environmental protection.

Award
2218

Excellent Enterprise on Energy
Saving in China’s Food Industry
in 2022
2022F B RmMITHEENRE
BAEMEE

Title of Energy-saving Enterprise
in Gansu Province

HrRE B KBRS

Title of Hu'nan Provincial “Green
Plant”
A R4 TR 225

Changsha Water-saving
Demonstration Unit
R T EI /KR8 8 g8 508

Benchmarking Industrial
Enterprise for Water-saving
in Heilongjiang Province
RETIATESKERDE

Plant
T

Chongging Plant, Gansu Plant,
Hebei Plant, North China Plant,
Central China Plant, Heilongjiang
Plant, Inner Mongolia Plant,
Shandong Plant, Shanxi Plant,

Shaanxi Plant, Sichuan Plant and

Xinjiang Plant

B W TILE ELE 2
g BRI Ll

PARR - BREERR - 7O |8 - 552 R
Gansu Plant

HEEmR

Central China Plant
e L

Central China Plant
g

Heilongjiang Plant
LSy AN

HEHEA NRAEESEERE
FECARRRBENTEE D
ESTHEERETE KREZ
THHRIAAN SRR o

Awarding agency
TRRRMAE

China Beverage Industry Association

hEKHIEGS

China Beverage Industry Association

hESRHIEGE

China Beverage Industry Association

TERHIEGS

China Beverage Industry Association

TEKHIEGS

China Beverage Industry Association

FEKHIEGS

FI] 2022

or
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3. GREEN DEVELOPMENT (continued) 3.
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3.4 Ecological Protection (continued)

Award

®15

Benchmarking Industrial
Enterprise for Water-saving

in Heilongjiang Province
BRETATEMKERLE
Model Enterprise for Ecological
and Environmental Protection
Contribution in Jilin Province
EMEERERRAZERMEL G
Shandong Provincial “Green
Warehouse” Certification
IWRER [ ERE]RE
Shandong Provincial Green Plant
LB A R AR T

Sichuan Provincial Green Plant
A B EE e TR
High-integrity Enterprise in
Environmental Protection in
Sichuan Province
MIERRBIERE

Social Contribution Pioneer in
Sichuan Province

milEtELSaERtE

Excellent Enterprise on
Food Safety and Quality
EmEZEHESERLE

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Plant
I

Heilongjiang Plant
LS ANiy

Jilin Plant
& MR

Shandong Plant
1L R BR

Shandong Plant
LI ER R

Sichuan Plant

o)1 RR

Sichuan Plant

7o) 11 Bg

Sichuan Plant
va )l R

Tianjin Plant
R

e (R)
34 EEEREE(R)

Awarding agency

IR

China Beverage Industry Association

TESKHIEGS

China Beverage Industry Association

TEKHIEGS

China Beverage Industry Association

MRS XGRS

China Beverage Industry Association

TERHIEGS

China Beverage Industry Association

TESKHIERS

China Beverage Industry Association

FESKHIEGS

China Beverage Industry Association

HESRH X GE

China Beverage Industry Association

B TXGE
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Overview of the Company’s Environmental Key Performance

in 2022000

Indicator
EEERE

SO, emissions
SO B =

NOy emissions
NOxHE =

Particulate Matter (PM) emissions

R (PM)BERE

Total direct CO, emissions
CO.E#HRE

Total direct CH4 emissions
CHAEE BB E

Total direct GHG emissions
NABEREEREREE

Total indirect GHG em|55|ons

/ml:t:ﬁ EF?%{%FB&i

Total GHG emissions
o= & Al

NARERBHRRE

Total hazardous waste produced

NAMEENEERZNEE

Hazardous waste produced per million yuan of
revenue

BETERBAMELNEEEREYE

Total non-hazardous waste produced

RAEENBEEZMEE

Non-hazardous waste produced per million yuan
of revenue

BETERBAMELNEEERZNE

Total amount of purchased electricity

ARSNEF B AR

Consumption of natural gas

Diesel consumption o

KMERE

Gasoline consumption

FURHFEE

Total purchased heat
INBRBE

Total comprehensive energy consumption

T =] Hu/ﬁx/ffl;g’;ﬁ %

Unit
By

tonnes
L7

tonnes
7

tonnes

7

tonnes
L7

tonnes
7

tonnes of CO.e
St E 2

tonnes of COze

B —REiEE

tonnes of CO.e
W — St E 2

tonnes
7

tonnes/million yuan

WEBEIT

tonnes
7

tonnes/million yuan

WE, E&JT
MWh

JKFL

cubic meters
K
tonnes

7

tonnes
U7

Mkj
BETE

tonnes of standard
coal

WAAZ

2022F AN AR

mﬁ(ﬁ&*)

2022
20224
1.90

8.45

0.83
10,644.53
566.55
42,313.30
217,051.38
259,364.68

171.25

0.0001

7,978

0.004

317,891.36

4,888,661.62

1,784.25

141.68

210,053.34

55,570.17

HERELHE

REERRAN

2021

20214

191

9.49

1.02

11,533.25

537.06

40,172.70

236,195.85

276,368.55

198

0.0124

6,029

0.378

339,391.16

4,123,100.00

1,874.58

140.39

264,848.38

59,194.38

FERmERDR FIK 2022
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Overview of the Company’s Environmental Key Performance
in 2022®ots); (continued)

Indicator Unit
EEEHE B

Total comprehensive energy consumption per

product coal/tonnes

BUEmNFEEaRREERE RIS AL, TR
Total water consumption tonnes

NEFKEE 7]

Water consumption intensity per unit of product litre/litre
B EmMAKEE 7t/ 7t
Total amount of packaging materials used in tonnes

finished products
HIpK mETR BEM RN EE WA

Amount of packaging materials used in finished gram/litre
p(oducts per production unit
X mFTRABEMBEEESU(ZE w7

Notes:

Environmental data covers the offices of Beijing headquarters of China
Foods in COFCO Tower and 20 plants across China. Guizhou Plant is
newly included, as compared with the coverage in 2021. All kinds of
emissions are from the operation of offices, production of products and
energy consumption and emissions from own motor vehicles.

The calculation of various environmental emissions is based on the COFCO
Technical Guidelines for Accounting of Carbon Emissions, the Guidelines
for Accounting and Reporting Greenhouse Gas Emissions from China
Food, Tobacco, Alcohol, Beverage and Purified Tea Manufacturing
Enterprises (Trial) issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission, and the Technical Guidelines for Compilation of the List of
Air Pollutant Emissions from Road Motor Vehicles issued by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment. The above guidelines mainly refer to the
relevant requirements under technical documents such as /PCC Guidelines
for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories in 2006, Provincial Greenhouse
Gas Inventories, and Calculation Method and Reporting Guidance on
Greenhouse Gas Emission by Enterprises for Power Generation Facilities.
The calculation method is consistent with the prevailing international and
domestic greenhouse gas accounting methodology and working procedures,
and is in line with the actual operation and production of the Company.

Due to the increase in the Company’s production in 2022, both of the
total comprehensive energy consumption and water consumption further
increased as compared with those in 2021.

The total energy consumption is calculated according to the relevant
conversion factors provided in the National Standard of the People’s
Republic of China — General Principles for the Calculation of Comprehensive
Energy Consumption (GB/T2589-2020).

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

tonnes of standard

2022F A RRRRERAREN

E(ﬁi{):(’fﬁi)

2022 2021
20224 20214
0.00847

9,730,410,174.37 10,444,628.93

1.496 1.494
274,000 267,000
42.130 38.185

it

RIESIBERETER ARG ERED AR
15 R 2B H20K TR - 2021 LA T &
MR - Z BB BN R BMRNESE Emt
EAR B BB EWEERT N -

SR B R AR R IR BB B
G BRERERHAAS BER
R R R kR
B (HAT) VA R A R RGBS B B A
55 AU HE B 3 A I3 ) L
2 % 7(2006%IPCCH 58 = 1% B 5 % )
Y ELL P EDIGST ELL AT
T < LR AR ) % B S 4 011 2
Ko B st 5 ERB R  ENRE
FREH =8 R IERFNHE B LA
AREBEELE -

MR2022F E AR A ESE N B4R A sEIRB
FEAAE - FKEHR2021 & — et o

ERERAEBEREFEAREMEEREZAE
(ERAREREETE 3B 8 (GB/T2589-2020) YR 424 Y
ERBERTES L



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT &% ~ # & Kk B 8 # &

Talent is the most valuable resource of the Company. Hence,
the Company has long been committed to the “contributor-
oriented” talent development philosophy. The Company
strictly abides by the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other laws and regulations, consistently provides
employees with a sound career development platform, a
proven training system, a competitive salary package and
all necessary welfares and benefits, gives top priority to the
development of talent resources, and strengthens the role
of talents in leading development, with a view to promoting
the common development of the Company and its employees.

The Company strictly abides by the laws and
guidelines, including the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labor, and sets eligibility requirements
pursuant to its internal regulations and based on
position needs to recruit talents. The Company is
committed to providing fair and open employment
opportunities for those who meet its recruitment
conditions, and respects the candidates’ right to
choose their positions based on their own will. We do
not set discriminative or restrictive requirements on
age, gender, ethnicity or native place during
recruitment, treat employees with different backgrounds
equally, and are committed to creating a workplace
atmosphere featuring diversity, thus ensuring
recruitment information transparency, fair recruitment
process, and excellence-based recruitment.

The Company strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labor, as well as the international and
domestic norms, rules and regulations on the
prevention of child labor or forced labor and the
relevant norms, rules and regulations on the prevention
of child labor or forced labor applicable in the regions
where it operates, resolutely prohibits the employment
and use of child labor, and combats any form of forced
labor. The Company has established a standardized
recruitment information collection and approval
process, carefully examined the age of candidates,
and eradicated child labor and forced labor. As of
December 31, 2022, the Company had a total of
19,243 full-time employees, with a labor contract
signing rate of 100%.

AT RARRABZEENER —HMN
AR TE&%WEJ@K%Z%ﬁJE’U/\
AERRES BRENHEARHK
MBS EE)(PEARKMES
BRVZ)EERER BR/BETR
1 tRIFHB R ZR T & M B R E

BE AAS %7}5’] 7 B LU A — 1)
Z\EE’M%IF‘IE%\ F8 AT ER
F’aﬂé‘éﬁﬂlﬁﬁ—{gﬁ'ﬁua sR{E AT 51
BROEBER  NEEEREXSR
BTMHREE-

PN/ 7FT& TR EARK
EY & & E )R A R A
**@JA EICEILLFERE
THREIEEE ERA - HEQ
_JWuMHE’E-JﬁE&I_JLL?%g&
T’E"ﬁ@ﬁ}%%ﬁéi%?\iAxﬁﬁ
EHRBEEOALTRERTF
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EEREREECEN BZME
BEPAZEFHR AR
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Employment of the Company during 2021-2022: 2021-2022F A AT B IT{EE
BR

Indicator Unit 2022 2021
EEEH By 20224 20214
Total number of employees person 19,243 19,189
BT 4% A
By gender
REBIE D
Number of male employees person 13,579 13,600
BEHETAZ A
Number of female employees person 5,664 5,589
7B T A A
By age
RERE D
Aged 29 or below person 3,971 4219
295 AT A
Aged 30-39 person 9,097 9,276
30-395% A
Aged 40-49 person 4,769 4,405
40-495% A
Aged 50-54 person 972 846
50-545% A
Aged 55 or above person 434 443
555% M A | A
By region
ZithE & 5
Number of employees in North China person 5,210 5,227
FEiEm 8 T AR A
Number of employees in East China person 2,588 2,543
ERWEETAH A
Number of employees in West China person 4,898 4,929
EilEE T AK A
Number of employees in Central China person 1,943 1,785
EhiREETAH A
Number of employees in South China person 30 6
EriEm 8 T AR A
Number of employees in Northeast China person 4,574 4,699
RIbHE 8 T A% A

7 2 CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Employee Turnover of the Company during 2021-2022:

Indicator

EEER

Employee turnover rate for the year
BTFEREE

By gender

RERIE S

Turnover rate of male employees
BHETRAE

Turnover rate of female employees
B TRAR

By age

RERE D

Turnover rate of employees aged 29 or below
29 MIAT B IA R

Turnover rate of employees aged 30-39
30-395% B Timk X
Turnover rate of employees aged 40-49
40-495% 8 Tk =
Turnover rate of employees aged 50-54
50-545% B Tk &

Turnover rate of employees aged 55 or above
555% M A B Tk =

By region
Rt EE 5

Turnover rate of employees in North China
FEpEm 8 TimAE
Turnover rate of employees
ERIME S TmAKE
Turnover rate of employees
EFME S TRAR
Turnover rate of employees in Central China
Ehbhle 5 TRAX

Turnover rate of employees in South China
ZHIBE S TRAE

Turnover rate of employees in Northeast China

LR B TRk

n East China

n West China

Unit
By

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%
%
%
%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%
%
%

%
%

%
%

2021-2022F A AT E IR K
R :

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
17.9 16.4
14.2 12.9
3.7 35
8.40 8.0
8.25 7.5
1.18 0.9
0.06 0.04
0.01 0.01
4.42 4.4
2.78 2.6
5.44 43
1.93 15
0.02 0
3.30 36

FERmERDR FIK 2022
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4.
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TALENT FOCUS (continued)
4.2 Occupational Safety and Health

Always upholding the policy of “putting prevention first
and combining prevention with treatment”, the
Company strictly puts into practice the guiding
principles from relevant documents of the State and
COFCO in relation to occupational health, and has
formulated the Management Regulations on Work
Safety and Occupational Health. The Regulations
require the plants under the Company to carry out
occupational hazard testing for the positions exposed
to occupational hazards every year, make reasonable
position transfers for employees who are not suitable
for their original jobs in a timely manner, provide
workers with suitable labor protection articles such as
goggles, helmets, safety gloves, safety shoes, safety
belts, earplugs and so on, and strengthen daily
occupational health training and continuously improve
employees’ awareness of occupational health protection
by taking the opportunity of “Occupational Disease
Awareness Week” and “Work Safety Month”.

Furthermore, the Company arranges annual check-ups
for employees of the headquarters, subsidiaries and
plants, as well as annual occupational health check-
ups for employees engaged in certain types of work.
In accordance with the relevant requirements, the
Company keeps employees’ medical records for
subsequent follow-ups.

In order to improve its occupational health and safety
management, the Company requires all its subsidiaries
and plants to establish and operate an occupational
health and safety management system. By the end of
2022, all 20 production units under the Company had
been accredited by OHSAS18001 occupational health
and safety management system.

4.

BEALT (&)

4.2

REBEZ2HEEE

ARABHEBRFTEH/E
Prasa Mt BREER
R FEREEENBEEET
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HREXRERUMRBERES
A REHTNEERIERM
B THETAEARM RIE
EABEBEANSIHNER
mNERR  Z2E 2T
E 8 -w2% HEZY
ZHEWE  BERANAREE
REGRAI M Z2EEAIR
B o B EBERA LRI
B TERABEIREEED

A S Ayl
EE i

ARAB BB EHERA
ETIBMOABEEIRFFER
mOUERIBETIRESFR
BERRERER LiRRAH
ZRHEERETRTAER
SRR

BIGEARRGNBERRENZ
EEEKFE ARBERET
BRARI N TRES WEITRE
RBRLZ2EEBR - #H 52022
FR - AQEEERN20REE
B i 2 #6338 BOHSAS18001 5%
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Indicator Unit

BEER By

Number of deaths due to work in the person
past three years

BE=ZFRRATHMAH A

Proportion of deaths due to work
in the past three years

BE=ZFRRTHRARMNEL

%

%

Indicator

ERER

Number of days lost due to work-related injuries during the year

REFRTHBEHERNTIERR

Coverage rate of physical examination

ETERESX

The Company thoroughly puts into practice the
guiding rules from General Secretary Xi Jinping’s
important instructions on work safety, and fully
implements the arrangements of the CPC Central
Committee and the State Council. In accordance
with national laws and regulations such as
Opinions of the CPC Central Committee and the
State Council on Promoting the Reform and
Development in Work Safety, Work Safety Law,
Regulations on the Reporting and Investigation
of Work Safety Accidents, Administrative
Regulations on the Work Safety of Construction
Projects, and Interim Measures for the
Supervision and Administration of Work Safety
of Central Enterprises, the Company has
prepared and improved the Standards for the
Investigation of Hidden Dangers in Industrial
Chain, Management Measures for Work Safety
Accidents, Quality Accidents and Environmental
Events, and Measures for QHSE Rewards and
Punishments, optimized and revised the
Emergency Management Measures, constantly
strengthened the grid safety responsibility
system, improved the List of Job Safety
Responsibilities which covers 51 posts, and
defined and highlighted the responsibilities of
defense lines at all levels. More than 16,000
work safety responsibility agreements have been
signed step by step, covering all employees,
which guarantees the sustained and effective
operation of the work safety management
system. The Company was stable in terms of
work safety throughout the year.
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In order to fulfill its responsibility of work safety, BENEELEXESR
the Company set the goals for work safety £ 2022F - KNG ELE
responsibility from three aspects: zero death, [T EH T
parallel development of mechanization, ERRINMIEALZEX
automation, informatization and intelligence and LI=FHEEIETEZE24E
improvement of safety culture, and put forward EETEE WRHEE

supporting measures in 2022.

i ©

Goals for work safety responsibility Supporting measures taken to achieve the goals
ZEEEREEE RERBEMRRNEERR
“Zero death” 1. Learned General Secretary Xi Jinping’s important exposition on

[TRT] F

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

work safety through the meetings of the Party Committee of
COFCO Coca-Cola and the meetings of the Party organizations
of bottling plants. All 20 plants organized the learning activity
themed by Saving Lives is of Paramount Importance — Learning
General Secretary Xi Jinping’s Important Exposition on Work
Safety to improve the political stance of employees, and
strengthen the importance and urgency of work safety.
Cumulatively, we learned General Secretary Xi Jinping’'s important
exposition on work safety and watched the TV feature film “Saving
Lives is of Paramount Importance” for 72 times, which covered
a total of more than 7,300 participants, thus building a solid
defense line of thought and consciousness for work safety;
MBRETSAEZ e RAREASSR BEBLTESER
FARLZEEENSEZmll 20R TRABBE(EmENEL-
—BRRNVTRELHNLEAEEEmIl) REBRWAL
a2 A ETENEEMEEAN R 2B B L TR
ERERZ24ESEERN BER(ERERRINEREER
72k 7,300% NR2INEE  ERRHEEBBEEZNEZ

Took work safety as the first topic of the meetings of the Party
Committee of COFCO Coca-Cola, the office meetings held by the
General Manager and the operation analysis meetings, and
created a sound atmosphere that work safety must be emphasized
at every meeting. The leading body led by the Party secretary
and CEO organized a total of 30 meetings to listen to work safety
reports, discuss and make arrangements for work safety, solve
major problems, and provide resource support; the Party secretary
and CEO led the leading members to conduct thorough
investigation into grassroots enterprises, and check and provide
guidance on work safety;

BEEEEERTRIONELRZS RLERAS EL0M
EMEEER FRESVETENRITRE -EZE5 - CEO
HERAEN T RFAEBIOREHE B EETEER
RMFELEEELE ARBREERME BHERRE  E
ZER  CEOFBMFRBRAEERLEAN  LEREWIEE
TEREETHE:



Goals for work safety responsibility (continued)
ZELESHER(R)
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Supporting measures taken to achieve the goals (continued)

ARBAEHMERNEERRE ()

3.

Prepared and revised 14 safety system documents, covering risk
classification, contractor management, supervision and inspection,
hidden danger investigation and management, accident
management, etc., constantly improved the safety system, and
strengthened compliance management and organizational
guarantee. COFCO Coca-Cola added the number of full-time
safety officers to 3, each bottling plant had four full-time safety
officers, and the proportion of registered safety engineers was
up to 42.5%, providing reliable talent guarantee for safety and
sustainable development;

BIE - BEIRERRI A - REHEE EERE BEIHLER
B ENERELEHEXHIVE BERE2LZEFIEEE M
MEMUEBERFERLAMRE AEIOAELEERAS
EMEBA SRABREBIZLZE2ERAE  FME2TIEA
L BIER42.5% AL 2 MR FEEREHRITENALTR
f&

Constantly improved the institutional system, and formulated
COFCO Coca-Cola Management Specifications for Gas Safety
and COFCO Coca-Cola Management Specifications for Equipment
Overhaul Safety to promote the standardization and tabulation
of gas management and overhaul operations. The three-level
system of regulations, measures and guidelines/standards has
been further improved, and 51 system documents cover the
whole-process elements such as source control, process
monitoring, support guarantee and end-of-pipe control;

TR 2HERE  GHlE(hRBANATERRL 2 ERRE)
(RO ENESTEERRE) HEHRAERE - NB1E
R KRB BT PE B/ BE=RFIEBREMN
2 S1IEHEXHRERBEE BB X FHRIEERR
RERBIEEER

FERmERDR FIK 2022

(a4



/8

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT #&# ~ it @ R &8 #F &

Goals for work safety responsibility (continued)
ZELESHEER(R)

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Supporting measures taken to achieve the goals (continued)

ARBEEFMERNEERRE ()

B

Made an annual safety training plan, covering hazardous
operations, mechanical safety, in-plant traffic, electrical safety,
safety culture development, behavior-based safety observation,
etc. Eight categories of personnel participated in the training,
including core teams, grass-roots managers, safety managers,
hazardous operation workers, personnel in key positions, general
employees, interested parties and others. By combining offline
and online channels, we arranged for more than 32,000 persons
to learn safety knowledge and skills through cascade training in
specialized companies, bottling plants, workshops (departments)
and teams (posts), so as to further study and strengthen the
tasks and responsibilities of work safety management at all levels
and promote the building of all staff’s ability to perform their
duties;

FIEFELZDHIIEE BREGRIERX BRED MARE -
BRLE ZEXEERR TRAXIZERS BIlHREBEERZ
LDEE EEEEAE Z2EEAR GBRIEEAE B
UABE —MUEEAE HBEST EMAESNBEAB KA
BT BSELEEEHNAFN BAFXE QR ERE - BHEE
F9) BRAR (R AL E OB 355 - 484632,0002 AREBE RS
MBETRE E—PEBFNRCSERLEEERIBNE
T REZERBENER

Intensified the on-site supervision and inspection, conducted
monthly review of online videos, and organized mutual inspection
of videos among plants to follow up rectifications. Pursuant to
the Standards for the Investigation of Hidden Dangers in Industrial
Chain, bottling plants organized comprehensive inspections,
special inspections, seasonal inspections, and daily inspections,
and carried out special investigations such as gas safety
inspection, centralized management of hazardous chemicals, and
large-scale safety investigation and management to identify and
control hidden dangers in a timely manner;
MARG NI ME|EERENE  BETRAR LRBRS
NRABTHREES  REESEE - RIMREACEFEER
BHEREVABGARE FERSE FHUERE AERE
E THERRZE2RE flmERESL T2 AFERESG
EHIEHE - REBRRIREEE
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Goals for work safety responsibility (continued)
ZELESHER(R)

Parallel development of mechanization,
automation, informatization and
intelligence

[ (e B8k Fak B
{b) 3

Supporting measures taken to achieve the goals (continued)

ARBAEHMERNEERRE ()

7.

1.

Constantly improved the comprehensive emergency response
capability, carried out the vulnerability assessment of emergency
response capability, identified the current situation of emergency
management, analyzed and found out the shortcomings, made
an annual targeted drill plan, and arranged 76 emergency drills
for eight major risks, including mechanical injury, fire, falling
accident, poisoning and suffocation, electric shock, vehicle injury,
lifting injury and collapse. Continuously improved the capacity
of on-site disposal, special disposal and comprehensive disposal
by increasing the frequency of drills, training emergency teams
and providing advanced emergency materials and equipment.
TERFA G EESERE T FHRESE IR - Al
SERENR SMEERTR BEEMESIEFEERE H
BEWBES AKX "REE%E FSEL BE BEHEE BE
BE BEMASENEEARKRRESHEZER/ON - BA
IATEBRIER - IRGRIE S - EL L EES M E R MBS TN
RARGEE FHEERE HFEREMNEEERT-

All of the 20 bottling plants completed the “intelligent safety
monitoring” system project and put it into operation, including
electronic locks in confined spaces and electronic locks added
to the entrance for high-altitude operations to improve the safety
level of dangerous operations; intelligent video systems introduced
in logistics areas to actively identify unsafe behaviors, monitor
and correct hidden dangers such as workers in the logistics
area deviating from the prescribed route, not wearing safety
helmets, or not wearing reflective vests, so as to achieve early
identification, timely correction, and timely treatment;
0RFEMM BB TR [ R 2 e b BsiE | TH B BRI FARETT
BEAREMETFH SREFEAMENETFH RALRKE
FARBELREKY MIREEHSIASERBRS  FHHBIAL
21TR - BEWAEYIRERERABRZRTEBERITE KA
Z2ME  REREEOERE  MBEHA  PAIE - BRI

All of the 20 bottling plants built the dangerous operation
management information system, so as to realize online approval
of the entire dangerous operations, conduct monitoring and video
review, regulate operations, improve approval efficiency, reduce
process risks, and raise the acceptance rate of dangerous
operations.

0REMMEXERIEREREEMRGER BERERIER
PREKEN BREEERAMNS  REEXTR ReaEL
ME - REBRERRE  RAGRIEEABEX-
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Goals for work safety responsibility (continued)

ZEEERERR(H)

Improvement of safety culture
RAZEXE

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Supporting measures taken to achieve the goals (continued)

ARBEEFMERNEERRE ()

1.

Carried out the activity of “top leaders safety talk”, to demonstrate
the Company’s emphasis and attitude on safety through safety
commitment, safety publicity and safety practice, and improve
the leading and exemplary role of top leaders to a new level.
During the year, COFCO Coca-Cola and 20 plants completed a
total of 68 safety talks by “top leaders”, with 6,100 participants;
FEHT—IEFIEBLEEY BRRRETE TE%E BT
TE EEMCEHLTENEGNEE B—IEFHNLZ2s|EBME
EERERAZFNSE - EM—TW 20K TRtk ek [ — 38 F
BLE68X 0 6,100 \X2RH ;

Organized the “Quality and Safety Month” activity and carried
out 27 on-site activities themed by safety publicity and consulting
day, with 2,030 participants; posted charity posters and played
25 safety videos; carried out 14 activities themed by “Door-to-
Door Safety Delivery”, “Safety Message from Employees’ Families”
and family safety day, with 950 participants; organized 34 safety
culture publicity activities such as “Lecture”, “Open Day” and
“Knowledge Contest”, with 5,403 participating;
REER I EEX2 AR FARXE2EEXNBREEEH27
R+ 2,030 NIR2 0N REEAwBWREBER L 2R IF2580 : F
RIEFIAPZEZE | EIRBLETEINKRELEHES
147 - 950 AR 8 : T KREBZ I RMB I [ HHREF
3435+ 5,403 NIRFERR 2N

All of the 20 bottling plants set up safety accident warning rooms
as warning education bases, which are used to learn typical
accident cases and for warning education for violators so as to
enhance the sense of ritual in warning education. The plants
encouraged and motivated employees to report more than 1,000
hidden dangers and minor accidents, and made rectifications
by analogy to address the underlying causes of accidents.
REMBEBEVLRRENERE BEERETHER
im BEMAEWRL - AL RE BB ARARI=E]
ABERETRHYE ERETHE HARL - SENHE 8 TR®
BB B/ NEH ], 0008878 - B— R =8I R EHUR A ERIRE -
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TALENT FOCUS (continued)

4.2

4.3

Occupational Safety and Health (continued)
4.2.2 Safeguarding Occupational Health

Always upholding the policy of “putting prevention first
and combining prevention with treatment”, the
Company strictly puts into practice the guiding
principles from relevant documents of the State and
COFCO in relation to occupational health, and has
formulated the Management Regulations on Work
Safety and Occupational Health. The Regulations
require the plants under the Company to carry out
occupational hazard testing for the positions exposed
to occupational hazards every year, make reasonable
position transfers for employees who are not suitable
for their original jobs in a timely manner, provide
workers with suitable labor protection articles such as
goggles, helmets, safety gloves, safety shoes, safety
belts, earplugs and so on, and strengthen daily
occupational health training and continuously improve
employees’ awareness of occupational health protection
by taking the opportunity of “Occupational Disease
Awareness Week” and “Work Safety Month”.

Furthermore, the Company arranges annual check-ups
for employees of the headquarters, subsidiaries and
plants, as well as annual occupational health check-
ups for employees engaged in certain types of work.
In accordance with the relevant requirements, the
Company keeps employees’ medical records for
subsequent follow-ups. In 2022, there was no work-
related disease case.

Focus on Talent Development and Experience
China Foods always attaches great importance to talent
training, adheres to employment equality and diversity,
promotes the market-oriented reform of personnel
selection and employment, develops the orientation of
“performance towards position”, and establishes
perfect career development channels and employee
training systems to boots employees’ fast growth.
Meanwhile, we actively care for employees, organize
condolence activities, enrich employees’ spare time
life, and constantly increase employees’ sense of
belonging and well-being.

4.
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4.2
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TALENT FOCUS (continued)
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4. BEAF (&)

4.3 Focus on Talent Development and Experience 43 FEATBRHEERR(E)

(continued)

4.3.1 Reinforcing Talent Training

4.3.1 #IEAT

In accordance with internal management
regulations such as the Training Management
System, the Company carries out work related
to talent development. Each plant has designated
persons who are specifically responsible for the
implementation of employee training programs.
The Company’s training is broadly categorised
as internal and external training, which include
internal training provided by the superior unit
COFCO and the Company; external training for
employees provided by external trainers and
external open courses learnt by employees. The

AR AHKER AR E
BHIE)FEERTE  H
BRATHRBHEIIE
BMPESEIBEEEA
EREEEEE TE
HEWERR - ARBHIEE
N BAF - SRR
X AFIEEEREEE
fzpBAMA R A A B
el SN EREA
AEFINEIIM AR
TRHEMFIARET

training mainly includes new employee training,
general skill training, professional skill training
and leadership training, detailed below:

New employee training
MBI

General skill training

B AEE I

Professional skill training
BEREEED

Leadership training
REE

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2N AFRER o
BIATEZEHE: #
BT mA e
Fl BEEREE - RE
HEEF - BT

Orientation training, including centralized training organized by
the Company and professional training organized by various
departments

AFTABE TIREMABEI - B AR5 — AR S F IS
WEz 3 0ES =

Training to improve the work efficiency and occupational skills of
employees
AT E T TEREFB (R ae R R AT

Training to enhance professional skills, including technical and
R&D-based training
ARABIHEXETEREARMIFI - RIEHIT R 3 RZ5 53

==
=T

Training to enhance the leadership ability of the Company’s
management staff
RIEFTRBIEEABRER HMARBEET
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The Company’s employee training during 2021-

2022 is as follows:

Indicator
EEEE

Total number of training hours for the year
RNEE R AT EERE

Average training hours per employee
participating in training for the year
REERARZEZIINBLETIAARIIRE

Amount of expenses invested in training
for the year

AEEBIARANKLE

Total number of training hours by class content
RABRBTE D WIFIAR

Professional skill training
B NE

Leadership training
RE E

New employee training
HEIE

General skill training and other training

3B T RE R E AL I

Strengthening Enterprise by Learning
2B

Unit
By

hour
AN

hour
AN

0’000 yuan

B

hour
/NBF

hour
AN

hour
AN
hour

AN

hour
AN

20216-2022F - &2 A

BIEIERMT

2022
20224

1,529,642

79.49

7200

1,002,418

36,959

41,418

351,007

97,840
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2021
20214

1,131,824.1

59.1

938.63

675,997.5

50,166.5

71,216.2

271,664.5

62,779.2
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The Company’s employee training during 2021- 2021%-2022%F » xR 7

2022 is as follows: (continued) ETHEIERMOT : (&)
Indicator Unit 2022 2021
BERB By 20224 20214

Percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category
iR EEERESSNZIEEES L

Percentage of male employees trained % 70.93 70.92
SEZIEEEDL %
Percentage of female employees trained % 29.07 29.08
ZHEZIIEEEDL %
Percentage of management staff trained % 1.00 1.06
ERABZIEAEDLY %
Percentage of professional technicians trained % 91.35 91.20
EERMAEZIEEE L %
Percentage of administrative staff trained % 7.65 7.74
THEAEXIIEEB DL %

Average training hours per employee hy gender and
employee category

ZiR EERABSINESREETAZIN IR

Average training hours of male employees hour 81.13 58.93
BB T AL E I8 N
Average training hours of female employees hour 79.31 59.5
BT ABZIIRE N
Average training hours of management staff hour 81.78 64.89
EBABALFEBH B
Average training hours of professional technicians hour 80.54 59.14
HEERMABABZ RS

AN
Average training hours of administrative staff hour 81.17 57.78
T A B AR HIFRE N

84 CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



4.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT &% ~ # & Kk B 8 # &

TALENT FOCUS (continued)
4.3 Focus on Talent Development and Experience
(continued)
4.3.2 Protecting Employee Benefits
The Company effectively protects the benefits
and rights of employees in accordance with the
laws, and has compiled and published a Staff
Handbook to give employees a comprehensive
insight to the Company’s corporate culture,
corporate values, human resources management
system, employee benefits and rights, and other
matters. In view of this, the Company has taken
several measures, including but not limited to
the followings:

- In terms of employee communication, the
Company has established an employee
communication and complaint mechanism
to ensure that employees can express their
concerns and opinions through secure
channels;

- In terms of security benefits, the Company
has established a complete security and
welfare system for all employees, including
pension insurance, medical insurance,
maternity insurance, work-related injury
insurance, unemployment insurance,
housing provident fund, commercial
medical insurance, etc., so as to reduce
the worries of employees and increase
their enthusiasm for work and sense of
belonging to the Company; and

- In terms of working hours management,
the Company has put into place systems
such as attendance/leave management
regulations, and implemented the approval
system of special working hours in various
regions in accordance with the law. If any
abnormality is found, we will immediately
communicate with the head of the
responsible department and give a
warning, and also arrange for employee(s)
who work overtime to take days off or get
an overtime pay.
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5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT S.

For the sake of outstanding product quality and safety and
to control risks from the source, the Company sticks to a
strict supervision over quality and safety of the supply chain.
The Company is committed to building an honest, green
and sustainable supply chain system in cooperation with
the suppliers, and to continuously refining operation and
management performance of ourselves and our partners.

5.1 Goals of Supply Chain Management

China Foods incorporates ESG management concepts
and goals into its supply chain management and co-
building procedures, and, by virtue of its leading
position in the industry chain, influences a wider range
of stakeholders to engage in the refinement of ESG
management and jointly promote the sustainable
development of the industry.

Goals: By 2030, to establish a complete supplier
management system, with the application of business
audit, technical quality audit, and social responsibility
audit, and strengthen ESG management, incorporate
ESG elements into supplier management factors, and
continue promoting supplier sustainable development
projects.

5.2 Measures for Supply Chain Management

The Company has established strict access standards
for suppliers, and set up a supplier management
system, to implement a full-life-cycle supplier
management and a consolidated effective selection,
evaluation and audit of suppliers, and has incorporated
ESG elements into supplier management, and made
improvements in terms of response to and management
of environmental and social risks of suppliers.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)
5.2 Measures for Supply Chain Management (continued)
5.2.1 Strict Criteria of Supplier Selection

To ensure the quality of the raw materials
purchased, the Company has developed various
evaluation tools, and worked with The Coca-Cola
Company in establishing a comprehensive
supplier evaluation mechanism. The Company
conducts third-party social responsibility audits
on suppliers, for the purpose of reaching a
comprehensive estimation on the environmental
and social risks of suppliers, including whether
they comply with relevant laws and regulations,
whether they have obtained relevant permits,
whether they employ any child labor, and
whether they provide sound labor protection for
their employees. The Company will immediately
terminate its cooperation with the suppliers upon
finding their noncompliance with the requirements
and ask for their rectification within a certain
period of time; and pay regular visits to the
suppliers that have passed the audit.

The Company also strongly emphasizes ethical
behavior and contractual spirit among suppliers.
Our supplier contracts contain specific terms
obliging both parties to prevent any improper
procurements in accordance with the Coca-Cola
Company’s Supplier Code of Business Conduct.
The Company must select the bottling plant,
from which it purchases its key materials for
beverage packaging and any items bearing logo
of The Coca-Cola Company, from the approved
supplier list of Coca-Cola. All of our suppliers
adhere to the Coca-Cola’s Supplier Guiding
Principle (SGP).

5. HE#EEE(E)
#

5.2 MHEEEEER(E)
5.2.1 BRTERI A B %
RREE

MEEE  RNRFFMES
BRHE TR WEAOR
KRR —ERYTEDN
HEREFEES - 2FE
HHERARFE =01
SREEZ EEHHE
IR IR LAt g b
THRAMHE  BRES
BT HRBARES 28
ESREA REEM
BT ERHBETARY
S BIREE - RAIEH
MaBERNHERE L
BlfFIEAF WBREE
—EHMRARN: HE
BEERHER G ETT
EHAEIER

ARE+HERKEER
MR EBREROEE
HERAREANER
PIENIRFOT A E T R
RIBCAT O A2 R m e
BRETRMAE) B
— T EERBEMHDH
B AR RERBARF
BRMEIMF&AANAR
LN AR Y on O RE S
PR AT BB SRR R 5
JAREA QA B AR
HERIBEREE - 2
WA B 19 8 T Al
A&t EEEERA
(SGP) ©

Business audit

BREX

The Demand Department and the
Procurement Department jointly review the
business qualification information of
suppliers

B REPT - SRR HPI AR RN
AABHEERES

Technical audit

Bl #E&

Procurements involving patented
technologies are subject to technical
qualification review and evaluation with
assistance from the Technology Department
of Coca-Cola

835 R BRI TROAEREEREE - Al O A4
BT D 13 BYAE T T BT & H BAXRT

Social responsibility audit

HEEEEX

CSR audits of suppliers are conducted by
a dedicated team of Supplier Guiding

Principle (SGP)
A EREEERAISGP)EM 8 R MK
HERETH § B EFX

China Foods’ supplier audit management procedures

THERHEREREERRE
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5.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)
5.2 Measures for Supply Chain Management (continued)
5.2.2 Just, Fair and Open Procurement Procedures

In accordance with the Bidding Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Measures for
the Administration of Bidding and The Coca-Cola
Company’s 7-Step Sourcing Process, the
Company ensures just, fair and open procurement
procedures.

Audits on three levels are carried out for supplier
access: the business audit involves the Demand
Department and the Procurement Department;
the technical audit involves the Technology
Department of Coca-Cola; the social responsibility
audit involves the SGP Department. Coca-Cola
updates the list of approved suppliers quarterly,
to engage selected suppliers and eliminate those
unqualified.

Business audit (involving the
Demand Department and the
Procurement Department)

PR OF RBHEPFT - FRAEERPT)

Technical audit (involving the
Technology Department of
Coca-Cola)

B A NI 25 -]

5.

e ()

e EE R (&)

5.2

522

N\ E o=
N A iﬁ AN =i

AR AMRIE(H
MBI R RFE) CRIT
EIEPE) M A AR LR
AIRB LA BRERE
MR FRERR-

HEBMEARB=ZHRE
P9 BREEEDFT : B
3 B R O R] 2 A B
'R EFEZY MSGPED
BEESE=SERENEIES
MERRAEE - @R
MIMASRER SR TE
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Social responsibility audit (involving

SGP Department)

e EERXCSRSGPEFT)

China Foods’ supplier audit management procedures

TEREREEREREERR
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The Company’s suppliers in 2021-2022 are 2021-2022%F » & 2 )4

summarized as follows: EEmER@SImT
Indicator Unit 2022 2021
BEERE By 20224 202145
Total number of suppliers number 118 117
HEFRHE &

Total number of suppliers by domestic region
REAMEE S NEERESE

North China number 30 29
FEAb b [R &l
East China number 22 22
FERHR 1l
Central China number 4 4
i@ 1
South China number 28 28
ERE fA
Northeast China number 11 11
RAbHh @ 1él
Northwest China number 8 8
itpie:id &
Southwest China number 15 15
Fiteapau] A &l

Total number of suppliers in and outside China
RERMESWEEFTEHE

Domestic number 118 117
BA 1[él
Overseas number 0 0
AN &

Total number of suppliers by supplier type

BEHEERAASNHEERARE

Food number 35 35
RmiA 12l
Packaging number 68 67
RES S e
Equipment number 4 4
HAER 12l
Food additives number 11 11
NI 1[él
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China Foods attaches great importance to quality assurance
in its mission of “offering healthy foods and creating lasting
value”. It strives above all to provide consumers with
consistently satisfying, safe and quality products. The
Company wholly abides by national, regional and industry
laws and regulations, and international quality management
standards, including the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Product Quality Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Measures for the Administration of
Food Production Licenses, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests,
the Market Business Compliance Guideline, the Sales
Business Compliance Guideline and the [Internet
Communication Activities Compliance Guideline. 1t has also
formulated the internal management system, to exert effective
control on quality, protect the rights and interests of
customers and conduct responsible marketing activities.

China Foods maintains a corporate culture of quality
and safety, and further enhances its product quality
and safety management. The Company’s quality and
safety system certifications have long been implemented
at factory level, as reviewed by a third-party professional
certification organization. As of the end of 2022, all
subordinate production enterprises of the Company
had obtained FSSC 22000 and ISO 9001 certifications.

Taking into consideration the risks inherent to its
upstream, downstream and manufacturing phases,
while emphasizing the construction of the HACCP
management system for traditional manufacturing
process, the Company also extended its focus toward
its suppliers and new product development, and
backward to the customer service system.

The Company has established a sound quality and
food safety management system in accordance with
national laws and regulations, COFCQ’s standards, and
Coca-Cola’s requirements.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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The plant has established supplier management
procedures, based on which the list of qualified
suppliers is updated and the supplier qualification
documents are maintained, the suppliers are regularly
evaluated, and, for quality problems of raw materials
from suppliers, the root causes are analyzed and the
follow-up mechanisms are implemented to make
improvements; any expired edible raw material is
banned; the plant has established incoming quality
control procedures, based on which all incoming raw
materials are inspected according to the requirements,
and all raw materials are stored, transported and anti-
theft managed subject to Coca-Cola requirements; the
plant has established a system to retain samples of
main raw materials, and the area for sample retention
is secured with access control to prevent the samples
from being touched by irrelevant personnel.

In terms of product quality inspection. Each of the
production units under the Company, on the one hand,
conducts outgoing inspections of raw materials, semi-
finished products and finished products on a daily
basis; on the other hand, engages an external qualified
third-party agency to conduct regular inspections on
the indicators required by the state. Meanwhile, at
the beginning of each year, the Quality Department
of the Company formulates a supervision and sample
testing plan, reports to COFCO, and distributes to each
plant, which will send the samples of finished products
and raw materials for external inspections on a
quarterly basis.

Based on the outline of industrial chain quality and
food safety risk control, the Company has established
a preventive early warning mechanism. It has used
risk identification and assessment of industrial chain
to develop risk control plans, risk monitoring
requirements and rectification plans, thus enabling the
measures to control significant risks to fall within the
normal dynamic control process. In 2022, the
Company’s products were subject to supervisions from
national, provincial, municipal, local and external
organizations, reaching a 100% qualification rate in
sample testing.

ITHELHERERRER #
BEBEREEEEW HEEE
BB THEHER
ETHD  HHEERRMAE
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6.

PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)

6.1

6.2

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Control of Product Quality (continued)

In response to potential product recall risks, the
Company possesses an established risk response
mechanism. It maintains a system of emergency
response plans for food safety incidents in its plants,
and organizes drills on a regular basis, as well as
evaluates the effect of such drills to ensure the
implementation of relevant process mechanisms and
the ability of the tracing system to trace 100% of the
products within 24 hours, up to raw materials and
direct suppliers, and down to the first-layer customers.
In 2022, there were no recalls of sold or delivered
products from the Company due to product safety
reasons.

Provision of Superior Services

China Foods defines “consumer-oriented, customer-
centric” corporate core values, which aims to provide
consumers with consistently satisfying, safe and quality
products, and provide customers with multi-channel
services. The Company practices such corporate
purpose in its daily activities by establishing a customer
service system composed of central customer service
and customer service of various bottling plants.

China Foods defines “consumer-oriented, customer-
centric” corporate operation foundation, which aims
to provide consumers with consistently satisfying, safe
and quality products, and provide customers with
multi-channel services. The Company practices such
corporate purpose in its daily activities by establishing
a customer service system composed of central
customer service and customer service of various
bottling plants.

6.
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PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)

6.2

Provision of Superior Services (continued)

In 2022, more than 140,000 calls were received and
590,000 calls were made by the customer service
center, which were professionally handled by all
customer service staff of China Foods, enabling us to
maintain a good relationship with our customers and
further enhancing our service reputation. In 2022, we
increased the application of intelligent voice robots,
by which a large number of homogeneous outbound
calls were made, with a total of 7.1 million calls
throughout the year, greatly expanding the number of
callbacks for customer service, supporting the business
development across the region, improving customer
experience, and ensuring customer service quality.

At the same time, we also continued to optimize the
functions of “Coke GO” platforms, and promote it to
more customer groups of the Company. For new
customers especially, we provide one-stop services
including development, installation, activation and
ordering. Customer-directed orders and task completion
strengthened the bi-directional connection between
customers and the Company and widened and
deepened the customer services.

In 2022, the customer service center continued to
increase the effective follow-up of customer complaint,
and attached importance to the timeliness of customer
complaint handling. The customer service center
maintained progress follow-up with each sales region
through emails, corporate WeChat, WeChat groups and
other methods. The Company recorded a completion
rate for handling consumer complaints of nearly 100%
and, and made steady improvements in the timeliness
of complaint response. Through the above effective
follow-up and callback, the customer satisfaction also
continued to improve.
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The Company makes vigorous endeavors in intellectual
property protection, customer and consumer
information privacy protection, and responsible
marketing practices. We strictly comply with relevant
national and regional laws and regulations related to
intellectual property protection, consumer rights
protection, information security and advertising and
marketing, and adopt relevant guidelines of COFCO
and Coca-Cola, as well as formulate and implement
relevant management systems of the Company.

In terms of intellectual property protection, the
Company has formulated the Regulations on Intellectual
Property Management of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited covering patents, trademarks and copyrights,
which are followed by all departments.

In terms of protecting the rights and interests of
consumers, the Company strives to strengthen
information security management, and regularly
conducts internal trainings for employees on system
security protection to enhance their protection
awareness. In response to China’s requirements for
supervision and centralized control of Internet and
traffic, the Company implemented the SD-WAN project
in 2022, by which all Internet accesses of the
headquarters and its subordinate bottling plants are
unified to the headquarters, to facilitate Internet control
by the national security administrations, and unified
Internet security reinforcement and Internet security
protection.

The Company has compiled the Measures for the
Management of Genuine Software Responsibilities of
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, the Measures
for the Assessment and Appraisal of Genuine Software
Responsibilities of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited, and the Standard for Office Computer
Configuration of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited,
to standardize the management consulting system and
operations, thus safeguarding the security of corporate
information and enhancing the corporate integrity and
standardization. During the Reporting Period, the
Company did not involve in any lawsuits due to
violation of customer privacy and loss of customer
data.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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The Company maintains a “zero tolerance stance” toward
professional and business ethics violations. We strictly abide
by relevant laws and regulations related to anti-corruption,
including but not limited to the Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China Against Unfair Competition, the Interim Provisions on
Banning Commercial Bribery and the Opinions on Issues
concerning the Application of Law in the Handling of Criminal
Cases of Commercial Bribery.

The Company has long been committed to building an
integrity administration, improving its internal systems and
strengthening its corresponding mission training. The
Company has implemented COFCQO’s 14 Provisions on
COFCO Manager Professional Conduct, formulated
Implementing Rules on Forbidding Non-compliance Business
Operation of Group Cadres’ Spouses, Their Children and
Their Children’s Spouses and Other Specific Related Parties,
Administrative Measures on Prevention of and Punishment
on Falsification of Business Results and Regulations on
Disciplinary Management of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited, with a view to strengthen daily supervision and
management to prevent corruptions. The Company has set
up an internal website, providing reporting channels, a
dedicate telephone line, mail address and other reporting
means.

During the Reporting Period, the Company annually conducts
an integrity talk for new managers to build a line of integrity
and self-discipline; carries out warning education of
employees with typical cases to enhance their ability to resist
corruption and change. The Company conducted one
professional ethics training for supervisors and staff at higher
levels, which was attended by 39 people, one anti-corruption
training for members of the Board, covering 7 people, and
48 anti-corruption trainings for employees, and was not
involved in any corruption, anti-fraud or anti-money
laundering incidents which proceeded to litigation.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

In addition to creating economic value, the Company also
positively engage in community services, provides full
supports for the community development and sustainable
development in the areas where it operates, and encourages
employees to contribute to the community. In 2022, the
Company invested more than RMB670,000 in community
volunteer services, worked with local organizations or
stakeholders in the area of its operation, and enacted public
welfare projects catering to local communities. In terms of
environmental protection, upon special festivals such as Tree
Planting Day, Earth Day, and World Environment Day, the
bottling plants carried out public welfare exhibitions, walks,
and tree planting, to convey to the public the environmental
protection concept of a world of no waste and call for
everyone’s participation in environmental protection. Providing
care for special groups has always been a part of the
Company’s community volunteering services. The bottling
plants in many locations paid regular visits to cleaners,
construction workers, couriers, takeaway workers, lonely
elderly in the community, old party members, etc. In terms
of earthquake relief, in 2022, the Company has launched
the “Clean Water in 24 Hours” project on 15 occasions, to
provide 650,520 bottles of clean and safe drinking water to
the affected people in the jurisdiction in the wake of natural
disasters. For fighting the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company
donated clean drinking water and medical supplies to front-
line medical workers, schools, community volunteers and
many others in the areas of its operation.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

8.1

Deepening Partnered Assistance and Promoting
Rural Revitalization

In compliance with the national polices, such as the
Strategic Plan for Rural Revitalization (2018-2022),
the Opinions of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party and the State Council on
Comprehensively Pushing forward Rural Revitalization
and Accelerating Modernization of Agriculture and
Rural Areas, the Opinions on Consolidating and
Expanding Results of Poverty Alleviation and Ensuring
the Linkage with Rural Revitalization, the Company
follows the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Promotion of Rural Revitalization of Rural Areas
as well as a series of management systems, including
the COFCO Group’s 2021 Rural Revitalization Work
Plan, Assistance Fund Use and Project Plan on Rural
Revitalization of COFCO Group in 2021 and Rural
Revitalization Assistance Fund Management Measures
of COFCO Group issued by the COFCO Party Group,
which enabled it to deepen partnered assistance, push
forward rural revitalization, and provide support to
partnered areas in terms of policy, talent and funds.

During the year, we focused on the following five areas:

- Designation of cadres on temporary duty to
advance the development of aided regions. The
Company dispatched cadres on temporary duty
to its partnered county, Shiqu County, Ganzi
Tibetan Autonomous Prefecture, Sichuan
Province, to promote the development of the
aided area. This gave full play to the supporting
role of such cadres in the work, and strengthened
guidance on rural revitalization in the assisted
county, urged the implementation of the key
responsibility for rural revitalization, and
coordinated key tasks such as fund introduction,
training of grass-roots cadres and technical
personnel, and sales of regional agricultural
product.

- Promotion of financial support for rural
revitalization. The Company allocated RMB6
million as a special fund for rural revitalization,
most of which was invested in the partnered
county — Shiqu County, Ganzi Tibetan
Autonomous Prefecture, Sichuan Province, to
assist regional economic industries, medical care
and other livelihood projects.
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8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued) 8. #HEKRE(E)
8.1 Deepening Partnered Assistance and Promoting 8.1 FREHOERBEEMNIKRE
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Rural Revitalization (continued)

- Steady advancement of industry revitalization in
aided regions. Leveraging its own operation
network in the operation area, the Company fully
integrates ethnic culture and industrial structure
characteristics of each region with its operating
activities, and so as to advance the industry
revitalization in the assisted area.

- Great effort to promote the revitalization and
development of rural education. With commitment
to the “Education First in Rural Revitalization”,
the Company makes steady progress in rural
education revitalization, and the revitalization
and development of rural education, to makes
it play the role of disseminating knowledge and
rural civilization, providing talents and intellectual
support for rural construction.

- Focus on cultural prosperity in aided areas. The
Company makes vigorous efforts to promote the
revitalization of rural culture. Such efforts include
deeply exploration of the excellent ideas,
humanistic spirit and moral codes rooted in
farming culture, creative transformation and
innovative development on the basis of
preservation and inheritance. It aims to make
use of cultural force to develop cultural industry,
and contribute to cultural revitalization with care
actions.

Subject to its scope of business, the Company has
made considerable efforts to promote regional industry
revitalization, rural education revitalization, regional
cultural development, and social welfare, and has
made great contributions to assisting regional industrial
and economic growth, educational infrastructure and
resources construction, and cultural advancement,
achieving outstanding results and good social benefits.
During the Reporting Period, the Company carried out
a total of 38 rural revitalization activities with various
themes, benefiting over 100,000 people and generating
economic effects of RMB23 million.
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In 2022, sticking to China’s historic achievement of realizing a moderately prosperous society in
an all-round way, and based on its market services at township levels, COFCO Coca-Cola carried
out activities to inherit rural culture, support the development of rural industries, and promote
rural economic development, in order to make contributions to rural revitalization. A total of 34
rural revitalization-themed activities have been carried out, benefiting more than 10,000 people
and generating an economic effect of over RMB330,000.

2022 R FOALEZHNHER 2 MER /DR SHE LR A6 2 RIBET IS RBGER - &
B XF/BNEEER HHENLCOEZE HHENKE  RAFAESETBENIREEH
35 RRBEAHIERA EEKBREAREIMET -

& T @
R3

+%

COFCO Coca-Cola’s happy trip for rural revitalization

FART O W A IRERERTED
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8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued) 8. #HEKRE(E)
8.1 Deepening Partnered Assistance and Promoting 8.1 FRUEHBOEHKBEMANIKRE
Rural Revitalization (continued) (#)

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Case: Charming Huyi Embraces “Ganjile” — COFCO Coca-Cola Brand Country Fair Unveiled

Pl AXHEBKL |-PEBITO UL REPEISERFN T

“Ganjile” brand country fair is one of the series activities of rural revitalization carried out
by COFCO Coca-Cola Shaanxi Plant, which is in the theme of “empowering children of the
earth and revitalizing the beautiful countryside”. It is also a practice of carrying forward the
achievements of Youth 100 “Countryside Classroom” project and seeking contributions to rural
revitalization in cooperation with rural entrepreneurs. COFCO Coca-Cola explored the value of
rural areas from diversified aspects through Ganjile brand country fair. With rural landscape as
a catalyst, and following the core concept with such key words as “ecology, empowerment of
peasants, and sustainability”, COFCO Coca-Cola unfolded the beauty and promoted goods of the
rural area, to showcase the achievements of rural entrepreneurs, and maximize the value of the
beautiful countryside, and meanwhile introduced popular culture and special delicacies to the
daily life of villagers, so as to create economic and social circular value for the locality.

[RER4L | bR 488 2 R 18 7] O AT AR PE iR [ AR A Kb 2 7 IR AR HN | 78 B8 RO R E
Fr— LERLEESFFIO0NHHERE | HAKREBEZTMRREXD N BN IRELEE - 127 1
ERBEEYL - DEBREHERENZTEE=R  UBNBESEBSBRE - ATEE R
ARE ] RZOBR TRAREANZE N BNTY  BRRBAIZKR  HAREEEXB AN
BE HERTX FEeERFEENENREAE  REMAELSERL SRBRERE-

Group photo ofI'GanjiIerran country fair Group photo of “Ganjile” brand country fair
[BE% | REBEETHEY [BE% | REBEITHE
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)
8.2 Support Community Development and Contribute to

Public Welfare and Charity

“Loyalty to national policies and making people’s lives
better” is the overall mission of COFCO and the motive
behind Coca-Cola China’'s “We Care” sustainable
development and public welfare strategy. Through “We
Care”, we provide a wide range of high-quality
beverages to the market whilst fulfilling our role as a
corporate citizen. The Company responds to the needs
of communities, makes contributions pertaining to
environmental protection, education, sports, community,
disaster relief and COVID-19 combating, and
encourages its employees to participate in welfare
activities in order to promote the mutual development
and progress of enterprise and society.

In 2022, we launched a series of social welfare
activities in various forms with a total of 10,612
participants. The cumulative labor hours devoted were
approximately 29,666 hours, and the capital invested
was approximately RMB1.57 million.

Volunteer service
B AR

8.

HERE(H)
8.2 XRMHERRHABEE

BEAFEIEANEN RRE
Mt eEEES  ARAO
AIEERBRG RAET MR
HEZREARER TEHA
mERMHEMEEERES @
B 2mBENRBMERRE
HIRELCERARNAE &
NEERE - RRAIEGEE
BERRA  THRERFR  ER
RHE -RBE HE RAR
NMBERBEERABERA I
FZBET2EEBRGEEE
wEPrEET e HRRRE

20225 BPAIFHERT — &5
ZRANLE R mEs Rt
B AL0,612N K B2FFRAA
T B #4929,666/ N - IR A&
EHARKEISTET

In 2022, in line with the national goal of building a modern socialist country in an all-round
way and improving the level of social civilization during the 14th Five-Year Plan period, COFCO
Coca-Cola carried out activities of creating a harmonious society in cities where it operates, and
invited its employees and community volunteers to participate in such activities, with a total of 3,959
participants. The cumulative labor hours devoted were approximately 13,789 hours.

2022F YIABER TN AP HERMEIBRAICAR IESHSNARENBRESR  FEA
ARMETEERAMTHRRNBET A AMSHEFE IRt RERELRZ2MEEH - 2MEE

T RMEREEABZE3,959 AKX - WA TRE13,789/ 6 o

Employees of the Company participated in community volunteer service.
AATRBIZHETEERERS
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued) 8. #HERE(E)

8.2 Support Community Development and Contribute to 8.2 XBUEBEBEBINREE
Public Welfare and Charity (continued) (4&)
Education
BEEXE

COFCO Coca-Cola launched various youth entrepreneurship, vocational training and social
practice projects for college students, aimed to help students realize their own value and
enhance their future competitiveness, mainly by leveraging empowerment of youth. In 2022,
COFCO Coca-Cola carried out a total of 568 times of various youth training programmes,
covering over 95,000 participants.

RETOALERNSRAZREHRSETFEE BEREEI HSEERER EEUATFRRE
RATESNN ENEFREABREEREE BRARKBSZOHRFE N 2022F R O£ 25
FE &S S FRAEEI56855 - BE95,00088 AKX ©
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued) 8. HERE(HE)
8.2 Support Community Development and Contribute to 8.2 XBHERERMILARES
Public Welfare and Charity (continued) (%)

Fitness for all

ERES

To implement the “Healthy China” initiative in 2022, COFCO Coca-Cola lent its support to
national fitness exercises by organizing various bicycle races, basketball games, charity runs,
and other activities to promote the healthy exercise habit and positive lifestyle. During the year,
567 charity running activities were held by COFCO Coca-Cola, with more than 20.4 million
participants.

AR ﬁW_E?EEPIJ TE) 2022F - REER A 24BEY 2 REFED HARFRESEETEE &
RE - EEE UHERRNESBEBEBELBNEES FA FRAOATLEFERESR
E}EJ /557356755 /EE g;=}\//\ 2040@%%/\

The Company carried out public health activities.

EAFMRAEREED
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8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued) 8. #HEKRE(E)
8.2 Support Community Development and Contribute to 8.2 XRUHEREBIARRERE
Public Welfare and Charity (continued) (&)

Donation to pandemic prevention

Bh B8 BY

In support for the normalized prevention and control of the COVID-19 pandemic, COFCO Coca-
Cola actively participated in the prevention and control of the pandemic in the 7 provinces,
autonomous regions or municipalities covered by its business in various forms, including public
welfare volunteering activities, epidemic prevention materials and drinking water donations,
and donated a total of 142,000 bottles of drinking water and RMB50,000 to the front line of
epidemic prevention in various regions, helping front-line epidemic prevention workers to ensure
their drinking water safety with the strength of its own industry.

EFBEMAEEERMT FRAIOALEBAGTER MENERKAKBEEZEER  BkR2
HAXBBEN7EETREBHZESR R RAZ Y ZE —RBEKAK1I42,00068 - BN 58
TTURBEEEMRR BN —REIEE REMANKKEZ R -

'Uﬁﬁ IFE'JEHFE‘]IIIE

- WRAARRH (M) §RA, g,mg., -

The Company donated drinking water to the front line of epidemic prevention
ARA R EBE&E— AR 1B B e A K
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued) 8. #HERE(E)
8.2 Support Community Development and Contribute to 8.2 XBUEBBREBINREE
Public Welfare and Charity (continued) (#&)

Disaster assistance

KEEY

COFCO Coca-Cola owns 20 bottling plants covering 81% of the territorial area of China and
49.4% of its population. In cases of natural disaster, the plants’ strong marketing network and
logistical resources are harnessed to bring essentials such as drinking water to where it is vitally
needed. In 2022, the Group responded to the “Clean Water in 24 Hours” rescue mechanism on
15 occasions, providing more than 650,000 bottles of water to victims and rescuers in disaster-
stricken areas.

ISR O AT 440 B 20K IARR - B T 81 % MY + EEAN49.4% By B R fE A A o B0 58 K & & 85 4
wAMRER ERBA#HE  EERKAKEEEXN R BEHUREREKESR - 2022F K&
B HERE [FR2ANE | REEEHI15R  £—KREAKXERBALIEA B X658 4R M A K K -

LR

S B T Gl
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Environmental protection
XFHRR

In response to calls for a “Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality”, as well as Coca-Cola’s own
vision of a “World Without Waste”, COFCO Coca-Cola carried out public welfare environmental
protection projects such as waste classification education, bottle recycling activities and RPET
recycling derivatives exhibitions in its operating areas, contributing to the ecological well-being
with practical actions. In 2022, the Group carried out 85 “Double Carbon” environmental
protection activities.

HRIER O EEBREE[HERRTPAITE AT ARLEI X TEEIFS  E82REFAERNR
DEHE  EMEYPIRRED  RPETERITERBREARRRIER - WEBRITEE NITRERXHAK
BX 0 2022%F - A EERL L RINF R [ &5 | IRIRIE B )5 #)85% ©

-« ‘_; N re
3 — > = v ﬂ‘}_"

. ' i =
The Company conducted public welfare publicity activities themed environmental protection

ARAFAMRBRRIELDEEED
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK

EXCHANGE

ESG Index

Aspect B

Al Emissions

ALEEED

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT %% ~ #

ESGIEIRE 5|

Content A&

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RIRE

BRBERSORERBIN  FKRIHHEES BEREEERYNE
AER

(@) BR K

(b) ETHETABEATENHERIRMRONES -

Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

AL 1FE e 28 R ARRR BE IR EBUR -

Al.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
AL2RERBBAEYME (UBEETE) R (ER)BE (A BES B
SIERIEEE)-

Al.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

ALFMEXAEREEYRE (AT E) R(WER)ZE(INASES
B BEREE) -

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
AlLAFMEAREEEDEE (BB R(MER)BRE(WAESES
B BIERMETE )

Al.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results

achieved.
Al S VR AR BER Z RS HE R ATIS AR

Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
AlGHMEEREREEBFERZY L  RIKEE SRR IERAEX
2o

2R ERHE

Bt é% : BXPTESGIE 5l R 5| &

(Page) (ETS)

62

69

69

69

69

63-65

63-65
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Aspect M

A2 Use of Resources

A2EJR(E

A3 The Environment
and Natural Resources

ARIBE N KAER

Content AE

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

—RRIREE

BRERER(BIERIR K REMEMED)BBUER -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

A2 1R REI D ERE RS HEERER(AE - mon) BFEE (ATE
FREAE)RBE(WABEEEN - §IARBTE )

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of

production volume, per facility).
A2 KB RRE(MMAGES BN BIERMETE) -

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results

achieved.
A2 3 BRI FA Azt &) M FTIS AR ©

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
A2.A%E it SRERE AR KR | AT A IR RE - DA R ARF 7K Ras 5t &1 K P
TR -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
A2 5HIR AT B EMEINAE (LANEETE ) k(ER) SFEEEMNG

=
=-°

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the issuers significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

—RRHEE

WIEZEIT ABIRIBERRAERENERNFZEREOR

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of operation activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

A B BB HIRIBERRAERNERATEREENER @
2178 -
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Aspect EMH

A4 Climate Change

A4S &

B1 Employment

Bl{EfE

B2 Health and Safety

B2fi2 R E

/EE*
IS}

0

Hp
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Content A& (Page) (ETE)

General Disclosure 51-52
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related

issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer

—RRIREE

BRIREHEE RIS HBEITAELEFENEARGHBSEENR

R

A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 53-58
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions

taken to manage them.

A B ERARRHBITAEATENEARGHBEE  RE

178 -

General Disclosure 71

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

— AR EE

BRF N RE BEREST TERS BRE FE#E 2k K

IR DA B B A 38 AR A Y

(@) BEUR: Kk

(b) BETFHBITABEAZENRMEEZLROINES -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 72
geographical region.

BL.IIRMR - EBBAEE - FicdR BB DR E AR -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical 73
region.

Bl.2#& MR Fhe#AR Rt B S HIEBRKLLE -

General Disclosure 74

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.
—MRIREE
ERAREZE2TERRERERESRBEEEEN
(@) B K&

(b) ETHETABEARTENHERERMRONES -
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Aspect BH Content AR (Page) (EI§)

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities in the past three 75

years (including the reporting year).
B2.lBA=F(BEERFE) AT THM AR E-

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 75
B2 2R TR ATERH-
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, 75-81

how they are implemented and monitored.
B2. 3l PRER VB R R B 2 2 4 it - A RMBAI T R EE R % o

B3 Development and General Disclosure 81-82
Training Policies on improving employee knowledge and skills for discharging

duties at work. Description of training activities.

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal

and external courses paid by the employer.
B3#E KIFH —MRIKER

EARAREEIT TIERE R AH RO EUR - #HEIES) -

& B EE  AREREE N B RNINERIE o

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 83
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). B

BI.1ZMRI REEHA(INRRERERE PRAEEES ) EHNXIIE
SR

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender 84
and employee category.

B3. 212t R BB ERIED - BREE TR AN T8 -

B4 Labor Standards General Disclosure 71
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labor.

B4% TR — BB
BREAMIEE Toksafl5 T -
(@) BR: &

(b) ETHETABEATENHERBIRERNES -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 71

avoid child and forced labor.
B4. 1f8 i 51 HBESE B A RS bE DA 2 2 T R oRHI&5 T o

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 71
discovered.

B4 24 M R E R ISAR BB A RIS R PR -
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Aspect EMH

B5 Supply Chain
Management

B5{R & 12

B6 Product
Responsibility

BeEMET
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Content A& (Page) (ETE)

General Disclosure 86-88
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain.

—RRHEE

EIRMHESEAIRIE KAt G R REER o

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 89
B5. 1zt @ &l D eV e 2RA -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number 87
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they

are implemented and monitored.

Bo.2t i A A R ER mERITEABHINHEERSEE -
ARBREBRIEITREER A

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and 88
social risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented

and monitored.

B5.3% il 5 78 74 Bl 4 FE 32 B EER ER AV IR 3 St & R b 9 1B 1] - LA SR 4B

AT REER T A

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 87
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and how

they are implemented and monitored.

BS54 FERE HIE R R 2 A IRIRE m RIS HI1EHI - LA K AERE
BMITRERNTA-

General Disclosure 90

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.

— AR EE

BRFMREERNBRBNREERELZ S BEE BEERLESFEURERK

TIVER) -

(@) BER: Kk

(b) BETFHBITABEAZENHMEEZLROINER -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls 92

for safety and health reasons.
Bo.lIE BB EXREMBE T AL MiEFEIERMARKAE DL

B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received 93

and how they are dealt with.
B6. 2B AN E mn R RS B SR 21 B LA SR B 73 0% -
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Aspect BH Content AR (Page) (EI§)

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 94

intellectual property rights.
B6. 3% 1l B 4 & M ARBE AN EE W B BB o

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 90-92

B6.4fE M E £ 1 E B K E S B AR -

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, 92-93
how they are implemented and monitored.

B6.5% i H B & EFHRE RALBBER - A RBBERITRERTE -

B7 Anti-corruption General Disclosure 95
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

B7RE)S —RR I EE
BRAMTIEEAES - B1R - WGERLRER ¢
(@) B &

(b) BTHETABEAZENHREZEZNROIMER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices 95
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period

and the outcomes of the cases.
B7.1RNERAAH BT ARHEEREWEFEENE S FHFARMFNH

ERSE A

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing 95

procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
B7 .25 [y #6481 AR AR T - A RABEI T REE R A

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and

staff.

B7. 3t mES &8 TIRHMN R EFHF
B8 Community General Disclosure 97-100
Investment Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities interests.

B8t IRE —MRIKER
ﬁE%LMiE/,\JKTﬁ EEMCHERENRREER IDHEZSRL
[ 7 & B IR
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 101-106

concerns, labor needs, health, culture, sport)

BRIFIERERE(WHE REEFE SIFHF K RBE X BF)

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 101-106
B8.2EH T HIEFrE AR (AN k) -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

China Foods Limited (the “Company” and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to achieving and
maintaining high standards of corporate governance to safeguarding
the interests of our shareholders, investors, customers and staff,
and enhance its corporate value and accountability. Directors of
the Company (the “Director(s)”) recognize the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structure, internal control and risk management
procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles of the CG Code and
complied with all the applicable Code Provisions throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022 (the “year”), save and except for
Code Provision C.2.1 which stipulated that the role of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Please refer to the section
headed “Chairman and Managing Director” for details.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of
the Company for the purpose of complying with the CG Code and
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices of
the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. The Company
has made specific enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the year, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.

TEER®RSE

TERBERAR(ARREREME R
BARE [ REE ) BUTER R 152K 2ER
EEER URERR KEELE TFPKE
TzMERRFAECEEERFAERS K
AEEF((EFDHABRENERER
TERMANEE 2 EERE AT KA
AEERFNEZEEMERARNEE
Bl o

TEERER

ARAMERERRERIREFEBRER
FRAERAREZESZ EMHRAT EHRA])
M+ IKEEERTRINIEEXERT
8 1) Py R Al Ko <7 BiME S (=7 BIERST )
REE-

W B £2022F12A318 1 F E( & F
B ARrl—BERAEEERTRMNRA
I 38 <5 H P A 8 A 0 ST RIGSC - HEST RIERSC
CR1kIN EREEFEETHEARNAE
BAER.  WAREH— ARKREI FEH
SR ETFRESHLE | —F-

EXReBEERIUEBEARARFNER A
HECEEETARFRFARRRKFD
EREBER -

EEREHEEENESRS

AR BB _ET AR B 8+ PR £
TABFETEFXHHRETRNRE
SAMERARRESTETES RS NE
ZESFSTA e ARRIERMEESEHAFE
ERBEARETRESTAFELALE
o EREFRR NERAFEA—HE
SERESTAIEIIZ TR E -
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The Company has also adopted a code for securities transactions
by relevant employees (the “Employees Trading Code”) based on
the Model Code concerning dealings by relevant employees in the
securities of the Company. Relevant employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Group
are required to comply with the Employees Trading Code in respect
of their dealings in the securities of the Company. The terms of
the Employees Trading Code are no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code. During the year, the Company
has not received any non-compliance report from any of such
employees.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board, led by the chairman, is responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company, and be collectively responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and policies, reviewing
and monitoring financial and operating performance, reviewing the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems,
supervising and managing management’s performance of the
Company, and approval of matters or transactions of a material
nature or those requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules. The
Board takes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company and implementation of the strategies
and policies set by the Board to the management under the
leadership of the managing director.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the role of
chairman and chief executive should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Qing Lijun, who has been the managing
director of the Company (“Managing Director”, being the chief
executive of the Company) since January 2020, was appointed
as the chairman of the Board following the step down of Mr. Chen
Lang from the position of chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) on
29 September 2022. Mr. Qing Lijun performs the dual roles of
both Chairman and Managing Director.

The Board believes that it is in the interest of the Company and
its shareholders for Mr. Qing Lijun to assume the responsibilities
of such positions, given that Mr. Qing Lijun has extensive experience
and management of the Group as an executive Director and
Managing Director, and it will facilitate the execution of the Group’s
business and boost effectiveness of its operations.
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The Board also considers that such arrangement will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management as the Board comprises six other experienced
individuals including one executive director, two non-executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors. In
addition, for major transactions of the Group, the Company will
consult Board committees and senior management as and when
appropriate.

Composition of the Board

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its
business needs.

At present, the Board comprises seven Directors, namely, Mr. Qing
Lijun as an executive Director, the managing Director and the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Shen Xinwen as an executive Director,
Mr. Chen Zhigang and Mr. Chen Gang as non-executive Directors,
and Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred, Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben and Ms.
Leung Ka Lai, Ada, SBS as independent non-executive Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other. The composition
of the Board has satisfied the requirements under Rules 3.10(1)
and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Board to have at
least three independent non-executive directors which represents
more than one-third of the Board, and at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive director an annual confirmation
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
has assessed their independence and considered that all
independent non-executive directors are independent based on
the independent criteria in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules set out in the confirmation letter, the
noninvolvement of independent non-executive directors in the daily
operation and management of the Group and the absence of any
relationship which would interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgement.
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Board Independence

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board, and the implementation
and effectiveness of such mechanisms will be reviewed annually.
The mechanisms include the following:

- at least one-third of the Board members being independence
non-executive directors;

- all independent non-executive directors will be appointed to
other Board committees as far as practicable to ensure
independent views are available;

- the nomination committee must strictly adhere to the
nomination policy of the Company and the independence
assessment criteria as set out in the Listing Rules with regard
to the nomination and appointment of independent non-
executive directors, and the nomination committee is
mandated to assess annually the independence of all
independence non-executive directors by reference to the
independence criteria as set out in the Listing Rule to ensure
that they can continually exercise independent judgement;

- all Directors are entitled to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters to be
discussed at board meetings. They can also seek assistance
from the company’s company secretary and, where necessary,
independent advice from external professional advisers at
the Company’s expenses;

- all Directors (including independent non-executive directors)
shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any board
resolution approving any contract or arrangement in which
such Director or any of his/her close associates has a material
interest;

- the Chairman of the Board shall meet with the independent
non-executive directors at least annually without the presence
of other Directors; and

- no equity-based remuneration with performance, related

elements will be granted to independent non-executive
directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (available on the
Company’s website (www.chinafoodsltd.com) (the “Company
Website”) in August 2013 setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Board believes that a diversity of
perspectives can be achieved through consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, work and professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All appointment of the members
of the Board will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits of the candidates and the contribution they will
bring to the Board. The Company recognizes and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The nomination committee has primary responsibility
for identifying and nominating, for approval by the Board, suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and, in
carrying out this responsibility, will give adequate consideration to
the board diversity policy.

The Board currently comprises seven members, of which six are
male and one is female. The educational background of the Board
members cover finance, accounting, business management,
economics, chemistry, sociology, law and physics. They also have
different professional knowledge and work experience. The valuable
experience and expertise they bring to our business are critical
to the long-term development of the Group.

The biographies of the Board members are set out in “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” on pages 27 to 36 of this annual
report. To the best knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors
are involved in any relationship as defined in Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has also maintained on the Company
Website and the website of Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) (the “HKEX Website”) an updated list
of its Directors identifying their roles and functions. Composition
of the Board, by category of directors, is explicitly identified in all
the Company’s corporate communications.

At present, the Board considers the diversity of the Board to be
sufficient.
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The Company also places emphasis on diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. Among the senior managers,
two are male and one is female. Details on the gender ratio of
the Group can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 37 to 112 of this annual report.

The Board will from time to time review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Nomination, Appointment and Election/Re-Election of
Directors

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (available on the
Company Website) in November 2018 which provides a framework
and sets standards to assist the nomination committee in identifying
and nominating suitable candidates for the Board’s consideration
and to ensure that the Board members has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

Pursuant to bye-law 111 of the Bye-laws, each director (including
those appointed for specific terms) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and the retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election. Director who is appointed either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director to the Board
shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company
after his/her appointment and be subject to election at such
meeting pursuant to bye-law 94 of the Bye-laws. Pursuant to the
CG Code, any further re-appointment of an independent
nonexecutive director, who has served the Board for more than
nine years, will be subject to separate resolution to be approved
by the shareholders. Information of Director who shall retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
is set out on pages 144 and 145 of this annual report.

All Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) were appointed for specific terms of three
years and all existing Directors have signed formal appointment
letters with the Company with respect to their directorship with
the Company.
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Board Meeting and General Meeting

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year
at approximately quarterly intervals with additional Board meetings
as and when required.

Notices for regular Board meetings or Board committee meetings
are sent to Directors or Board committee members at least fourteen
(14) days prior to such meetings, Directors or Board committee
members were invited to include any matters which they thought
appropriate in the agenda. For ad hoc meetings, shorter notice
may be given.

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board or other
committees of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all relevant rules and regulations for meeting
proceedings are followed. Board papers were sent to the Directors
at least three (3) days before the intended dates of Board meetings
or Board committee meetings (or other agreed period).

It is the practice of the Company to record in sufficient detail of
matters considered and decisions reached, including concerns
raised or dissenting views expressed, by the Board and Board
committees. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings
and/or Board committee meetings are sent to Directors or committee
members (as the case may be) for their comment and records
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the
meetings. The decision of the Board can be made by written
resolutions.

All minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
kept by the company secretary and are available to all Directors
for inspection. Every Board member has unrestricted access to
the advice and services of the company secretary to enable them
to discharge their duties effectively, and has the liberty to seek
external professional advice if so required. The cost of procuring
these professional services will be borne by the Company.

In case a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the
Board has determined to be material, such matter will be discussed
through an actual meeting and will not be dealt with by written
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict
of interest will be present at such meetings.
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Directors play active role in the Company’s meetings through
contribution of their opinions and active participating in discussion.
During the year, other than resolutions passed by all the Directors
in writing, a total of four Board meetings and an annual general
meeting at which the external auditor attended were held and the
attendance of such meetings by each Director is set out below.
In the following table, the figures in brackets means the total
number of meetings held during each Director’s tenure throughout

EEFERRREBANER2ETR B
AANEZLEEEZNAC -AFERN-
BHEEEERZTEENSTERAIME
THREREGEH N —RAIMNEZBED T
FOBRREAFAS BUEERZRFERL
HEBREINT - TERME - FERAK
FHERAFEASEFTECHREETHE
AR

the year:
Annual
General
Board Meeting
Meetings (Note 6)
B3R
BExg BAEXRE
Name of Director EEng 28 (Ktete)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Qing Lijun (Chairman) BT hRAE(EE) 4/(4) 1/(1)
Mr. Shen Peng (Note 1) LR AE (B i) 3/(3) 1/(1)
Mr. Shen Xinwen (Note 2) ST A (KT EE2) 1/(1) N/A i A
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chen Lang (Note 3) PR BA 9 L8 (I 7E3) 2/(3) 1/(1)
Mr. Chen Zhigang PR A M 5 A 1/(4) 1/(1)
Mr. Chen Gang BeR [ 9 A2 2/(4) 1/(1)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark (Note 4) WL (H17E4) 1/(1) 1/(1)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred TR L E 4/(4) 1/(1)
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben BRR A 4/(4) 1/(1)
Ms. Leung Ka Lai, Ada, sBs (Note 5) RREZT(wemes)(Hits) 3/(3) N/A i
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Notes:

1. Mr. Shen Peng resigned as an executive Director with effect from
23 September 2022.

2. Mr. Shen Xinwen was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 29 September 2022.

3. Mr. Chen Lang resigned as a non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board with effect from 29 September 2022.

4. Mr. Stephen Edward Clark resigned as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the 2022
annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2022.

b. Ms. Leung Ka Lai, Ada, sBs was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the 2022
annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2022.

6. The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 7 June
2022, and more details are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 29 April 2022 and the poll results announcement of the
Company dated 7 June 2022.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as directors and of the business and activities of
the Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive from the
chairman of the Company or executive Directors’ briefings on the
operations and business of the Group and an induction package
to ensure that he has a proper understanding on his responsibilities
under the relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the company secretary disseminates
information on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to the Directors to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. The Company will organise seminars on
specific topics of significance or interest for Directors and
management staff and sponsors Directors to attend professional
development seminars or other programmes where necessary.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors during the year is set out
below:

RESRENRE EFRANFERAMEX
B ZBEHINIT ¢

Attending briefings,
seminars, conference
and/or

reading materials
relevant to the
director’s duties

and responsibilities

SHEEKE  FIE-

AREGER R
MEREERER
Name of Director EEHA BB ERNER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Qing Lijun (Chairman) BBk (EE) v
Mr. Shen Peng SRS A (F220224E9 B 23 H BT )

(resigned on 23 September 2022) v
Mr. Shen Xinwen SEET S (R2022F9 A29B & 1(T)

(was appointed on 29 September 2022) v/
Non-executive Directors FEITES
Mr. Chen Lang (Ex-chairman) BREASE & (BT )

(resigned on 29 September 2022) (H2022F9 A29H &) v
Mr. Chen Zhigang BRI 5 A v
Mr. Chen Gang FeR [ 9 A= v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS A (20226 A7HBHE)

(resigned on 7 June 2022) -
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred FBHLAE v
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben BER AL v/
Ms. Leung Ka Lai, Ada, sBs DPRBUT (REHEE)

(was appointed on 7 June 2022) (A2022F6 A7THEZ ) v/

Directors’ Insurance
During the year, the Company arranged appropriate insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group.

Corporate Governance Function

As regards the functions of corporate governance, the Board is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report contained in the annual report of the
Company.
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During the year, the Board has performed the corporate functions
by reviewing the Company’s Corporate Governance practices.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely, the executive
committee, the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the environmental, social and
governance committee, to oversee corresponding aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All committees of Board have defined terms of
reference.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Currently, the executive committee consists of two executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Qing Lijun who was the chairman of the
executive committee, and Mr. Shen Xinwen.

The terms of reference of the executive committee are available
on the Company Website. The primary responsibility of the executive
committee is to deal with and supervise the day-to-day business
operations, management and administration of the Group. There
are no minimum meeting requirements and the executive committee
shall meet as and when necessary for proper discharge of its
duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the remuneration committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben who is
the chairman of the remuneration committee, Mr. Li Hung Kwan,
Alfred and Ms. Leung Ka Lai, sBS.

The terms of the remuneration committee are available on the
Company Website and the HKEX Website. The duties of the
remuneration committee are mainly to make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors and senior management and make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and the remuneration packages of individual non-
executive Directors.
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During the year, other than resolutions passed by all members of
the remuneration committee in writing, three meetings of the
remuneration committee were held and the attendance of the
meeting by each committee member is set out below. In the
following table, the figures in brackets means the total number of
meetings held during each member’s tenure throughout the year:

Ea

AERER HRR2EFHEESSERER
BOBERZEIN FTHEESRITT=ZRE
& BUZEeNB2HFEBREINT -
BERME - ERABFERAFREAEK
EREEHMBTHNEREE:

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEEREMA HE/GBRE

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben (Chairman) BERk s (EE) 3/(3)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS (20226 A7HBHT)

(resigned on 7 June 2022) /(1)
Mr. Chen Lang FREASE A4 (FA20224F9 A 29 H BHT)

(resigned on 29 September 2022) 2/(2)
Mr. Qing Lijun (resigned on 8 November 2022) %iﬁf‘ﬁi(ﬁZOZZillHSE%ﬂf) 0/(1)
Ms. Leung Ka Lai, Ada, sBsS RRBLLTHREHES)

(was appointed on 7 June 2022) (R2022F6 A7HEZT) 2/(2)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred 245 A4 (R20224F 11 ASHEZET)

(was appointed on 8 November 2022) N/A T3

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
remuneration committee during the year:

o made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of a non-executive director and an executive
director for their new term of appointments;

o reviewed the remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management in year 2022;

o made a recommendation to the Board on the payment
incentive awards of 2021 performance bonus to executive
directors and senior management;

o made a recommendation to the Board on the payment in
accordance with the (2019-2021) Three-year Term Incentive
Scheme for Executive Directors and Senior Management;
and

° made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of a new independent non-executive Director and
a new non-executive Director.

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s directors for the

year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the note 37 to the
financial statements of this annual report.
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Details of the emoluments (including basic salary and performance
bonus paid to the senior management (excluding executive
Directors of the Company) in year 2022 by band is as follows:
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R2022F X TERAEEAB(TEIEAR
RERTEFT)NFTMH( ERELATERSE
WS ) BERFHINWAT -

SR

Emolument Band

Number of Individuals

A

RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000

AFR#3,000,001% A E#3,500,000 3

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the nomination committee consists of three members,
including an executive Director and the chairman of the Board,
namely Mr. Qing Lijun, who is the chairman of the nomination
committee and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are available
on the Company Website and the HKEX Website. The duties of
the nomination committee are mainly to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and
length of service) of the Board and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; identify suitable candidates for appointment as
directors; make recommendations to the Board on appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors; and assess the independence of independent
nonexecutive Directors and review whether non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are spending
enough time to fulfill their duties annually.

In reviewing the Board composition, the nomination committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the board
diversity policy.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
nomination committee would consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with regards to the benefits of the diversity
of the Board and made reference to the nominate policy of the
Company.
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During the year, four meetings of the nomination committee were
held and the attendance by each committee member is set out
below. In the following table, the figures in brackets means the
total number of meetings held during each member’s tenure
throughout the year:

AEEAN - RHZBEERTTOREH
NERBEKE 2 HFEBEREINIT - 5L T &K
mE  BRABFERAFRATKEET
HIRSITHERA

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEEREMA HE/GBRE
Mr. Qing Lijun (Chairman) B ERE(EE)

(appointed on 29 September 2022) (FRA2022F9 H29HEZA(T) 1/(1)
Mr. Chen Lang (Ex-chairman) BREASE & (BT )

(resigned on 29 September 2022) (H2022F9 A29H &) 3/(3)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred TSt 4/(4)
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben BER L 4/(4)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the nomination RAZEENEAFERNNTHERZOT -

committee during the year:

o reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
gender, age, cultural and education background, work or
professional experience, skills and knowledge, and length
of service) of the Board;

o reviewed the time required from non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) and
assessed whether they are spending enough time to fulfill

their duties;

o assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° made recommendations to the Board on the re-election of

a non-executive Director at the 2022 annual general meeting;

o made recommendations to the Board on the appointments
of an executive Director and an independent non-executive
Director;

o made a recommendation to the Board on the change of the

chairman of the Board; and

o made a recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of an executive Director.
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ENVIRONMENTAL,
COMMITTEE

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Board resolved to establish the environmental, social and
governance committee on 1 June 2021. Currently, the environmental,
social and governance committee consists of three members,
including an executive Director, namely Mr. Shen Xinwen, who is
the chairman of the environmental, social and governance
committee, a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Zhigang
and an independent non-executive Director, namely Mr. Mok Wai
Bun, Ben.

The primary duties of the environmental, social and governance
committee are comprehensively formulate and review the
administrative policies, strategies and structures of the Group’s
environmental, social and governance, review environmental, social
and governance related policies, regulations and trends, and to
provide decision-making advice to the Board of Directors regarding
the Group’s environmental, social and governance strategies and
operations, to ensure the company to comply with requirements
of applicable laws and regulations; monitor and supervise the
formulation and implementation of the Group’s environmental,
social and governance objectives; identify external environmental,
social and governance trends, risks and opportunities, etc. The
terms of reference the environmental, social and governance
committee are available on the Company Website.

During the year, two meetings of the environmental, social and
governance committee were held and the attendance of the
meeting by each committee member is set out below. In the
following table, the figures in brackets means the total number of
meetings held during each member’s tenure throughout the year:
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RMEEE - RE HERERZES ZH&%
RBEFBEAERRRPLER -

REER -RR HENERZERETT
MRS {ﬁééﬁ}}ﬂ?“Ztﬂﬂ el
MT - TERME  BRABRFERAFE
NERBEEHRBITHSHAE -

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEENERS HEEERRE
Mr. Shen Xinwen (Chairman) TSR ()

(was appointed on 29 September 2022) (20229 A29 B EE L) N/A NiE
Mr. Shen Peng (Ex-chairman) IR AE(FTEE)

(resigned on 23 September 2022) (FR2022%9 A23HEHT) 2/(2)

Mr. Chen Zhigang PeR = Bl 5 A 1/(2)

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben REDRTE 2/(2)
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the
environmental, social and governance committee during the year:

° reviewed the environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
report for the year of 2021;

° reviewed the materiality issues of ESG report;
° reviewed on the staffing of the ESG report working group;
° reviewed the indicator system for ESG reporting; and

° reviewed the indicators for ESG in terms of environment,
safety and quality.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the audit committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred, who is the
chairman of the audit committee, Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben and Ms.
Leung Ka Lai, Ada, SBS.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on
the Company Website and the HKEX Website. The duties of the
audit committee are mainly to assist the Board to ensure objectivity
and credibility of financial reporting, to review financial controls,
internal controls and risk management systems and to consider
any findings of major investigations on risk management and
internal control matters and response from the management. The
audit committee’s responsibilities also include making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of its resignation or dismissal. The audit committee is further
authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within its terms
of reference, and may make recommendations to the Board to
take appropriate actions emanating from such investigations.
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Besides having discussed with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the auditing and accounting matters and reporting
obligations before the commencement of the audit for the year,
the audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance of the meetings by each committee member is set out
below. In the following table, the figures in brackets means the
total number of meetings held during each member’s tenure

throughout the year:

B AN JE A 88 T AE R 46 A B2 ) BS 2 2R A
MBI MBIEEZ LGS EEUAR
ERERSEIN BREZESHEAFRESR
TTMREZH BUREEKBEZHFERER
T B IRME - FERABFIHERA
FERNBEXREBETHRARITHNGHAR:

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEEREER HE SRR
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred (Chairman) RS E(FE)

(re-designated as the Chairman on 7 June (R2022F6 A7TBERATALE)

2022) 2/(2)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark (Ex-Chairman) M BEE(HIEE)

(resigned on 7 June 2022) (R2022F6 A7HBHT) 1/(1)
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben BRI E 2/(2)
Ms. Leung Ka Lai, Ada, sBS RREZLLT(HeHeEs)

(was appointed on 7 June 2022) (R2022F6 A7HEZT) /(1)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the audit

committee during the year:

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
approval of the 2021 annual results announcement and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021;

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
approval of the 2022 interim results announcement, and
the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2022;

reviewed matters relating to the Company’s financial and
accounting policies and practices;

reviewed continuing connected transactions of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and for the
six months ended 30 June 2022;
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° reviewed and assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes;

o reviewed the internal audit results for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the six months ended 30 June 2022
and the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and considered whether any major
control deficiency had been identified;

° reviewed and approved the internal audit plan for the year
2022;

° made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditor of the

Company for the year 2022; and

o made recommendation to the Board on the adoption of the
whistleblowing policy and anti-corruption and bribery policy.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or to be payable to the Company’s
external auditor are set out below:

. e R 4 AN 5 B R K B 5 T R
RETENER BIEERERES
B AR B THAEZMEIRIER
BRH

o EHHE2021F12A3I8 EFE R
B E202296 A30A 1L/ E A #y A &P
BER URAEENEREEN
NEEZERGHNERE XERRD
TR EREITRRK

o EHAHIME2022F NELIEFTE ;

o BEBELBUKESIMEBAAAR
RAER02FEWINEZ BB M E =
SRRLEBEZ R

o BUERMBMBERNRE)S RHBEEBUR
AEESRLEREZ-

2 E: ] b

REFR  FAARRBIMNEZEEI D 3k
JEX VB REsImT

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered PR RTE B ERNEA

RMB’000

ARET T

Annual audit services FEET R 2,800

Other assurance services* B b 2 e AR % 1,100

Total BF 3,900
* Such services included, among others, results announcement *

review, compliance review relating to continuing connected
transactions.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors, which is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of annual financial statements, receive monthly management
accounts and updates on the Group’s performance and financial
position and prospects prepared by management of the Company
on a regular basis. Management of the Company was required to
provide a detailed report(s) and explanation to enable the Board
to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put forward for its approval. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
adopted appropriate accounting policies consistently, made prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates. The Board was not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that might cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company
on a going-concern basis.

The Board is committed to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s affairs to its shareholders
and the public in a timely manner. The annual and interim results
of the Company are published in accordance with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The reporting responsibilities of the Directors and the external
auditor are further set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
of this annual report. For other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules are disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company is committed to ensuring compliance with regulatory
requirements under the Listing Rules, applicable laws and
regulations in handling connected transactions. Accordingly, the
Company implemented various internal control mechanisms to
capture and monitor connected transactions to ensure that
connected transactions are conducted under normal commercial
terms or on terms that are fair and reasonable and properly
disclosed and (if necessary) approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules.
Connected persons will be required to abstain from voting in
general meetings which considering the relevant connected
transactions. Details of the connected transactions of the Company
during the year are set out in the “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, and for reviewing the effectiveness of these systems
through the audit committee of the Board.

Sound risk management and internal control systems are based
on the Company’s good business ethics and culture, the quality
and capabilities of its employees, the direction of the Board, and
also the efficiency and capabilities of management.

Management of the Company, under the Board supervision, is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Group has established a sound and comprehensive risk
management and internal control system, formed a systematic
and effective system on segregation of duty and three lines of
defense in risk management, with each of the business units as
the first line of defense; the business supervision and inspection
departments at all levels as the second line of defense; and internal
audit department and supervision department as the third line of
defense.

The Group has established its risk management and internal control
systems based on the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organisation
of the Treadway Commission) risk management framework.

The Group’s risk management covers the Company’s headquarters
and its subsidiaries, covering various risks faced in operation and
management, and focusing on and continuously monitor the key
risks.

According to the risk management strategy, the Group conducts
a comprehensive risk assessment every two years in combination
with the Group’s strategic and business objectives and changes
in the market environment. Identify major risks that adversely
affect the achievement of strategic objectives and prioritise the
identified risks based on a set of standard criteria and formulate
a risk mitigation plan to monitor the risks to an acceptable level.

The Group conducted a comprehensive risk assessment in 2021.
The internal audit department summarised and sorted the
assessment results, and selected the top ten risks with the highest
scores as the main risks faced by the Group in 2021-2022, and
formulated corresponding monitoring measures. These risks mainly
cover market competition, safe production, cost pressure, China-
United States relations, and talent supply.
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The Group has consistently dealt with and monitored the major
risks that were assessed and identified the responsible departments
and accountable persons, the management process and the
corresponding reporting mechanism.

All bottling plants and departments had implemented risk
management measures in a serious and proactive manner, and
relevant major risks have been effectively controlled. There has
been no material risk event occurred within the Group in 2022.

The Group’s monitoring work usually consists of:

Analysis and review: through conducting annual budget and
strategic plan reviews and other forms to set the Company’s
development goals, and determine business plans and development
strategies. Senior management holds regular general managers
meetings and operation analysis meetings to discuss major
strategies, policy and overall issues of the Company. Each affiliated
company holds regular internal management meetings to analyze
budget execution, sales management, production management
and risk control matters.

Work management: reports of work are reviewed by management
personnel who are responsible for the relevant functions.

Physical monitoring: ensuring the safety of equipment, inventory
and other assets, and conducting regular inspections.

Analysis of operational indicators: conducting analysis of operational
and financial data on regular basis to ensure early identification
of existing problems, so that any necessary rectification works can
be done in a timely manner.

Separation of duties: responsibilities of employees are divided
according to the principle of separation of duties, so that the
checks and balances are strengthened and the probability and
risk of errors are reduced.

The Group has established effective systems and procedures to
ensure that employees are able to identify, document and report
on operational, financial and compliance information while
performing their duties.

The Group has established an independent internal audit
department and a supervision department which report directly to
the senior management and the audit committee of the Company.
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In 2022, the internal audit department completed the annual audit
plan and audit requirements approved by the management and
the audit committee. Based on risk assessments and the needs
of the management, the internal audit department conducted
internal control audits and special audits in the important risk
areas of the Group. It has focused on the rectification of problems
found during the audit, and have effectively promoted management
improvements and reduced operating risks.

The internal audit department assists the audit committee to assess
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and attends meetings of the audit committee at
least twice a year, and reports on the work it has undertaken and
its principal audit findings.

The Group has also designed and formulated appropriate policies
and control measures to safeguard its assets against unauthorized
use and disposition, and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations. The Company maintains reliable
accounting records, and financial information in accordance with
the relevant accounting standards and reporting requirements,
and properly identifies and manages risks that may affect the
performance of the Company.

Such systems and internal controls are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
They can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

In respect of 2022, the Board has reviewed, through the audit
committee, the work of the internal audit department, and its audit
findings in relation to the risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance controls),
and considers the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are effective and adequate, and that the Company
had complied with the Code Provision on risk management and
internal control. The qualifications and experience of the staff of
the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions, and the training programmes, budgets and the resources
available to these functions have been reviewed and are considered
to be adequate.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has formulated the “Inside Information Disclosure
Policies and Guidelines of China Foods Limited”, which has set
out clearly the procedures for the identification, report and
disclosure of inside information to ensure that the Company is
able to disclose inside information properly on a timely, fair and
lawful manner, and keep confidential before such information is
approved appropriately, so as to enhance the market transparency
and provide better protection for shareholders and investors.

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Company has adopted a whistle-blowing policy (available on
the Company Website) on 23 August 2022. The policy is intended
to encourage and assist its employees and other stakeholders (e.g.
customers, contractors, suppliers, creditors, and debtors, etc.) who
deal with the Group to report any misconduct, malpractice, or
irregularity within the Group through a confidential reporting
channel (to the extent possible). The Group will handle the reports
with care and treat the whistleblowers’ concerns fairly and properly.
Employees of the Group are also assured of protection against
unfair dismissal, victimization, or unwarranted disciplinary action.
When reports are received by the chairman of the audit committee
and/or the general manager of the internal audit department, the
audit committee/the internal audit department will then evaluate
the validity and relevance of the concerns raised, and decide if
a full investigation is necessary. If an investigation is warranted,
an investigation team will be appointed by the audit committee/
the internal audit department to look into the reported matter, and
the investigation report will be reported to the audit committee.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY POLICY

An anti-corruption policy (available on the Company Website) was
adopted by the Company on 23 August 2022 and the policy sets
out the guidelines and responsibilities of directors, employees,
those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the
Group and third parties. The Group is committed to upholding
and maintaining the highest standards of integrity, honesty, fairness,
impartiality and transparency in conducting its business and
operation. The Group will investigate the reported matter according
to the procedures set out in the anti-corruption and bribery policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1> % & 4 # &

REHE

ArAeHlE(FBERMAERARARHER
WEBRRNIES]) AR - RN E
NEHENERF  AERAN QRN Z S
B RERAZFRBAREL  LHEEE
PO EH SRR RE - MRIT T 58 5
BN ARBR MR EEREEERE

HBHR

QBB R2022F8 A23H BN T B3R
FR(AERNRB M LB )  ZHEKE
EEMBHEREREULEREBBEEKLN
HuFSHEEDINER A e
B EEANESAS)ZRJREEAREN
BREE REAEBREIMATETE £
M ERITA NEEBEEERESR I
ERF - REHEERBFARDOET - K
EEeRREETEXZITATHE BE
REEMLCREEY BEEZREESXIRES
AR RE I ELIBU R E R  BREE
g/ NEDBTEATRBFEENF REM
HEE WATREEEHETEAEBAE - 10
ENBHEITHE BEREES  NEBEZE
THRAEEHRREEETAL  TEATR
EEREREEG -

RESRERBUR

RN R HR2022F8 H23H KM T R & BUK
R(AIEARBEIL EER) ZBEHI T
B BT KRREEAURBRIFTAFZH
TEMABME=ZTTWNESIMEE KK
B B0 PO 1 R SR A NN A8 Y By BR A I AR
REFRENHE HE QF REMER
€ - REBBRIEREBARBERBERT T
HOREFHERERRFARS

FEERAERLTE Fik 2022

135



136

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1 3 &8 ¥ &

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda has been the company secretary of the
Company since 2004. During the year, Ms. Liu undertook not less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training to update her
skills and knowledge.

All Directors may seek the advice and assistance of the company
secretary in respect of their duties and the effective operation of
the Board and Board committees. The company secretary is also
responsible for facilitating good information flow among the
Directors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
shareholders shall have a right to request the Board to convene
a special general meeting of the Company (“SGM”). Shareholders
holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paidup
capital of the Company may send a written requisition to the Board
to request for convening a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must state the purposes of the meeting and
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company. The
Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a SGM, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three (3) months from the said date.

The SGM convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in

the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which SGMs
are to be convened by Directors.
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Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at
a general meeting of the Company:

(a) any member(s) representing not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the total voting rights of all the members of the Company;
or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal desired to be put forward
at the general meeting, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like from each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company, together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto, not less than six
weeks before the general meeting (in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution) or not less than one week before the general
meeting (in case of any other requisition). The Company would
take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangement once
a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Director’'s Nomination and Election by
Shareholders

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at 33/F., COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, (a) a written notice signed by such
shareholder (other than the proposed person) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting of his/her intention to propose
such person for election; and (b) a written notice by the proposed
person indicating his/her willingness to be elected together with
the personal information of the proposed person as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and consent of publication of
his/her personal information.

The period during which the aforesaid notice may be given shall
be seven days (or such other period as determined and announced
by the Board). Such period will commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
once valid notice is received.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company attaches great importance to communicate with
shareholders, both individual and institutional, and a shareholders
communication policy was adopted by the Company on 30 March
2012 to ensure the shareholders and potential investors are
provided with the Company’s information in a timely and effective
manner.

The means to communicate with the shareholders and the
investment community used by the Company including the
following:

i corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are made available to shareholders in
both printed form and electronic means through the Company
Website and the HKEX Website;

ii. corporate announcements are published on the Company
Website and the HKEX Website;

iii. corporate information is made available on the Company
Website;

V. annual and special general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and management executives; and

V. Tricor Progressive Limited, the branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong serves the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and
concerns to the Company, either by post or facsimiles, together
with his/her contact details, such as postal address, email address
or fax number, via the company secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

The Company Secretary
China Foods Limited

33/F., COFCO Tower

262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2833 0388
Fax: (852) 2833 0380

Having considered the multiple channels of communication and
engagement in place, the Board is satisfied that shareholder
communication policy has been properly in place during the year
and is effective.
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Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s memorandum of association
and bye-laws during the year. A copy of the latest consolidated
version of the memorandum of association and bye-laws is available
on the Company Website and the HKEX Website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We have always believed that maintaining a high standard, effective
and multi-channel communication system and ensuring the
transparency and timeliness of information disclosure enables
investors to accurately understand the latest developments of the
Group. It also helps to enhance investors’ confidence and
shareholders’ value.

Our strategic objectives of investor relations function have been
clearly defined as follows:

1) to raise the profile of the Company as a leading participant
in the industry, that is in line with our strategic positioning
within the group of COFCO Corporation;

2) to build a long-term and trusting shareholder base;

3) to enhance the knowledge of our investors about the
Company; and

4) to understand the key concerns of the investment community
and provide timely feedback to our management, and to
make constant improvement based on the constructive
feedback.

Interactions between the Company and the investor community:

We believe effective communication and fair information disclosure
builds investor confidence, and also facilitates constructive
feedbacks for continuous improvement.

In 2022, apart from disclosing transparent and fair financial and
operational information in annual and interim reports and having
direct communicate with shareholders at annual and special
general meetings, we have also effectively bridging the Company
and the investment community through:

° Interactive communications between our management and
investors/analysts directly at post-results briefings, investor
annual conferences/seminar and regular investor meetings;
and

° Collection of market feedback, such as research reports and
market views, for the review of our management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased
to present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “year”),
which were approved by the Board on 29 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Currently, the Company through its subsidiaries operates beverage
business. There were no changes in the nature of the Group’s
principle activities during the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s business performance of the year, a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year, as well as the Group’s future business
outlook can be found in the sections headed “Statement of the
Chairman and Managing Director”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and “Notes to Financial Statements” in this report. Such
review and discussion form parts of this report of the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s main operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries operating in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
while the Company itself is incorporated in Bermuda with its shares
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group’s
operations are regulated by the applicable laws and regulations
of Bermuda, Hong Kong and PRC. For the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report, the Board was not aware
of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company.

Please refer to the discussions in this report, the “Corporate
Governance Report” and the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” for further details of the Group’s compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In view of the Board, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year, save and except
for code provision C.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should not be performed by the same individual.
Details of the Company’s work in corporate governance during the
year are disclosed in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
113 to 139 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
is contained in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as of that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 166
to 260.

There was no interim dividend declared for the six months ended
30 June 2022 (30 June 2021: NIL).

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.117 (equivalent to HK13.3 cents) (31 December 2022:
RMBO0.102 (equivalent to HK12.5 cents)) per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 December 2021, subject to the approval
obtained at the annual general meeting to be held on Tuesday, 6
June 2023. The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022 will be distributed on or around Friday, 7 July
2023 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 16 June 2023.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement made on 9 June
2013, the Company received the approvals of State Administration
of Taxation of the People’s Republic of China which confirmed
that (i) the Company is regarded as a Chinese resident enterprise;
and (ii) relevant enterprise income tax policies shall be applicable
to the Company starting from 1 January 2013. Thus, the Company
will withhold 10% enterprise income tax when it distributes the
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 to non-
resident enterprise shareholders of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 1 June 2023 to
Tuesday, 6 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Progressive Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31
May 2023.
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For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 15 June 2023 to Friday, 16 June 2023,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. The ex-dividend date will be Tuesday, 13 June
2023. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Progressive Limited, at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 14 June 2023.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on page 261 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy in November 2018.
Pursuant to the dividend policy, the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to allow
shareholders to share the Company’s profits and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the shareholders
of the Company. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board
shall also take into account, inter alia, the Group’s financial results,
the overall financial position of the Group, the relevant financial
covenants of the Group, liquidity position and capital requirement
of the Group, surplus received from the Company’s subsidiaries
and any other factors that the Board deem appropriate. The
Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws,
rules and regulations in the Bermuda, Hong Kong and the
Company’s memorandum and association and bye-laws (the “Bye-
laws”).

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/
or modify the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at
any time or from time to time.
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SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s authorised or issued
share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company and its subsidiaries have no share option scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately RMB2,720,420,000,
of which RMB327,275,000 has been proposed as a final dividend
for the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movement in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 16
to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, 6.97% of the Group’s total sales were attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers. Approximately 68.22% of
the Group’s total purchases were attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers, with the largest supplier accounting for
approximately 32.12%.
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Apart from the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, COFCO
Corporation (“COFCQ”), which is one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers, none of the directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) or
any of their close associates or any shareholders (which, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
other four largest suppliers or the five largest customers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Current Board Members

Executive Directors:
Mr. Qing Lijun (Chairman)

(appointed as Chairman on 29 September 2022)
Mr. Shen Xinwen (appointed on 29 September 2022)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Zhigang
Mr. Chen Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben

Ms. Leung Ka Lai Ada, SBS (appointed on 7 June 2022)

Ex-Directors
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
(resigned on 7 June 2022)
Mr. Shen Peng (resigned on 23 September 2022)
Mr. Chen Lang (resigned on 29 September 2022)

All Directors including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors are appointed with specific terms.

Each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years as required by bye-law 111(A) of the Bye-
laws. Accordingly, Mr. Qing Lijun, Mr. Chen Zhigang and Mr. Li
Hung Kwan, Alfred will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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According to bye-law 94 of the Bye-laws, any director appointed
by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
director to the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to
election at such meeting. In this regard, Mr. Shen Xinwen and
Ms. Leung Ka Lai, Ada, sBs will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent pursuant to the criteria set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and that a confirmation of independence
has been received from each of them.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGMENT PROFILE

Biographical details of the Company’s Directors and Senior
Management are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” on pages 27 to 36 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any transactions, arrangements and contract of significance to the
Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is authorised by the shareholders to fix the directors’
remuneration at general meetings. The Directors’ emoluments are
determined by the Board based on the recommendation by the
remuneration committee of the Board with reference to their job
complexity, workload and responsibilities, and the Company’s
remuneration policy. Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the
year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS B F & #f &

B 45 X 5] 48 Bl A9 48 BIQ4 MK - (T {n] J& = 1T A
HRpEEeHRNTRAANMEEENES
TH—EHEZEZAEEARREERERS
WERZE EEIE Rt A X EMER
KRBT (Eenes)BREANgRIT 2 IREE
FAEGLRE UHAERREEBE-

RIE EARAIES 13GATE 2 £8) - AAF)
RBSBULIFATESFH/BIAL FEK
NBUBIATESTARBULIENER

=z,
=

BERAKBTCRRAFAGLEEL
EEEARBREA(INE QR 2 B E
R R AR B REAFMERT AR
—FAKRLEMBES THECEERER
SN ZBRFF A

EEREREEBEN

ARFE SRS RERE0HBEELR
AERFAEHANEERERE
BN -

ERERS RHFRENTHRE

5 7

RERER EFMEEHAEEXRBAEEKR
FEIENRG ZHEREH(RRR] K
ERERAR  MBARHKRARME AR
BRRIN )P ERAEEREEA S -

EEME

REREAE L BREEEESSETESH
Co BRI HESEREESS ZHM
ZEEMEZU2RBMMOTIEERE
TEERBEURAATNFINEREmME
EoAFEZEBMEFBHNT HREM
FE37 °

FEERAERLTE Fik 2022

145



146

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS & F & # &

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified by the Company out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur
or about the execution and discharge of his/her duties or in relation
thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Company during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS, OPTIONS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

There is no conversion or subscription rights under any convertible
securities, warrants or options or similar rights issued or granted
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year. In addition, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company, or existed during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company has any interest or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFQ")) which will have to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which any Director is deemed
or taken to be under such provisions of the SFO), or which are
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register to be kept by the Company or which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies contained in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register of interests
of the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the

SFO, were as follows:
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Number of shares held

iR B & B
Directly Through Approximate
beneficially controlled percentage of
Name of substantial shareholder owned corporations Total issued shares
FE HiE ER HEBTRAHN
RERERE BRER ZEEE By BHOEa
Note (4) fifit(4)
China Foods (Holdings) Limited 2,072,688,331(L) - 2,072,688,331(L) 74.10%
FERmGER)ERAE
COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited - 2,072,688,331(L) 2,072,688,331(L) 74.10%
hIERE(HEE)ERAA Note (1) HiE(1)
COFCO - 2,072,688,331(L) 2,072,688,331(L) 74.10%
g Note (2) Ki7#(2)
Brown Brothers Harriman & 170,651,359(L) 6.10%
Co. 170,651,359(P)
FIL Limited 168,870,000(L) - 168,870,000(L) 6.04%
Pandanus Partners L.P. 168,870,000(L) 168,870,000(L) 6.04%
Note (3) B17#(3)
Pandanus Associates Inc. 168,870,000(L) 168,870,000(L) 6.04%

Note (3) BFE(3)
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Notes:

(1)  COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited (“COFCO (HK)”) was deemed to be
interested in 2,072,688,331 shares held by China Foods (Holdings)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO (HK).

(2)  COFCO was deemed to be interested in 2,072,688,331 shares held
by China Foods (Holdings) Limited and COFCO (HK), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of COFCO.

(3) Based on the disclosure of interest filed by Pandanus Associates
Inc., FIL Limited is a controlled corporation of Pandanus Partners
L.P., which in turn is a controlled corporation of Pandanus
Associates Inc..

(4)  The percentages were calculated based on the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2022, i.e.
2,797,223,396 shares.

(L) Indicates a long position
(P) Indicates a lending pool

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group
conducted the following transactions with certain connected
persons of the Company including COFCO, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“COFCO Group”) and COFCO’s associates. These transactions
constituted connected transaction or continuing continued
transactions and are subject to reporting requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

ACQUISITIONS OF EQUITY INTERESTS IN THE CBL
TARGET COMPANIES
On 15 July 2022, as part of the restructuring of Coca-
Cola Bottlers Manufacturing Holdings Limited
(“CCBMH") (The Coca-Cola Company and COFCO
Coca-Cola Beverages Limited indirectly holds 38% and
21% interest, respectively), COFCO Beverages
(CCBMH) Limited (“CBL") (an indirectly 65%-owned
subsidiary of the Company), Coca-Cola South Asia
Holdings, Inc. (“CCSAH"), Coca-Cola China Industries
(Beverages) Limited (“CCCIL"), Mount Limited
(“Mount”) and CCBMH entered into the master
agreement (“Master Agreement”), pursuant to which
it has been conditionally agreed that, (i) CBL shall
procure the COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China)
Investment Limited (“CBL Purchaser”), an indirectly
65%-owned subsidiary of the Company, to purchase
from CCBMH, and CCBMH shall sell to the CBL
Purchaser, the equity interest in the CBL Target
Companies, namely (1) Coca-Cola Bottlers
Manufacturing (Yingkou) Company Limited (A] A A]
ZEmmAeEE (20) BIRAR) , (2) Coca-Cola
Bottlers Manufacturing (Jinan) Company Limited (7]
AERAmEE (OBm) BRAF]) , (3) Coca-Cola
Bottlers Manufacturing (Shijiazhuang) Company
Limited (AIOAZEMEMAEE (ARAE) ARAR])
(4) Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Changsha)
Company Limited (AJORI&EERmEE (RY) &
[RAF]) and (5) Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing
(Chengdu) Company Limited (°] O R 445E3Rm A
(B #B) BPRAT]) , (the “CBL Transactions”), and
(ii) Mount shall purchase from CCBMH, and CCBMH
shall sell to Mount, the equity interests in its certain
subsidiaries (the “Mount Transactions”). The CBL
Transactions and the Mount Transactions (collectively
the “Transactions”) are inter-conditional.
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CCBMH, CCSAH and CCCIL are connected persons
of the Company in subsidiary level. The aggregate
base consideration for the CBL Transactions is
approximately RMB544,396,000 and subject to
customary closing accounts adjustments by reference
to the net cash balance and the working capital level
of each of the CBL Target Companies as at the date
of completion of the Transactions in according to the
terms and conditions of the Master Agreement. Details
of the Master Agreement and the CBL Transactions
were disclosed in an announcement of the Company
date 15 July 2022.

The completion of the CBL Transactions took place
on 1 January 2023 and an relevant announcement of
the Company was published on 2 January 2023.
Following the completion of the CBL Transactions, each
of the CBL Target Companies has become a subsidiary
of the Company and their financial results will be
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group.

INVENTORY PURCHASE AGREEMENT

After the completion of the CBL Transactions disclosed
in the above item 1, on 1 January 2023, to facilitate
the sale and purchase of the inventories and/or the
transfer of certain raw materials procurement contracts
from the Coca-Cola Bottlers Management Service
(Shanghai) Company Limited (A] [ A 445 5 5 & 78
R (L&) ARAR]) (the “Seller”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CCBMH and a connected person
of the Company, COFCO Coca-Cola Supply Chain
(Tianjin) Limited (i8] O RT&LtfESE (K)F) AR
AA]) , a subsidiary of the CBL Purchaser, (the “CBL
Buyer”) (as purchaser or transferee), the Seller (as
seller or transferor) and the other party named therein
entered into an inventory purchase agreement (the
“Inventory Purchase Agreement”).

The consideration payable by the CBL Buyer to the
Seller with respect to the inventory set forth in the
final list of raw materials or packaging materials relating
to certain finished goods to be purchased in
accordance with the Inventory Purchase Agreement
is RMB92,667,432 (inclusive of value-added tax). The
consideration was determined by reference to the
weighted average cost as recorded in the books,
records and other relevant information of the Seller
as at 31 December 2022.

Details of the Inventory Purchase Agreement was
disclosed in an announcement of the Company date
6 January 2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. 2019 ENTRUSTED PROCESSING FRAMEWORK

AGREEMENT

On 2 December 2019, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited (“COFCO Coca-Cola”) (a 65%-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into an entrusted processing
framework agreement with Coca-Cola Bottlers
Manufacturing Holdings Limited (“CCBMH”) (The
Coca-Cola Company and COFCO Coca-Cola indirectly
holds 38% and 21% interest, respectively), a
connected person of the Company, for a term of three
years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022
(the “2019 Entrusted Processing Framework
Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2019 Entrusted
Processing Framework Agreement, relevant members
of COFCO Coca-Cola and its subsidiaries (collectively
“COFCO Coca-Cola Group”) shall provide processing
services to the relevant members of the CCBMHL and
its subsidiaries (collectively “CCBMHL Group”) based
on the business needs of the relevant members of
the CCBMHL Group. Details of the 2019 Entrusted
Processing Framework Agreement were disclosed an
announcement of the Company dated 2 December

2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total
amount paid/payable by the CCBMHL Group to
COFCO-Coca-Cola Group for the provision of processing

services was approximately RMB198 million.
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2020 COFCO MUTUAL PROVISION AGREEMENT

On 11 November 2020, the Company and COFCO
entered into a mutual provision of products and
services agreement for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and expiring on
31 December 2023 (the “2020 COFCO Mutual
Provision Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2020 COFCO
Mutual Provision Agreement, the COFCO Group and
COFCO’s associates shall supply certain raw materials,
packaging materials, products and provide certain
services to the Group while the Group shall supply
certain consumer products and provide certain services
to the COFCO Group and COFCOQ’s associates. Details
of the 2020 COFCO Mutual Provision Agreement were
disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated
11 November 2020 (the “2020 Announcement”) and
a circular of the Company dated 1 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, (a) the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to the COFCO
Group and COFCOQ’s associates for the purchase of
products, raw materials, packaging materials, services
and others was approximately RMB1,650 million; and
(b) the total amount paid/payable by COFCO Group
and COFCO’s associates to the Group for the purchase
of consumer products, services and others was
approximately RMB1.21 million.

2020 CONCENTRATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 11 November 2020, the Company and Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) Company Limited (“Coca-Cola (Shanghai)”),
a connected person of the Company, entered into a
concentrate purchase agreement for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2021 and expiring
on 31 December 2023 (the “2020 Concentrate
Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2020
Concentrate Purchase Agreement, members of the
Group with prior written approval from Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) shall purchase concentrates from Coca-
Cola (Shanghai) at prices determined by Coca-Cola
(Shanghai). Details of the 2020 Concentrate Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the 2020 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) for the purchase of concentrates was
approximately RMB3,133 million.
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2020 STILL BEVERAGES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
On 11 November 2020, the Company and Coca-Cola
Bottlers Management Service (Shanghai) Limited
(“Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai)”), a connected person
of the Company, entered into a still beverages purchase
agreement for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2021 and expiring on 31 December 2023
(the “2020 Still Beverages Purchase Agreement”).
Pursuant to the 2020 Still Beverages Purchase
Agreement, certain members of the Group shall
purchase still beverages from Coca-Cola Bottlers
(Shanghai) for distribution and resale within designated
areas in the PRC. Details of the 2020 Still Beverages
Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the 2020
Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to the Coca-Cola
Bottlers (Shanghai) for the purchase of still beverages
was approximately RMB3,059 million.

2020 PACKAGING MATERIALS AND SERVICES
PROVISION AGREEMENT

On 11 November 2020, Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverage
Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Bottler”) and Tianjin Shifa Zijiang
Packaging Co., Ltd. (“Zijiang”), a connected person
of the Company, entered into a provision of packaging
materials and services agreement for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2021 and expiring
on 31 December 2023 (the “2020 Packaging Materials
and Services Provision Agreement”). Pursuant to the
2020 Packaging Materials and Services Provision
Agreement, Zijiang shall supply packaging materials
and provide conversion services and other services to
Tianjin Bottler. Details of the 2020 Packaging Materials
and Services Provision Agreement were disclosed in
the 2020 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total
amount paid/payable by the Tianjin Bottler to Zijiang
for the purchase of packaging materials and conversion
services was approximately RMB40.14 million.
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FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

On 14 July 2021, COFCO Coca-Cola, entered into the
sales and distribution cooperation framework agreement
(“Framework Agreement”) with Xiamen Culiangwang
Beverage Technology Co., Ltd, (“Xiamen Culiangwang”),
a connected person of the Company, for a term of
two years commenced from 1 January 2021 and
expiring on 31 December 2022. Pursuant to the
Framework Agreement, members of the COFCO Coca-
Cola Group shall purchase from members of the
Xiamen Culiangwang group the certain plant-based
protein beverage prodcucts under the trademarks of

0 }ﬁﬁ I, %%V&I, CDEEI'}}'&J'&Z (“Culiangwang
Products”), as set out in the Framework Agreement.
Details of the Framework Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 14 July
2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total
amount paid/payable by members of the Coca-Cola
Group to the Xiamen Culiangwang group for the
purchase of the Culiangwang Products was
approximately RMB66.02 million.

NEW FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 2 November 2021, the Company, Supply Chain
(Tianjin), and COFCO Finance entered into a financial
services agreement for a term of three years from 14
December 2021 to 13 December 2024 (the “New
Financial Services Agreement”).

Pursuant to the New Financial Services Agreement,
COFCO Finance shall provide Supply Chain (Tianjin)
and the Group depository services, fund transfer
services, entrustment loan services and the other
financial services. Details of the New Financial Services
Agreement were disclosed in an announcement of the
Company dated 2 November 2021 and a circular of
the Company dated 23 November 2021.

During the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022, the maximum daily deposit amount (including
the corresponding interest accrued thereon) placed
by the Group with COFCO Finance was approximately
RMB790 million.
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8. NEW FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

On 14 December 2022, COFCO Coca-Cola and fEH
SAEmEHE (EPF9) BBRZAFR (Zhibaishuo Company
Beverage Technology (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.) (“Zhibaishuo
Company”) (formerly known as EFTHEET SRMEHL
BBRAF] Xiamen Culiangwang Beverage Technology
Co., Ltd.), a connected person of the Company,
entered into the sales and distribution cooperation
framework agreement (“New Framework Agreement”).
Pursuant to New Framework Agreement, members of
COFCO Coca-Cola and its subsidiaries shall purchase
from members of the group of Zhibaishuo Company
and its associates, certain plant-based protein beverage
products under the trademarks of “/BH ", “SETIR”,
4&#&1 “ISYEEER” as set out in the New
Framework Agreement. The annual caps with respect
to the transactions contemplated under the New
Framework Agreement for the two financial years
ending 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024
are RMB81,000,000 and RMB96,000,000, respectively.
Details of the New Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
14 December 2022.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions numbered 1 to 7 disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions numbered 1 to 7 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and the report of the Company’s
auditors, and confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were:

1. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the terms of respective agreements
governing the transactions and are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors are considered to have interests in
any business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
that of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB16,050,000.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events after the end of the
reporting period is/are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in normal
course of business are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. In relation to those related party transactions
that constituted connected transactions under the Listing Rules,
they have complied with the applicable requirements in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed with the auditor of the Company
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 and has also discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including the review of the accounting practices
and principles adopted by the Group.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor of the Company
upon the retirement of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu at the annual
general of the Company held on 1 June 2021.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offers themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company and authorizing
the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

QING Lijun
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % RE RS

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of China Foods Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Foods Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 166 to 260, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREENEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives (the “indefinite lives intangible
assets”)
BEREAEGTRENEFEE(RASGTREMN
BREE |)AREE

Refer to Note 5 “Critical accounting judgement and key
sources of estimation uncertainty” and Note 18
“Intangible assets” to the consolidated financial
statements.

ERELLRE M ImAMTD [ B8 g5 FIE A (&5 T i
TE 14 &9 B S 2ROIR | AP EE 18 ML B EE o

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s goodwill and
indefinite lives intangible assets not subject to
amortisation (i.e. franchise rights) amounted to
RMB1,846,799,000 and RMB1,659,475,000 respectively
(collectively the “Intangible Assets under Assessment”)
and no provision for impairment has been recognised
on these assets.

B E2022612A310 E5ENRHEREFTHENE
RAEmTHEENEREE(AETFEEE)DRIAAR
#1,846,799,0007TF1 A R #1,659,475,0007T ( £ 18 &
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REESEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ZEEEET P RN

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of goodwill and indefinite lives intangible assets included:
BMERERGEASH MEENEREENRERT G
BRANREFBLE :

o We understood and evaluated the management’s
internal controls in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill and the indefinite lives
intangible assets, and assessed the risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty as complexity, subjectivity
and other inherent risk factors;
BMTRIIETEEEEREREASH TR
TE BT & BE BB RT A 7 T AR A Y (N BB
W E B AEEENRRE GEME  FBMER
H & A B b E 2= ) 71l 17 72 5 K 8 e Rt /9 @

B

° We assessed the reliability of management’s cash
flow forecast by comparing the historical cash flow
forecasts with the actual results of the Beverage
CGUs;
BMABLRELRSRIEAMKEIREELS
UHWERERRIHEEEERSRBANT S
{8

° We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuation expert engaged by
management to perform the impairment assessment
by performing procedures including but not limited
to: examining its professional qualification and
reputation; inquiring the valuation expert whether
it is independent in respect of the Group;
BAFETEEBZRRETREN ANEERR
RBLRE BB REBBE - BFEFEETRR : &
BHEXERKEE  ARMGEEREEBE LN
E5E

° We evaluated the appropriateness of the discount
cash flow model and pre-tax discount rate as used
by management in determining the value-in-use
of the Beverage CGUs, with the assistance of our
internal valuation experts;
FEABEEERHE T - HMIFE T ERE LR
ESRBEeEESMRNEREERERNTR
W MR R RITTER RaEE M

° We verified the mathematical accuracy of the
value-in-use calculations;

MR T EREEFENHELENE




KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREENEE

The Company’s management (“management”) has
performed impairment assessment on these Intangible
Assets under Assessment on an annual basis. For the
purpose of the impairment assessment, management
has allocated the Intangible Assets under Assessment
to a group of cash-generating units under the same
operating segment (the “Beverage CGUs”) and
determined the recoverable amounts of the Beverage
CGUs based on value-in-use calculations. These value-
in-use calculations required management to forecast
the future cash flows of the Beverage CGUs based on
the approved financial budgets. The key assumptions
as adopted by management in the value-in-use
calculations primarily include revenue growth rate, gross
profit margin, long-term revenue growth rate and pre-tax
discount rate.
ERANERE(ERE])SFHMHE LT HTHE
FEEEITRERN M - B TETREN G BEEE K
RN EREESEAR —KEN TN —ERE
EFEBEN([REBREeESRSEM]) WRIEEREBES
ERERHREEEBUA AT IRE S - ELLFERE
BT E ZRE IR E R E IR B 75 T8 & 78 R 8R0RHR
CELBUNAKRRER - EEEBEEREEFET
FANERBRFEV/EBALEER  EFX KRR
ANEREMBAIITER X -

We have identified the impairment assessment of
goodwill and indefinite lives intangible assets as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the related
balances and the significant management judgement
and estimations involved in the impairment assessment.
MR EERENEZEUSORERN RS RNERE
B FIET A ET - BRI B R RS TN E
FEERREN hEER—EFERNESSE -
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BREFTEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ZEEEET PRI

o We evaluated the management’s future cash flow
forecast of the Beverage CGUs including the
reasonableness of the forecast in the context of
historical results of the Group’s businesses and
production capacity, and comparing the parameters
used (including revenue growth rate and gross
profit margin) with the market data and information
as obtained from our independent research;
BMEHE TEREURHRSESEBUAARRIR
et BEEERBEEBNEERINESL
¥BESRSTEANGEN  WHEEANIE(E
FWAL R KRR EMNK) BB LATESH
MiHERIERETLE

° We challenged the appropriateness of the discount
rates and long-term revenue growth rates used by
management by reference to those discounted
rates as adopted by comparable companies,
market data and information as obtained from our
independent research;
BM2RAT LA RERANITIRE Wiz &R MK
TIEHARESHNEN  HERERAONIFTIRE
MEHBAEREZNFEL TR EER

° We evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis to

ascertain the impact of reasonably possible
changes of key assumptions and performed re-
calculation independently for the downside
changes in management’s sensitivity analysis
model, focusing on the most sensitive assumptions,
including revenue growth rate, gross profit margin
and discount rate;
AR T ER BRI DT - T MR R
REEEA BN E  WHERRESKED
WERAN TR B IETTENAE 55
M RBBENERR SF B AERE £ EMN
=K

o We assessed the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of impairment
assessment of goodwill and the indefinite lives
intangible assets in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework under HKFRSs.
BABRBEEBNBEREEREEBV B REER
Nt EEmEREASG T RENETEER
BErME RS SRR B EE o

Based on the above, we considered that the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill and the indefinite
lives intangible assets were supportable by the evidence
obtained and procedures performed.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen Kwok Sun.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBRBEEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &;Z=2022% 12831 H ILFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR®ET T ARET T
Revenue A 6 20,967,837 19,784,422
Cost of sales FHER A 8 (13,469,507) (12,723,534)
Gross profit EF 7,498,330 7,060,388
Distribution and selling expenses 7 #H & #4553 H (5,539,212) (5,356,260)
Administrative expenses 1T (505,876) (495,775)
Net impairment losses on SREEREEETE
financial assets (3,825) (2,300)
Other income and other gains-net E MU A K E AUz —
R 9 138,645 191,343
Operating profit £ 5 7l 1,588,062 1,397,896
Finance costs &R AN 11 (3,508) (4,488)
Share of net profit of associates 1 FIAEzA ABR 2 B
accounted for using the equity AN e
method 13 29,894 29,447
Profit before income tax B B Al v ) 1,614,448 1,422,855
Income tax expense Frisfi s M 14 (404,022) (348,172)
Profit for the year FREFA 1,210,426 1,074,683
Profit is attributable to: FEAE A -
— Owners of the Company S WNEIE ¥ =N 659,836 572,415
— Non-controlling interests — JEFERR s 550,590 502,268
1,210,426 1,074,683
Earnings per share for profit BERARRZBERE
attributable to the ordinary RIGERNEREF:
equity holders of the Company:
Basic earnings per share FRRE AR R
(RMB cents) (AREED) 15 23.59 20.46
Diluted earnings per share SR E R A
(RMB cents) (ARED) 23.59 20.46
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEEWEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022F12A31H LLFE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREF T

Profit for the year FRER 1,210,426 1,074,683

Other comprehensive income H b 2 U ES = =
Total comprehensive income FREE WAL

for the year 1,210,426 1,074,683
Total comprehensive income EAFRZEmEE

for the year attributable to: Wz

— Owners of the Company . NEIEZ Y =N 659,836 572,415

— Non-controlling interests — JEfERR R s 550,590 502,268

1,210,426 1,074,683

TER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BRI R &

As at 31 December 2022 72022412 H31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR®ET T ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y [RE MRS 16 5,235,033 5,061,110
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 564,247 601,816
Intangible assets EEE 18 3,531,905 3,530,039
Deferred income tax assets RIEMBREE 29 315,188 262,028
Prepayments and other assets TENFEEEMEE 10,502 51,352
Investments accounted for using fFRAEZREARZIEE
the equity method 13 839,787 812,362
Total non-current assets FREEEALE 10,496,662 10,318,707
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 22 1,887,702 1,933,314
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIA - e REHA
other receivables JiE U 508 19 855,885 489,089
Trade receivables FEUE 55878 21 360,035 327,746
Amounts due from related parties FBa5E A F/R K 35 347,975 383,963
Cash and cash equivalents BekIRE&EZEEER 23 1,037,408 1,591,703
Pledged bank deposits HIRERTTIF 5K 23 2,916 18,737
Prepaid tax B R IE 69,163 63,448
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEMZE
through other comprehensive Wesz CRVEE
income 20 5,209 41,357
Total current assets B EEMLEE 4,566,293 4,849,357
Total assets EERE 15,062,955 15,168,064
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #7 & Bf 754X S5 &
As at 31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARET T ARETIT
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Lease liabilities HEal 27 21,635 42,409
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEMESHREE 29 83,100 38,984
Deferred income PFEIEWA 30 232,685 229,042
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHETE 337,420 310,435
Current liahilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables BEREZERAREE 25 689,980 474,892
Amounts due to related parties L NG 35 439,239 214,040
Contract liabilities EHEE 28 987,013 1,581,310
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS T B (& 74,987 66,651
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 36,074 34,826
Other payables and accruals HAth FE T 5RIE K
JEETRE 26 3,636,030 4,096,615
Total current liabilities BB EAEE 5,863,323 6,468,334
Total liahilities EE%E 6,200,743 6,778,769
Net assets EERE 8,862,212 8,389,295
Equity R
Share capital iEN 24 293,201 293,201
Share premium and reserves f&19 8 M &1 5,227,015 4,864,230
Equity attributable to owners AARHEE AELER
of the Company 5,520,216 5,157,431
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 25 3,341,996 3,231,864
Total equity R 8,862,212 8,389,295

MR2023F3A29R AR A BEE I E KK
HEEITELICOE E F260H W 4R & B 53
R WAHATALTRREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 166 to 260 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of
the Company on 29 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

QING Lijun Shen Xinwen
BEYE MEHT X
Director Director

EE =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZSB®RK

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12 A31 B ItFE

Attributable to owners of the Group

KREREARL
Asset Non-
Issued Share  Capital  Reseve revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  resenve fnds ~ resee profits Total interests equity
28fr EEEf Fk

Ba BoEE EAGR BRe MR REER 4 0 BR BR4E
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARRTn ARMTR ARETR ARMTT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTT ARMTR

At 1 January 2021 R202151518 293201 3080 860,048 24622 3204 3742006 4953921 3,125299 8079,220
Proft and other comprehensive income for the year  FRRFIREt2 ARG - - - - 512415 572415 502,268 1,074,683
Transactions with owners in their capacly as owners: BB ANEREAFHET

HZH:
Disposal of subsidaries RENEBRA - - - = -39 3219 17 49%
Transactions with non-<ontoling interests (note 1206) ~ EFAMRER R B (HEH12(b) - - (12317) - - - (123171) (106879) (230,050)
Dividends proviced for or paid (note 31) EEEREMRE (31 - - - - - (248993) (248953) (29058) (539,511)
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 293201 30820 T8 24622 3204 4068707 5157431 3231,864 8389295

Proft and other comprehensive income for the year ERERIREt2ERE - - - -
Transactions with owners in their capecty as owners: 2B ANEEAASDER

659,836 699,836 550,590 1,210426

HZ5:
Dividends provided for or paid (note 31) BELUEARE(HH3) - - - - - (297,051) (297,051) (440458) (737,509)
At 31 December 2022 R2022512831H 203201 30820 736877 24622 3,204 4431492 5520216 3,341,996 8,862,212
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022F12A31H LLFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®T T ARBFIT
Cash flows from operating activities REEKMEZEESR
Cash generated from operations &L EBAEZRE 32(a) 1,555,019 1,431,200
Interest paid B FE (3,508) (148)
Income tax paid BEATFTER (410,445) (357,064)
Net cash from operating activities EEXKB2BEFHE 1,141,066 1,073,988
Cash flows from investing activities R EFE IS 2B LR
Acquisition of addition interests  WEERKIB AR 2
in subsidiaries G - (230,050)
Purchases of property, plant and BEY*  HE K& HE
equipment (881,894) (713,578)
Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE (6,813) (13,626)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  WE &EE
property, plant and equipment Fr5 308 11,437 8,017
Proceeds from disposal of assets HESEAFTEHESE
classified as held for sale EZ 5508 = 23,711
Dividends received from associates & Ui < A TR & = 10,438
Interest received B U F 8 18,827 30,893
Withdrawal of pledged bank IR E IR RITIF 5K
deposits - 10,540
Receipt of government grants U 21 BT 43 B 7,217 27,015
Net cash used in investing activities R &E;EE FrAIRESFEE (851,226) (846,640)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZEFIBEREER
Repayments of bank borrowings  EEIEITER - (20,000)
Principle elements of lease HENRE D
payments (49,595) (45,741)
Dividends paid to the Company’s  [AIZN2A &I ISR S A~ % &
shareholders (297,051) (248,953)
Dividends paid to non-controlling  [AIFff /& A Al FEHE AR A 25
interests in subsidiaries ST R (497,489) (181,366)
Net cash used in financing REEETAESFE
activities (844,135) (496,060)
Net decrease in cash and cash HeRFESEEEBR
equivalents DEEE (554,295) (268,712)
Cash and cash equivalents at the PRI BFEETZEE N
beginning of the financial year HeEEHEB 1,591,703 1,860,415
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEERHEEEE
of year EHEH 23 1,037,408 1,591,703
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022F12831H IEFE

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is a subsidiary of China Foods (Holdings)
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the ultimate holding company is COFCO
Corporation, which is a state-owned enterprise registered in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in processing,
bottling and distribution of sparkling beverage products, and
distribution of still beverage products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (HKCO) Cap. 622.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group
had net current liabilities of RMB1,297,030,000 at the end
of the reporting period. In preparing these consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the current and anticipated future liquidity
of the Group. Taking into account, inter alia, (i) the unutilized
loan facilities at the end of the reporting period, and (ii) the
expected net cash inflows generated from the Group’s
operations for the next twelve months. The Directors are of
the opinion that the Group will be able to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the Directors consider
that the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis is appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

° certain financial assets — measured at fair value

o assets held for sale — measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following amendments for the
first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2022:

o Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use — Amendments to HKAS 16

o Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract —
Amendments to HKAS 37

o Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-
2020, and

o Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments
to HKFRS 3

o Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021 - Amendment to HKFRS 16 (March 2021) (the
“HKFRS 16 Amendment (March 2021)")

o Amendments to AG 5 Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected
to significantly affect the current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2 wREEE(E)
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted e AR BR P B SR E I R T

HETHEER - ST ERMERTM
fREE B (ER20225F12H31H
HE AL FEoR B - BANEEH R
TRATER A - B LAl - (B RT KR IR TR

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2022
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards, amendments or interpretations are TS HARE B E R sk R KR E 2
not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the BIARAIFE R A ARRZ FELEENT
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future 2

transactions:

Title Effective Date
BEE ==
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
(deferred from 1
January 2021)
BEMBHRELREL7H RBEL 20231818 (H20214F
1ALBEHE)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current

1 January 2023
(deferred from 1
January 2022)

2023F1A1H (BH20224F
1A1BRHE)

1 January 2023

BREEIERIE 1RSI A) B EED B AR IERE
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BERESERFE IR RES
B 5 ER B ERR2(E5]4N)
Amendments to HKAS 8
AR EEIERIESH (BFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SRTBUR I & 2023F1A1H

Definition of Accounting Estimates

SRtfARtZEE

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

E—RHTEENEERBERBAN
EERIE

1 January 2023
20231 H1H

1 January 2023

BB ERIFE 125 (BFTA) 2023F1AH1H

HK Int 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements-Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause

1 January 2023

A 7S 55k AR 12 (2020) SRR NTIR—BERALEER 20231 H1H
FERERNERERN S A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution of assets N/A
HKAS 28 between an investor and its
associate or joint venture
HEERAFABOCENEERECH TER

BRPBEHRE LA FE 105 (BRI A)
MEE & T2 R 2857
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

1.

.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of financial
position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see (iii) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & A1 7% # 2 i1 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

V.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is
recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Group.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

3

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

° equity interests issued by the group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’'s proportionate share
of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

3.3

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 &

B R B At

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.4 Foreign currency translation

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi,
which is the also the Company’s and its
subsidiaries’ functional currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the statement of
profit or loss, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the statement of profit or loss on a net basis
within other gains/(losses).

3.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings
Plant, machinery and equipment

5 to 30 years
5 to 15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are
sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts included
in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained
profits.

Assets under construction represents buildings and
plant, machinery and equipment under construction
or installation and pending installation and is started
at cost. Cost includes direct costs of construction. No
provision for depreciation is made on assets under
construction until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the
assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to the corresponding categories of property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.6

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Intangible assets

Goodwill is measured as described in note 18. Goodwill
on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments
(note 7).

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives acquired
in a business combination are recognised separately
from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

The accounting for an intangible asset is based on its
useful life. An intangible asset with a finite useful life
is amortised and an intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life is not.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.6

3.7

Intangible assets (continued)

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing
its recoverable amount with its carrying amount:

(a) annually, and

(b) whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.

The useful life of an intangible asset that is not being
amortised shall be reviewed each period to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support
an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and franchise rights that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.8 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and a sale is considered highly
probable. They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for assets such as deferred income tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets and
investment property that are carried at fair value and
contractual rights under insurance contracts, which
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group)
to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised
for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs
to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in
excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised
by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or
disposal group) is recognised at the date of
derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of
a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and
other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in the
statement of financial position. The liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from other liabilities in the statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.9

Investments and other financial assets

(i)

(i)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit
or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.9 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(i)

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.9 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(iif)  Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses)
in the period in which it arises.

The debt instruments held by the Group mainly
includes cash and cash equivalents and
receivables, which are designated as either
financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.9

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see note 21 for further details.

3.10 Offsetting financial instruments

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure,
the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Cost excludes borrowing costs.
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on
the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & A1 7% # 2 i1 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.12

3.13

3.14

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold in the ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See note 21 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and note 4.1(b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of
financial position.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents only includes
cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial
institutions.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.15

3.16

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability
that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & A1 7% # 2 i1 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is
the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction, adjusted by changes in deferred income
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

3

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred income tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current income tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.18 Employee Benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up
to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the statement of financial position.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services.

Post-employment obligations

A post-employment schemes of the Group
operates is defined contribution pension plans.
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Payments to contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

3

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.19 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or
a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct goods
or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESHBEE(E)
(continued)

3.19 Revenue recognition (continued) 3.19 WARR(E

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such
as volume related discount, the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled
using either (a) the expected value method or (b) the
most likely amount, depending on which method better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting
period and the changes in circumstances during the
reporting period.

BHEERAKERERER
RIS AR P E RN ER
) B 3% £ (B # A 3 IF 4 5 A
H) - RARIEE B B 75 5 2 A
SO AIRE - AR - BUK
BEEAREEGTORER.
BIES N EBRTE R IBRFHE -

EHABRAKRERCBER
WERE S A BEP IR
B) MAEZEARIBRETE
P&

HANHEBZANEERAYN
BERFREAEI R

I E
MESHERENSHARE
REROFIME - AEEA
A EEZER(D)RA
THAFTEARERNKES
B BORR R EKEEE &
MDA AR EE A RERNKE
TH -

AERENGTEEBTAR
SER XAZE A ERERH
THEE R ZBEREME  ZA
ERTEERBEARAERDR
BR -

B R4 B A B A
SRR BB (DI E AT A
RO RTZR) ADE
I35 45 B R 0 108 B TR 2
R L -

FEEmAERDE Fik 2022

196



190

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i
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CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

Consideration payable to a customer

Consideration payable to a customer includes sales
rebate that the Group pays, or expects to pay, to the
customer which will be settled by transfers of goods
or services or cash payment to the customer.
Consideration payable to a customer also includes
credit or other items that can be applied against
amounts owed to the Group. The Group accounts for
consideration payable to a customer as a reduction
of the transaction price and, therefore, of revenue as
the consideration is not in exchange for distinct goods
or service that the customer transfers to the Group.
The Group recognises such reduction of revenue when
(or as) the later of either of the following events occurs:
(a) the Group recognises revenue for the transfer of
the related goods or services to the customer; and
(b) the Group pays or promises to pay the consideration.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer and payment by
the customer exceeds one year. As a conseguence,
the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices
for the time value of money.

3.20 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.20 Earnings per share (continued)

(ii)  Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a
lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as
a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESHBER(E)
(continued)

3.21 Leases (continued) 3.21 HE(E)

198
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the

shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & A1 7% # 2 i1 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.21

3.22

3.23

Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less without a purchase option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets. Note 9 provides further
information on how the Group accounts for government
grants.

Interest income

Interest income is presented as other income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for
cash management purposes, see note 9 below.
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4

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments including
trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, cash and cash equivalents, financial
assets at FVOCI, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, borrowings and amounts due
to related parties. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
Expose

The Group mainly operates in Mainland
China with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities and transactions
denominated in RMB. The -carrying
amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets (mainly
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bank deposits) at the end of the reporting A& B LA SN STHE
period are as follows: BEBEECKRAE
(EZ2HBRITER)

T
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
HKD BT 17,993 23,300
USD ETT 12,590 6,860

The Group manages its foreign exchange
risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange exposures
and may enter into currency forward
contracts, when necessary, to manage its

foreign exchange exposure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(1)

(if)

4 TEREREEE)

4.1 Z=RERBREZEE)
(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) M5k (E)
Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i)  SPEESR(E)
Sensitivity Rt
2022 2021
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
increase in increase in
profit after profit after
tax tax
20224 20214
BRELERER BR A5 1% 2 71
CR2), 18 O A),/1
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTTT
RMB — HKD AR —ET
Appreciation of ARBHES%
RMB by 5% (675) (874)
Depreciation of AR E5%
RMB by 5% 675 874
RMB — USD AR¥—ETT
Appreciation of ARBHES%
RMB by 5% 472) (257)
Depreciation of AR E5%
RMB by 5% 472 257
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) HzrE2RAFE
Fl= 7 Bz
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest AEEFAFEE R
rate risk in relation to variable rate bank RITHER EEIR
balances, variable rate bank borrowings TEARHEESE
and lease liabilities. The Group cash flow 2R RER
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated R B o AN 5 B R
on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank SREMNERRE
balances and bank borrowings. The Group EEPRIRITER
aims at keeping borrowings at variable R ER1T 8 AR 2
rates. The Group manages its interest rate o NEEEEMN
exposures by assessing the potential FE R R RS
impact arising from any interest rate Ko AN B H R F
movements based on interest rate level EIKERBI BB
and outlook. BREEES =) =3
ENEBEREER
H A= R o
FERMRERDT FIR2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 SEEAREEE)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

4.1 TEERREZEHE)

(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) WEERE(E)
(if)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) BHemERA-FE
(continued) Fl 7 e (42)
Total interest income from financial assets BEHKAFTEZ
that are measured at amortised cost is as SRVEER B WA
follows: REEH T ¢
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFIT
Financial assets at SR AN BR AY
amortised cost SREE 18,827 30,893
Interest expense on financial liabilities not I eI A FEFA
measured at fair value through profit or BazepaER
loss: BRAX
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARKETIT
Financial liabilities at ~ ZE S ATIER 2 €
amortised cost mEE 3,508 4,488
(b) (EEREEREETS

(b)  Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
attributable to trade receivables, amounts due
from related parties, financial assets at FVOCI,
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group performed impairment assessment
for financial assets under expected credit losses
(ECL) model. Information about the Group’s
credit risk management, maximum credit risk
exposures and the related impairment
assessment, if applicable, are summarised as
below:

Trade receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits and
scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals.

In addition, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on
trade receivables balances on provision matrix,
the trade receivables are grouped under a
provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment
histories for recurring customers and ageing for
the new customers. Impairment of RMB3,382,000
(2021: RMB2,259,000) is recognised during the
year.
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4
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Pledged bank deposits/cash and cash
equivalents

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits/cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit
agencies. The Group assessed 12 months ECL
for pledged bank deposits/cash and cash
equivalents by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default
of the respective credit rating grades published
by external credit rating agencies. Based on the
average loss rates, the 12 months ECL on
pledged bank deposits/cash and cash equivalents
is considered to be insignificant.

Amounts due from related parties

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the associates, ultimate holding
company, entities under common control and
non-controlling interests in subsidiaries. The
Group’s credit risks in these balances are
mitigated through the value of the assets held
by these entities or the power to participate the
relevant activities of these entities. As all the
amounts due from related parties are trade
related, unsecured and interest-free, the Group
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. For
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group assessed the ECL amounts due from
related parties were insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% &

BB A 2

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Financial assets at FVOC/

Credit risk on financial assets at FVOCI is limited
because the acceptance banks are reputable
banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12 months ECL for financial assets at
FVOCI by reference to information relating to
probability of default and loss given default of
the respective credit rating grades published by
external credit rating agencies. Based on the
average loss rates, the 12 months ECL on
financial assets at FVOCI is considered to be
insignificant.

Other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the Directors
make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of deposits and other receivables
based on historical settlement records, past
experience and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The Directors
believe that there are no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12 months ECL. For the year ended
31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
assessed the ECL for deposits and other
receivables. Impairment of RMB443,000 (2021:
RMB41,000) is recognised during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
The Group’s credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

tHEAREERE(E)

4.1 TEERREZEHE)
(b) (EEERRRE

(%)
AEEEERRFEE
AT R -

Category the Group definition of category  Basis for recognition of expected
credit loss provision
il AEBERINES FHEEFRRBRIEE
Performing Receivables whose credit 12 month expected losses. Where
risk is in line with original the expected lifetime of an asset
expectations is less than 12 months, expected
losses are measured at its
expected lifetime (stage 1).
BRI FERRERERH S oEK 12EATFEEEE - MEECTEHE

FIA

Receivables for which a
significant increase has
occurred compared to
original expectations; a
significant increase in credit
risk is presumed if
repayments are 30 days
past due (note)

HREFEHAMALL - B HIRAIEE
R2Z WA : @ Hi30R &
7 RIRRASE R A I N

(M)

Repayments are 90 days past
due or it becomes probable
a customer will enter
bankruptcy

BFGBHIO0R K F Al sE iR E

Underperforming

KA

Non-performing
(credit impaired)

TR (EERE)

Write-off Repayments are 120 days
past due and there is no
reasonable expectation of
recovery

%84 EBREEEEA1208 - THEIEE
e

Note: A significant increase in credit risk is presumed
if a debtor is more than 30 days past due in
making a contractual payment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & A1 7% # 2 i1 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group’s credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories: (continued)

(b)

Note

(continued):

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of an asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on
the asset as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating: macroeconomic
information (such as market interest
rates or growth rates) is incorporated as
part of the internal rating model;

- external credit rating (as far as available);

- actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to debtor’s
ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes
in the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the same
debtor;

- significant changes in the value of the
collateral supporting the obligation or in
the quality of third-party guarantees or
credit enhancements;

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
debtor, including changes in the payment
status of third-parties in the group and
changes in the operating results of the
debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 SREREEE)

4.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 4.1 =crEEEZE(E)
(b)  Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) 1ZEESREF
(continued) (&)
The table below detail the credit risk exposures TRFMAEEEBETT
of the Group’s financial assets which are subject EHEEEEFHZS
to ECL assessment: MEECEERR
External
credit 12 months or
2022 Notes rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
HNEBER 128 Az 2
2022%F Mz AR BEHEEES HERHEE
2022 2021
2022% 20214

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT

Financial assets at
amortised cost

TR 8 B A DI BR Y
CREE
Trade receivables 21 N/A Lifetime ECL 374,082 340,889
(not credit-
impaired)
W& 5518 FiEA RAREEREZ
> HEHEEEE
Other receivables 19 N/A 12 months ECL 64,747 50,414
Hoh R R IE i 128 ATEEEEEE
Amounts due from 35(c) N/A Lifetime ECL 347,975 383,963
related parties (not credit-
impaired)
)N TNEA HAREERELZ
> HRHEEEE
Pledged bank deposits/ 23 Al-A3 12 months ECL 1,040,324 1,610,440
cash and cash
equivalents
BEERITERHE 128 ATEEEEEE
kR eEMEER
Financial assets at
FVOCI
BATLEFAHMEE
bz emEE
Financial assets at 20 A3-Baa2 12 months ECL 5,209 41,357
FVOCI
BATEGAREMEE 128 ATEEEEEE
Wase SRERE

2@8 CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The management considers the impairment
movements of trade receivables and other
receivables are insignificant, and accordingly, no
impairment movements of trade receivables and
other receivables are presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management of the Group monitors
the utilization of bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

4 TEERR

4.1

EE(E)

%Fﬂﬂﬂ%.?(nﬁ)

(b)

(c)

15 E/R e R EFF I
(&)
ERERREWE SR
I8 Ko B A FE U ERIE HY R
EZEFHITTEKR Bt
EE25|EWE ZHRIEAR
H A & W kI8 B R {E &
&) o

REETAE
%ﬁﬁﬁ@é@@@%'
AEEERMBIHET
Ewﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl
LENRERREEFE
BB KF - WRHER 2
ERPNTE AEEE
EEERRITERNE
RER

TRAMAERZ £/
BEZRBRENFHF
F'T%B@fﬁﬁlm
BERCxERHFER
TRABZATRES
mE - HMIETESRA
&2 B8 R 1R 17 € & &K
HEIEEE -

TRERMNERAER

%//Ihi {h%lj o //ILE%/¥
RIRIrREBAIRE

%ﬁ%%i%ﬂ$°
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

4 SEEMEE(E)

Financial risk factors (continued) 4.1 SEEEE(E)
(c)  Liguidity risk (continued) (c) mEEzERE)
Weighted Total Carrying
average Less than Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1year 1tob5 years 5 years cash flows 31 December
AERREE  R12A31A
MEFHR= —EHR —FERFR BRLE REAE ZEHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETRT AR%TR
At 31 December 2022 p202212A318
Trade and bills payables  fef & S5k 215 - 689,980 - - 689,980 689,980
Financial liabilities SARMENTER
included in other i B AREE
oayables and accruals AR B - 2844743 - S 2844743 2884743
Amounts due to related  wEELA F)ZR
parties - 439,239 - - 439,239 439,239
Lease liabilties MEaRE 4.30% 37,625 23,791 48 61,464 57,709
4,011,587 23,791 48 4,035,426 4,031,671
Weighted Total Carrying
average Less than QOver  undiscounted amount at
interest rate lyear 1tob years 5 years cash flows 31 December
REBHRE  M12A31A
IETH = —E0R —FERER BRRE mEEE ZEHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR AREFT ARETn
At 31 December 2021  M2021%£12A31H
Trade and bills payables EMEZEHKER - 474,892 = = 474,892 474,892
Financial liabilities AR ERIARE
included in other FTEEZERARE
payables and accruals - 3,332,939 - - 3,332,939 3,332,939
Amounts due to REBHARFE
related parties - 214,040 - - 214,040 214,040
Lease liabilities HEBE 4.30% 35,804 46,405 112 82,321 77,235
4,057,675 46,405 112 4,104,192 4,099,106

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

4.3

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, share premium and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Fair value estimation

Financial assets and liabilities

(i) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values
of the financial instruments that are recognised
and measured at fair value in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Group has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation
of each level follows underneath the table.

4 TEREREEE)

4.2

4.3

EXEH

AEBEEEEEAR  ARERA
SENEREASELE B
FEABIER Mg R
RREHIE SRR E &K A&
BB RAS EE FFRET &

AEEZEARBREENRE
MRS FEHEBARAAT
BEEAE G (BREEHITR
A By 8 M) o

EETHERNEARE-FR
ZEHN D BEEENE
BEARRA R EEIERE AR
FRER RIEBEEFNEZE A
SEREBIRMNIRE - BITH
BEHABORAES FEEE
BEAXER-

DFEMET

EHEERRE

(i)  RFEBER
7N B R ¥ 1R TE B 7% e
KPR FERER R
B2eMIAZATE
By BT 11 th O 4 BT R il &t o
REHEHEEEATE
TR AER A ST
ZHER AREEKES
BTASEREES
FIREZ =R TK
RYERZHA -

h

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 SEEAREEE)

4.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 4.3 AQDFEMEE(E)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued) THEERBE(E)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) () R-FEERGE)
Recurring fair value measurements o AR = o =

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R F2 ERE st
At 31 December 2022 Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1202212 A31H Wiz ARBTR ARMTT AR®TR AR¥TR

Financial assets at fair  EATFEFFAEMAE
value through other W eREE

comprehensive income 20 - 5,209 - 5,209
Recurring fair value measurements A=A E

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E1R E2M E31R M@t

At 31 December 2021 Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

12021412 A31H izt ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at fair ~ ZAFEFAZMZE
value through other hmzeBEE

comprehensive income 20 - 41,357 - 41,357
Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments FIR - RNEEMBEEE
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded ZEMTRA(WMAFRESR
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on ZOTETERBRAESR)
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting Z R FE TR 7R & B
period. The quoted market price used for RZTISHMEFHE - KE
financial assets held by the group is the current EfmFeREEMAZ
bid price. These instruments are included in MEHREREREAB -
level 1. ZETHRGFAELIR -

2 /‘ 2 CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and
rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity securities.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and
3 during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021. The Group has no financial
instruments in level 1 and level 3.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

The fair value of financial instruments in level
2 (net of provision for impairment) was estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that was
available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent

from other sources.

The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

4 TEREREEE)

DFEME ()
EHEERAEE)

4.3

(i)

(i)

RFEER (&)

SE2M - WIRAIREM IS
BEEzemMIAMDIME
SMTETR)ZRFETS
ERAERMEE - AFE
ENBABRMBER
REELEKBERETE
st e Mat B TARFE
B BERG AR
MY RRBREER - Al
THRFFAZE2H -

EIW: H—HAZHE
R ABER L IEREA
BREMSER RIBAET
Bt AE3 - LM
RFEFHF RO ©

B £20224F K20214F12
A31B L& E: F1 2
K345 2 8 4 g o K
SEEWEFIH K FEIR
ZERTHE-

BUBTE R FlEZIGER
iy
F2REMTAZRAFE
(FERMERE) TIER
BASERBUERT
ARBZRITMGHEX
FRAKRAEHNRERE
mfsat o

5 BRERSHENMGETRE
1 B B8 52 2R

RIERM MM AR E 2 &5 HE

(SR Y FaPN- 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Judgement in determining whether the intangible assets are
with finite or indefinite useful lives

The Group has franchise rights related to its bottling and
distribution rights in certain regions in Mainland China. The
Group has assigned indefinite useful lives to such franchise
rights after evaluating the terms and conditions in the bottling
agreements, history of renewals and the strategic and mutual
beneficial relationship between the Group and the
counterparty.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and indefinite lives
intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and franchise rights are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the Group of cash-generating units to which goodwill and
franchise rights has been allocated, which is the higher of
the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from a group of cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

B g2 ot I B AN f4 5T AR E
1 9 8 58 SRR (48)

B R F MY LI (53 AEB R
RETER - MRRHEANEE @
HETHEMBRYE AERE W
BET IR HEMRET Y Y
HARRBEEBRTE AR S
% 0% IR P T AR o

FE FA & 5t BUR HO BR 52 ) I

B RfAEH(RTX)EIN U TRA
AREFEAARE 2 SRR BRE
1 I 4R A B IS R AR 2 5K
AR RBERFZEHERHIE -

EEBEEEZRAZSHEEREZ
HIEr

AN SR B 1 B 7 3 B e b [ R LR
HLER 53 SH T AR B8 B0 A AR A i o ARRT
HEM B 2 K BAT RS IA R AR
SEERZET 2 HBREBEE
% AEECBLREFEER2E
ASwEESTHE

R TABRER 2 ERRR

AT RFEERRBRZ RREERK
ERBERREFENEMERBET
BREAR A - Al e @ BHUAH T —(&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% &

BB A 2

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill and franchise rights with
indefinite useful lives at 31 December 2022 was
RMB3,506,274,000 (2021: RMB3,506,274,000). Further
details are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BA S e ot HI B A fh 5T AR E
1 9 B8 5 SRR (48

EETTHBREE 2 EERR ()
BEREAZD T ECHETEES
SR BT (4E)

R2022F 1231 HEERERS®m
TEEZHHREEZEmEAAR
#3 506,274,0007C(20214F : A R
#3 506,274,0007C ) ° B Z 5E 15 H N
RE BT IRRMIFELS o

REVENUE WA
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers BELSHUTADEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Types of goods EmmER
Sparkling drinks K 15,875,110 15,052,041
Juices e 3,001,855 2,531,038
Water KiniE 1,327,993 1,485,875
Others HAth 762,879 715,468
Total ot 20,967,837 19,784,422
Timing of revenue recognition AR EE
A point in time I B RS 24 20,967,837 19,784,422

The Group sells sparkling and still beverage products to its
customers, revenue is recognised when control of the goods
has been transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customer’s specific location. Following
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. Payment in
advance or payment on delivery is typically required from
customers, except for certain customers granted with credit.

All of the Group’s contracts for sale of goods are for periods
of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from contracts with customers”, the transaction price
allocated to unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

AEEMERPHEAKRTEARK
ﬂéuu LT N A P i 2 ) 55 7 R
RS Eﬂﬁlﬁ]ﬁ@'ﬁhi%}éi ﬁ_‘iiﬂlglﬁﬁﬁf’
RfT1E BPAI2ERIEAE D i#H
Et&?ﬁuumf“ jﬁ%@fﬁvﬁﬁuuz
FEEEREMMERER ZRER
E%&EEH&W}%:F%}E%'—AX
zz/\ﬁﬁféﬁk BRI

PREASENEREEARNSE—F
KEREERHE AT - BB RELE
AIEIEIBELPARKAI RS
REELEHNRHERTIEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

7 SEGMENT REPORTING 1 SHERW
The Group’s revenue and consolidated results are mainly REBRNWARGEEETERG N
derived from processing, bottling and distribution of sparkling T -HBEERDEEAKERTERGE
and still beverages, which is regarded as a single operating D EER BB — K& ST 2T
segment in a manner consistent with the nature of the NEERMERERNT BEE®R
products and production process, the types of customers ZoMEFEL BEROHEERN S
for their products, the methods used to distribute their A NREEEIRIBEME — 3o A Wim
products, and the nature of the regulatory environment. 23 DEHLER - B AEBEWRERE —
Accordingly, no segment information is presented, and the EFHHEL -
Group is regarded as a single reporting segment.
Geographical information 35 5 )
All revenue of the continuing operation of the Group is INE BB R LR 7 2 U AR
derived from customers operating in Mainland China and REAKENEE AR ARNEERB
the Group’s non-current assets, other than deferred income BT AR AR IERESEET
tax assets, are primarily situated in Mainland China, hence BRI AR A - B0 AR IR E A B
no geographical information is presented in accordance with FREREVER|ERTE [ K& D IR | 251|1
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. &L o
Information about major customers FEEFEHR
During the current year, there was no revenue derived from EAFE WERBE—FF WA
a single customer which accounted for 10% or more of the il N & B U A B910%3% A (2021
Group’s revenue (2021: Nil). )
8 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 8 FAEM
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/ E RN TN (GEA) LA TR B
(crediting): BIERL
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
(a) Cost of sales (a) fﬁ’%ﬁ$ \
Cost of inventories sold EHFERA 13,460,548 12,730,960
Provision for/(reversal of) FERERE(#E)
impairment of inventories 8,959 (7,426)
13,469,507 12,723,534

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022




8

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued) 8 FREF(E)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
(b)  Other items (b) HMIEH
Depreciation of property, M BERZETE
plant and equipment (FfzE16)
(note 16) 638,175 530,649
Depreciation of FRAEEENE
right-of-use assets (Pfiz£17)
(note 17) 67,638 63,091
Amortisation of BB S
intangible assets (FfzE18)
(note 18) 7,807 6,486
Total depreciation TE REHRE
and amortisation 713,620 600,226
Amounts capitalised FEERL
in inventories (32,554) (38,120)
681,066 562,106
Employee benefit expense, EERAMZ (B2
including directors’ and EERERTHE
chief executive’s emoluments A B FE)
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE #FaekEHE 2,132,630 2,189,248
Employer’s contribution RRETEI R (P RE)
to a retirement benefit
scheme (note) 293,303 267,306
Total et 2,425,933 2,456,554
Advertising and S AE &
promotion fee 1,539,658 1,490,574
Petrol and freight charges WAL B T8 & 863,109 846,332
Expenditure on power FhESH 346,448 307,433
Labor service expenditures BT 168,439 140,340
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 85 B 5 3,900 3,300
Impairment of property, W - WE R RERE
plant and equipment (FFzE16)
(note 16) 579 6,034
Net impairment losses TREEREIBIFE
on financial assets 3,825 2,300

Note: There were no forefeited contributions (by employers on
behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in such contributions) to offset existing contributions
under the defined contribution schemes.

iz OREBEMBNHR(BEEINAR
B8 EEAEBBME A RER
A &) 2R 35 S ARG B T ROIR
BHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

9 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET 9 HiWARHMKZE—FEE
An analysis of other income and other gains/(losses) is as HiW A REMU S (BE)H i
follows: T

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Other income HAn U A
Government grants (note) BAT e B (R 5E) 89,393 95,154
Processing income, net DT A FRE 33,265 31,546
Income of sale of by-products HEBIEMKERIER
and scrap items WA 21,008 22,045
Cost of sale of by-products and  #H& &Il f & BE#I IR B
scrap items BN (6,431) (8,824)
Interest income FE U A 18,827 30,893
Others HAt 6,347 31,804
162,409 202,618

Hblas — F5E
HEYE  WE REE
(B8),/ W (5,290) 2,780
HEFFHEEE RS

Other gains — net
(Losses)/gains on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Gains on disposal of assets

classified as held for sale - 13,420
Impairment of property, plant M - BB R RERE
and equipment (note 16) (ff7E16) (579) (6,034)
Donations Ei=kii - (16,050) (6,036)
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ JMNEZFFE (488) 1,964
Others HAh (1,357) (17,369)
138,645 191,343
Note: Various government grants were granted for investments in MW ARBEEERZIERSFE - AE

BB AR KB R B P2 T
B At A T & 00 © BRAT i B AR RE Y
RAEH L HET AR A P BRI RS
B ST M A X © 5% S5 7 B I R AE ]
HARN & Z R G EE

certain provinces in Mainland China in which the Company’s
subsidiaries operate. Government grants for which related
expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included in
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10 ZEBEFMzIES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the FR AEBREL G H EESHE —
year included one directors (2021: two), details of whose ZEZE(2021F - MR He 1S
emoluments are set out in note 37. Details of the emoluments B FE37 c AR A (20214 : =
for the year of the remaining four (2021: three) highest paid 2RSS TFMZIERRRIEESEE
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of HITEREREZEEMESIHI|WT -
the Company are as follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Wages and salaries TERGS 4,061 3,709
Discretionary bonuses B TEAL 10,342 10,023
Allowances and benefits in kind 28L& EWHIES 290 491
Employer’s contribution to a BEFRIREFETE] 2 f
retirement benefit scheme 1,030 792
15,723 15,015
The emoluments of the remaining highest paid employees BT xmyES GEESHEREH
who are not a director or chief executive fell within the TEIZMEN T TR5E&EE :
following bands:
Number of employees
EEEHE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HKD 2,500,001 to 2,500,001 0%
HKD 4,000,000 4,000,000/ 7T 2 _
HKD 4,000,001 to 4,000,0018LE
HKD 5,500,000 5,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HKD 5,500,001 to 5,500,001 L E
HKD 7,000,000 7,000,0007% 7T - 1
HKD 7,000,001 to 7,000,001 02
HKD 8,500,000 8,500,000/ 7T - 1
4 3
11 FINANCE COSTS 11 BERAE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEE ZFI B - 148
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZHE 3,508 4,340
3,508 4,488
FERRERAE FiIR 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

12 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

12 EEAXAFMEBLRZHE

(a) General information of subsidiaries (a)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

MEAR—RER
RBEHREA R EER LEE

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

by the Company at the end of the reporting period EAE KB A RREIEES a0
are set out below: T :
Place of Proportion
registration and  Paid up issued/ ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
WEAR AR EMREEHY BRTHER /EMER ARAAMBHEREAL EEER
2022 2021
20224 2021
% %
COFCO Beverages Limited Samoa Ush 1 100 100 Investment holding
HIESRERA R FERETD 1% RAER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages  Hong Kong HKD 2,524,855,402 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
IR D AT LR B R AR Bt 2,524,855,40275 7T REZR
COFCO Beverages (Hunan) Samoa Usb 1 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
HIESK (i) ERAR  BED IE RAER
COFCO Beverages (Beijing) Samoa USD 6,825,001 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
HESH (kR) ERAR  BED 6,825,001 7T RAER
COFCO Beverages (CCBMH) ~ Samoa Usb 1 65 65 Investment holding
Limited
FERETD IE RAER
COFCO Beverages Hunan Hong Kong HKD 62,400,001 65 65 Investment holding
(HK) Limited
Higg kbR (B) BB 62,400,001%87T RAER
BRAE
COFCO Beverages Beijing Hong Kong HKD 53,235,001 65 65  Investment holding
(HK) Limited
FIESREIER (B8) BE 53,235,001 T REER
BRAA
COFCO Beverages Qingdao Samoa USD 20,134,375 65 65  Investment holding
Company Limited
fERET 20,134,375% T BAER
COFCO Beverages (Qingdao)  Samoa USD 1 65 65  Investment holding
Limited
HESRE (BB) BRAR  EEDR IE REER
COFCO Beverages Tianjin Samoa HKD 13,623,897 65 65  Investment holding
(Samoa) Limited
FESHRE (EEE) T 13,623,897 47T BATER
BRAE
COFCO Beverages Qingdao Hong Kong HKD 82,454,768.01 65 65 Investment holding
(HK) Limited
HERAEES (BE) B 82,454,768.0175 T REER

BRARF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

12 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held
by the Company at the end of the reporting period

12 BBARQANBARZFHE

(%)

(a KMEBRA-—RER(E)

RS

HIRAR R R E & R EE

FAEZHMBRRFFERIM

are set out below: (continued) ™ (&)
Place of Proportion
registration and  Paid up issued/ ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
HEARERE AMREEHYE CRTHER/EMER  AQAAMBHEEEAL EEER
2022 2021
20224 20214
% %

COFCO Beverages (Xinjiang) ~ Samoa UsD 1 65 65  Investment holding
Limited

RESH (F18) ERAR  EED IE REER

COFCO Beverages (Xinjiang) ~ Hong Kong HKD 1 65 65  Investment holding
Limited

RESH (F18) ERDR  BE 1B REER

China Foods (Investment) Hong Kong HKD 1 100 65  Investment holding
Limited@

HERm (RE) ARRAe FE BT REER

COFCO Beverages Tianjin Hong Kong HKD 60,450,001 65 65  Investment holding
(HK) Limited

RIERERZ (B) BB 60,450,001/ 75 REER
ARRA

COFCO Beverages Qingdao Samoa HKD 12,000,000 65 65  Investment holding
(Samoa) Limited

FERET 12,000,000/ 70 BRAER

COFCO Beverages Beijing Samoa HKD 100,000 65 65  Investment holding

(Samoa) Limited
FERET 100,000/ 7T REZR

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages  The PRC USD 110,000,000 65 65  Investment holding
(China) Investment Ltd*

HIgR O LK (RE) HE 110,000,000%7T BEZR
REBRAR*

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 10,000,000 48.75* 48.75*  Beverage bottling
(Shanxi) Limited** production, sale and

distribution

FIgRI O A48 (1L7E) HE 10,000,000%7T FRFEE  HERDH
ARRA*

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 20,000,000 65 65  Beverage bottling
(Shaanxi) Limited* production, sale and

distribution

HIER DA SR (BRE) HE 20,000,000% 7T RREMEE - HERDH
BERAR*

COFCO Coca-Cola Liaoning The PRC RMB 72,000,000 39¢ 39%  Beverage bottling
(South) Beverages production, sale and
Limited** distribution

g RAEEE (F) HE AR#72,000,0007T FEFNAEE  HERDH
FRBRA R

COFCO Coca-Cola Liaoning The PRC USD 23,500,000 60.94 60.94  Beverage bottling
(North) Beverages production, sale and
Limited** distribution

FIAIORAEE (1) HE 23,500,000 7T RRFEE  HERDH
BRRBR AR

FERRERAE FiIR 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & A1 7% #8 % I i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

12 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held
by the Company at the end of the reporting period

12 ZEE?ZIK’AEMQ‘E’A%,Z%’I%
]

(a HME2IRA-—REHE
RBEHREA R EER LEE
FAEZHMBRARMNFEEHIIM

are set out below: (continued) T (&)
Place of Proportion
registration and  Paid up issued/ ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
WEAR AR EMREEHY BRTHER /EMER ARAAMBHEREAL EEER
2022 2021
20224 2021
% %
COFCO Coca-Cola Liaoning The PRC USD 13,000,000 65 65  Beverage bottling production
(Central) Beverages
Limited*
HIEA DA EE () HE 13,000,000% T BRI MEE
AR BB RA*
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 44,000,000 65 65  Beverage bottling production,
(Heilongjiang) Limited* sale and distribution
Hig R O A £8 K HE 44,000,000 7T FRFNAEE  HERDH
(REL) ARRAN"
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 18,000,000 65 65  Beverage bottling production,
(Jilin) Limited* sale and distribution
HIERI ORI LERH (F#) HE 18,000,000% T FRFREE  HERDH
BRRA
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 17,000,000 58.04 58.04  Beverage bottling production,
(Sichuan) Limited** sale and distribution
HiER DA AEsRRE (m)Il) HE 17,000,000 7T RREMEE - HERDH
BRAA
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 72,000,000 65 65  Beverage bottling production,
(Chongging) Limited* sale and distribution
IR ORI LM (ZE) HE 72,000,000 7T FRFNAEE  HERDH
BRAF
COFCO Coca-Cola Supply The PRC RMB 10,000,000 63.8 63.8  Wholesale and retail of
Chain (Tianjin) Limited** pre-packaged foods, raw
and auxiliary materials,
supply chain information
consultation, management
services and others
HER] O AT ALt e R HEl AR#10,000,0007T HERTERRERM

(RB) ARAF

22 2 CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

12 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held
by the Company at the end of the reporting period

12 BBARQANBARZFHE
(%)

(a KMEBRA-—RER(E)
RBEHRARBEZ K HEE
FAEZHMBRRFFERIM

are set out below: (continued) ™ (&)
Place of Proportion
registration and  Paid up issued/ ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
HEARERE AMREEHYE CRTHER/EMER  AQAAMBHEEEAL EEER
2022 2021
20224 20214
% %

Zhongke Enterprise The PRC RMB 3,000,000 65 65  Enterprise management
Management (Tianjin) service and consulting,
Limited* business information

consulting, marketing
planning, and computer
information system
development, consulting,
promotion and service

RAREER (KE) FE AR #3,000,0007C PERERRBRAA
ARRA EBEEHA  EHR

2 SERESAS
FE - ARRRE

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 15,500,000 42.25* 4225 Beverage bottling
(Tianjin) Limited** (b) production, sale and

distribution

HIER D AIESK (RE) HE 15,500,000% 7T FEFNAEE  HERDH
BERAF*(b)

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC RMB 83,000,000 42.25¢ 42.25%  Beverage bottling
(Hebei) Limited** (b) production, sale and

distribution

HEA] AT E4ER HE AR#83,000,0007T FRFEE  HERDH
Omde) BRAR**(b)

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC RMB 48,000,000 524 52*  Beverage bottling
(Inner Mongolia) production, sale and
Limited** (b) distribution

R AT O A EAER R B AR 48,000,000t FREMAE  HERDH
(WEH) BRAF*(b)

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 12,500,000 48.75* 4875  Beverage bottling
(Shandong) Limited** production, sale and

distribution

FigR O EEH (UR) HE 12,500,000% 7T FEFNAEE  HERDH
BRAA

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 5,000,000 48.75* 48.75%  Beverage bottling
(Jinan) Limited** production, sale and

distribution

FIRRI ORI 4R (BRI ) HE 5,000,000 7T FRFEE  HERDH
ARRA*

COFCO Coca-Cola Huazhong ~ The PRC RMB 144,400,000 65 65  Beverage bottling
Beverages Limited* production, sale and

distribution

HIgR] O R £EZE gk HE AR 144,400,000 RREMEE - HERDH
BERAR*

FERMRERDT FIR2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & A1 7% #8 % I i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

12 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held
by the Company at the end of the reporting period

12 ZEE?ZIK’AEMQ‘E’A%,Z%’I%
]

(a HME2IRA-—REHE
RBEHREA R EER LEE
FAEZHMBRARMNFEEHIIM

are set out below: (continued) T (&)
Place of Proportion
registration and  Paid up issued/ ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
WEAR AR EMREEHY BRTHER /EMER ARAAMBHEREAL EEER
2022 2021
20224 20214
% %

Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola The PRC USD 5,000,000 65 65  Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Limited* sale and distribution
HERPRA O A28 HE 5,000,000% 7T FRFREE  HERDH

BRRAA*
Tibet COFCO Coca-Cola The PRC RMB 2,000,000 65 65  Beverage sale and
Commerce & Trade distribution
Limited*
PR IR AT O AT AR F AR 2,000,000t BB E R
BRAR
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC RMB 60,000,000 52 52  Beverage bottling production,
(Xinjiang) Limited** sale and distribution
IR ORI LR (37i8) HE AR #60,000,0007C BTN EE  HERDH
BRRA
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC USD 19,500,000 48.75* 48.75*  Beverage bottling production,
(Beijing) Limited** sale and distribution
R A] O AT AR R H 19,500,000% ¢ RREMEE - HERDH
(Itm) BRRAR
COFCO Coca-Cola Huabei The PRC RMB 78,000,000 58.5 585  Beverage bottling production
Beverages Limited**
FEAOALELHHER  § ARH78,000,0007T FORFR A
/L\\Ej**
Beijing Sheng Xiang Foods The PRC RMB 58,211,932 48.75* 48.75*  Wholesale of packaged
Limited** foods
TREARMBR AR HE AR#58,211,9327T HERBERM
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC RMB 81,120,000 65 65  Beverage bottling
(Guizhou) Limited* production, sale and
distribution
HIER O AR (BM) HE AR#81,120,0007T RREMERE - HERDH
BRAA*
COFCO Yuehuo (Tianjin) The PRC RMB 10,000,000 100 100 Food business, food
Food Company Ltd.* business (pre-packaged
food sale) and food
internet sales
FEME (RE) B HE AR#10,000,0007T RmifE  RmEe

BRRF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & A1 7% # 2 i1 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

12 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (continued)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held
by the Company at the end of the reporting period

12 BBARQANBARZFHE

(%)

(a KMEBRA-—RER(E)
RBEHRARBEZ K HEE
FAEZHMBRRFFERIM

are set out below: (continued) ™ (&)
Place of Proportion
registration and  Paid up issued/ ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
HEARERE AMREEHYE CRTHER/EMER  AQAAMBHEEEAL EEER
2022 2021
20224 20214
% %
COFCO Zhishang Technology ~ The PRC RMB 50,000,000 100 - Vending machine business,
Ltd.* food business (pre-
packaged food)
IR R ERAR* HE AR#50,000,0007T BEYEEHLE  RRiLE
(HEERERM)
COFCO Yuexiang Club The PRC RMB 30,000,000 100 - Food business (bulk food
(Hainan) Digital sale), health food (pre-
Technology Ltd.* packaged food) sale and
food internet sales
HiEtize (8f) #xs  $E AR#30,000,0007T RmiEe (HEHE) -

BAERRF

These subsidiaries are accounted for as subsidiaries
by virtue of the Company’s indirect control over them
through a 65% owned subsidiary, which controls these
subsidiaries.

Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

* %

Sino-foreign equity joint ventures

@ Formerly known as “COFCO Beverages (Jiangxi)

Limited”

* ok

RRRmEE (FEK
Rin) MRMEMBHE

ZEME DR RN AR E
FrR65% 2 M B~ & - H %
ERBEHRE/RNRALZ
MEAE -

SNEEERE
HIMEERE

RIEATHERHAOIE)E
lENCIN

FEEmAERDE Fik 2022

220



220

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

12 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Transaction with non-controlling interests
There were no transactions with non-controlling
interests in 2022.

On 27 August 2021, the Group acquired an additional
9.75%, 9.75% and 8.45% of the non-controlling
interests of the Group from different non-controlling
shareholders, totally for RMB230,050,000
consideration. Immediately prior to the purchase, the
carrying amount of the existing non-controlling interest
was RMB129,521,000. The Group recongised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of
RMB106,879,000 and a decrease in equity attributable
to owners of the parent of RMB123,171,000. The
effect on the equity attributable to the owners of the
Group during the year is summarised as follows:

12 BEEAXAFMEBARZHE

(&)

(b)

HIEERERERS
2022F Wi R IEE R = X
% °

20218A27H &~ & E A
A [R) /9 3F £22 A% A% 3R Uk B8 RE A0
#19.75% ~ 9.75% F18.45% K]
JEfE R REBAAR
#230,050,0007T ° Us BE Al
LB EZOEmESE A A
R #129,521,0007T° A& %
EmREERERRDAR
#106,879,0007T & & A &
HEAEHEZBEIARE
123,171,0007T ° ;2 F & H &£ E
BT 75 & FE (b #E o 1) 52 ZE i 4
T

2021
2021
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Carrying amount of non-controlling WA IE e s B AR T 2 B
interests acquired 106,879
Consideration paid to non-controlling IEIE A 2R Y S ST (B
interests (230,050)
Excess of consideration paid recognised £ B2 IEFE AR AR B IR 3 5 R Sk A+t
in the transactions with non-controlling ~ #HEMFRZE S D
interests reserve within equity (123,171)

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022




12 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

COMPANY (continued)

(c)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of the non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

12 BBARQANBARZFHE

(&)
(c) BEHBAEEAEERERZHE
2 E 2 A

TR AEEEREAER
a2 IR ENBARSE:

Place of Proportion of ownership

incorporation interests and

and principal voting rights held by

place of non-controlling
Name of subsidiary husiness interests

FEREREN

MBS K FAERRREHE

KEARERE TEXBHH ZBA
2022 2021

20225 20215

Profit allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interests non-controlling interests

AEFHER
B 28R R ERRER
2022 2021 2022 2021

20225 20214 2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR AR®TT ARMTRT ARETR

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Hong Kong 35% 35%
Limited (“COFCO
Coca-Cola")

FER O£ HERAF Bt

([HigarAm4] )

354,634 311,974~ 2,655,972 2,613,078

FEEmAERDE Fik 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

12 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 12
COMPANY (continued)

(c)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of COFCO
Coca-Cola is set out below. The summarized financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup

o] RN PN A

(&)

(c) EBEEEEARFEREZREZH
2ENBAR 2B (A)
BREIER DA MEER
BMEEHINNT - T XAAEMB
BEHRBMEAEBARRREH

eliminations. A< RE ©
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETFIT
COFCO Coca-Cola and RETOARKEAR
subsidiaries
Non-current assets EREEE 10,291,858 10,255,667
Current assets MENBE 4,637,790 5,028,587
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (337,233) (310,435)
Current liabilities mEaE (6,032,265) (6,609,393)
Equity attributable to owners ZANAFI#HEA A EIGHERS
of the Company 7,588,490 7,465,938
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = 971,660 898,488
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Revenue WA 20,748,318 19,742,452
Cost and expenses BOAR K A 2 (19,533,419) (18,660,796)
Profit and other comprehensive 7872 B &A1& 4 A 7|
income for the year NE M2 E RS
attributable to the Company 1,013,241 891,354
Profit and other comprehensive JE% IR #E 25 & (5 4F (A
income for the year i ) e o Ath 2 R aS
attributable to the non-
controlling interests 201,658 190,302
Net cash inflow from LETEBEE RS
operating activities MAFRE 1,083,266 868,133
Net cash outflow from KEEHELE R ®
investing activities R (647,260) (817,446)
Net cash outflow from MERBELE RS
financing activities R (1,056,694) (339,798)
Net cash outflow e FR (620,688) (289,111)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

13 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 13 FARRZEARZEE
EQUITY METHOD

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT

Investments accounted for using fEREZREARZIKE
the equity method 839,787 812,362
The amounts due from/to associates included in current assets SFARBEER B A EMIE
and current liabiliies of RMB42,617,000 (2021: RMB24,054,000) W,/ EAEERRFREAR
and RMB284,711,000 (2021: RMB154,063,000), respectively #42,617,0007C(20214F = A
are unsecured and interest-free. R #24,054,0007T ) & A R &

284,711,0007C(20214F : AR
#154,063,0007T ) 9 Bl A& =

EHRREE -
Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the WMERARASESHBE AT 2
reporting period are as follows: FFIEESIT
Country of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest/voting rights
Name of entity registration held by the Group Principal activities
BRAR BRI/ EMER REEFENRERE/ TEXHK
REEZADL
2022 2021
20224 20214
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing Hong Kong 21.0% 21.0% Investment holdings
Holdings Limited
B REER
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0% - Beverage production and oriental-
(Chengdu) Company Limited* (i) equipment-manufacture
AIAAEmpEEE (RE) HE R E R T
BT )
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0% 21.0% Beverage production and oriental-
(Changsha) Company Limited* equipment-manufacture
AOARENEAEE (RY) BRAR HE SR E R T
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0% 21.0% Beverage production and oriental-
(Dongguan) Company Limited* equipment-manufacture
AIARAREAEEE (R5e) ARAR  HHE SR E R T
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0% 21.0% Beverage production and oriental-
(Wuhan) Company Limited* equipment-manufacture
AIARTEEmAEE (BU2) ARARY  FE SRR E R T
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0% 21.0% Beverage production and oriental-
(Foshan) Company Limited* equipment-manufacture
ATARREEMmEE (BBl) ARAR  HE SR E R T

TEREMRERAT FiR 2022 229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

13 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

13 ERAEREAARZIRE (H)

Country of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest/voting rights
Name of entity registration held by the Group Principal activities
BREE BRI/ EMRER REBRENRERE TEEH
EEzEA R
2022 2021
20224 20214
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0% 21.0%  Beverage production and oriental-
(Hangzhou) Company Limited* equipment-manufacture
AIARTEEEmpEEE (M) BRA el SRR R T
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0% 21.0%  Beverage production and oriental-
(Suzhou) Company Limited* equipment-manufacture
AIOATREmEEE (BM) BRA el SRR E R T
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Jman) The PRC 21.0% 21.0%  Beverage production and oriental-

Company Limited*
AIOAEmEEE (BmE) BRAR HE

Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0%
(Shijiazhuang) Company Limited*

EJD‘PB“* %ﬁ?ﬁi? (AFi) el
BRA

Coca-CoIa Bottlers Management The PRC 21.0%
Service (Shanghai) Company
Limited* (ii)

AIAAERmEERRE (B8) e
BRRE(i)

Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0%

(Nanning) Company Limited*
AIAAREmmEE () ARARY FH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 21.0%
(Yingkou) Company Limited*
AIARARENEEE (80) ARAR  HE
CBPC Limited Hong Kong 33.3%
5

The Group is able to exercise significant influence over the
associates as the boards of these companies comprise
representatives of the Group, who participate in the policy
making process. Accordingly, they are accounted for as
associates of the Group. All of the above associates are
indirectly held through a 65% owned subsidiary of the
Company. CBPC Limited is a dormant company which is
not individually material.

*

These associates are wholly-owned by Coca-Cola Bottlers
Manufacturing Holdings Limited.

(i)  Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Chengdu) Company
Limited was incorporated on 29 March 2022.

(i)  Coca-Cola Bottlers Management Service (Shanghai)
Company Limited were sold in early 2023. More details
refer to Note 38.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

equipment-manufacture
SR EE R T
21.0%  Beverage production and oriental-
equipment-manufacture

RRHAEENAT

21.0% Beverage operation, sale and
distribution

R HERDH

21.0% Beverage production and oriental-
equipment-manufacture
SRRHEE R T
21.0%  Beverage production and oriental-
equipment-manufacture
HREERRT
33.3%  Price negotiation service

RREERT

AAZE Nz EEehEAEH
ZREZHEBERFIEBE  AEBRY
AL ST B 2 N B TTIEE AR ZE |

I HEWEEAEE 2B E QR
Wﬁig%%ﬁﬁmm$ﬁiﬁﬁ
65% MM B A RIBERE - BT
ERRAR] WIEERIERX -

* 250 & (b M Coca-Cola Bottlers
Manufacturing Holdings Limited%

BERR -

() FIAASEEMpAEE(KE)A
PR A Rl A20224E3 A 29 A & it
XL

(i) AAORTLEREERERS(LE
8 ) AR A Al R2023F 1§ &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information and reconciliation to their
carrying amounts in respect of the Group’s principal
associate:

13

ERAEREARZIRE(E)

AEBIEZHENRZMBERR

NEREEHK

Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing
Holdings Limited

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Current assets MENEE 3,428,261 3,167,965
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,069,997 2,263,373
Current liabilities mEaE (1,550,106) (1,603,425)
Non-current liabilities EREEFE (133,676) (169,665)
Net assets FEE 3,814,476 3,658,248
Net assets attributable to RAREBANBIEFEE
owners of the company 3,814,476 3,658,248
Share of net assets from (LSRR EEE
associates 839,787 812,362
Carrying Amounts REE 839,787 812,362
Summarised statement of comprehensive income: RN ERFEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Turnover R 7,237,587 6,973,416
Profit for the year F A A 130,595 145,884
Total comprehensive income 2 W45 130,595 145,884
Dividends declared by associates &R 8 EE RS - 49,705
Share of net profit of associates f£A#EzEARZ &G
accounted for using the equity B2 BLFF
method 29,894 29,447
FER 7 F3R 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Aggregate information of associates as below:

13 ERESREARZKRE(E)

BERNTMERERNT

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBFIT

Opening carrying amount ERYER A (B 812,362 792,164

The Group’s share of profit AEE R A 29,894 29,447

Dividends declared by associates Bi& AR E =R E - (10,438)
Elimination of transactions of HEBE R AR S - HIRTHIE

associates, net of tax (2,469) 1,189

Aggregate carrying amount at R12A31H ZRARE
31 December 839,787 812,362

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

14 FREF X

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT

Current income tax on profits F N A2 BVERFR 1S B
for the year 413,066 350,027
Deferred income tax credit FRIEPTE TR R (9,044) (1,855)
Income tax expense FriSHi s 404,022 348,172

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as
the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from,
Hong Kong.

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on a
statutory income tax rate of 25% of the assessable income
of the Group as determined in accordance with the relevant
income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, except for
certain entities of the Group in the PRC are taxed at
preferential income tax rate of 15% and 9% through the
year 2022. According to Announcement [2022] No. 11 of
the Tibetan Government “The Measures for the Implementation
of Enterprise Income Tax Policies of Tibet Autonomous
Region (Interim) “, Tibet COFCO Coca-Cola Commerce &
Trade Limited income tax rate is 9% through the year 2022,
the preferential tax rate of 9% extends from 1 January 2022
to 31 December 2025. Zhongke Enterprise Management
(Tianjin) Ltd., is recognized as high-tech enterprises, the
income tax rate is 15% through the year 2022, the
preferential tax rate of 15% extends from 3 December 2021

HRASERNRALIFNEBELK
HiG  RAERBATIA R

rR B BN ER AT 1S Rl B 4 T AR IR AN R B 42
FE AP B AR B8 PT1S B0 05 4R I 4R B 7E 9
FERTIHETE TG R 25%:1 & -
MER2022F A K BHE T HEES
BEBMESREISS RIBHF
RIEFRBUT A &12022] 115K P
ERBEEMESREREBINE(E
7)) PR R R O A e R AR A
A R2022F W FT 1S T Bl K B9% + B
B = RO%BE20229F1H1H £ &
2025F 12H31H lE- R AT ¥ EHE
(RB)BRARWRE A=A
¥ 2022F K FT1S B T % B15% ¢
BEEHEI5%E2021F12/83H 8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% &

SR BEHE M T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

to 3 December 2024. According to Announcement [2020]
No. 31 of Finance and Taxation “Notice of the General
Administration of Taxation of the Ministry of Finance on the
Preferential Policy of Enterprise Income Tax of Hainan Free

14 FREBIH (&)

F2024F 12 A3 1 Ik R 15 B BEB AN
BB H R F[2020] 315 R &
MEHEZBERMEHESHREN
BAHYR(PREARKMBEERS

BORYREERGD - PRIEFEE (8
M)BEFHZERAR RTEE R

Trade Port” and the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China and its Implementation

Regulations, COFCO Yuexiang Club (Hainan) Digital AR A B R20229F & BT 15 1 fi X
Technology Ltd. and COFCO Zhishang Technology Ltd. #15%  HEBEEB E15%H20224F 1
income tax rate is 15% through the year 2022, the H1H#ZE2024F12831H Ik
preferential tax rate of 15% extends from 1 January 2022

to 31 December 2024.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FAFEL LA ELGABRRERE

before income tax per consolidate statement of profit or loss TS AMFE — 3 NPT

as follows:

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 % of PBT RMB’000 % of PBT
15 BRBE AT BT AT
ARET T i Btk ) AREFTT piasallsoldtl
Profit before income tax BRIl Al
(“PBT") 1,614,448 1,422,855
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEH Xt B ZHA 403,612 25.0 355,714 25.0
Preferential tax rates on the & THEAR &2 BR
profits of certain M=
subsidiaries (1,725) (0.1) = -
Tax effect of share of profit 7 {hEEE R BDEN 2 B
of associates ve (7,474) (0.5) (7,362) (0.5)
Tax effect of utilisation of ~ EVEAIARBRENEER
previously unrecognised G2
temporary differences (1,674) (0.1) (3,768) (0.3)
Tax effect of expenses not NAIMHERZHBTE
deductible for tax purpose 9,555 0.6 8,057 0.7
Utilisation of tax losses BRI AER ZHIEE
previously not recognised 18 (2,054) (0.1) (6,969) (0.5)
Tax losses not recognised ~ REERTIAEE 3,782 0.2 2,000 0.1
Income tax expense and ~ AFEFMEHX L RER
effective tax rate for the B*
year 404,022 25.0 348,172 24.5

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
RMB7,474,000 (2021: RMB7,362,000) is included in “share
of net profit of associates accounted for using the equity
method” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Bt & N | JEMH B IE A R #7,474,000
TT (20214 : AEM73620007E>
That AR A B RER b [ F AR

ABRZ R EE & A BVFEF |-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 SREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to RAREG AELBRERER 25t
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: EHERATEE
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: ARSI TR T S IBFHE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Profit for the year attributable RARHEE ANEIEARFEE
to owners of the Company wH(ARBTFIT)
(RMB’000) 659,836 572,415
Number of shares 4=
Number of ordinary shares HAEERERZRN 2
for the purpose of basic TR A
earnings per share 2,797,223,396 2,797,223,396
Basic earnings per share FRRERZF)

(RMB cents) (AR%7) 23.59 20.46
There is no dilutive instrument held or issued by the Group, AEBYEFELRTHEELL
diluted earnings per share is therefore the same as basic o g RANERBFNHERT
earnings per share for the respective years. A ZFAR[R o

284 CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 Y% BEKRRKE

Plant, Assets under
machinery and construction or
Buildings equipment installation Total
HE - #eExK &y
BF B RREE #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFTL AREF T AREF T
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H
Cost %N 2,406,472 4,747 154 75,910 7,229,536
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (605,081) (1,615,320) - (2,220,401)
Accumulated impairment ZERE (14,638) (21,556) - (36,194)
Net book amount REFE 1,786,753 3,110,278 75,910 4972941
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2021F12831ALLFE
Opening net book amount BRI S5 1,786,753 3,110,278 75,910 4,972,941
Additions NE 57,077 520,294 118,522 695,893
Disposals & (2,703) (33,574) - (36,277)
Transfers (i) () 1,968 91,184 (127,916) (34,764)
Depreciation charge TES (84,269) (446,380) - (530,649)
Impairment charge BEX - (6,034) - (6,034)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 1,758,826 3,235,768 66,516 5,061,110
At 31 December 2021 20215128318
Cost B AR 2,415,241 5,173,499 66,516 7,655,256
Accumulated depreciation e (641,777) (1,910,141) - (2,551,918)
Accumulated impairment ES ALl (14,638) (27,590) - (42,228)
Net book amount REFE 1,758,826 3,235,768 66,516 5,061,110
Year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F12A31HLEE
Opening net book amount HAER I F 58 1,758,826 3,235,768 66,516 5,061,110
Additions hE 38,628 583,169 210,467 832,264
Disposals HeE (530) (16,197) - (16,727)
Transfers (ii) 2R (ii) 171,886 72,280 (247,026) (2,860)
Depreciation charge nELH (101,272) (536,903) - (638,175)
Impairment charge REX - (579) - (579)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 1,867,538 3,337,538 29,957 5,235,033
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12831H
Cost XA 2,623,910 5,570,881 29,957 8,224,748
Accumulated depreciation 2EtiE (741,734) (2,206,142) = (2,947 876)
Accumulated impairment 2iPRE (14,638) (27,201) = (41,839)
Net book amount BEFE 1867538 3,337,538 2997 5235033
FERRERAE FiIR 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, assets under
construction of RMB26,416,000 and RMB8,348,000
have been transfered to right-of-use assets and intangible
assets, respectively.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022, assets

under construction of RMB2,860,000 have been
transfered to intangible assets.

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position:

16 ¥ BWFEK&E(HE)

(i) HBZE2021F12H31BILFE -
EEEEAKK26,416,0007T
K A R #8,348,0007T E 9 5l
BRECREEERETVEE-

(i)  EZE2022F12H31H ILFE -

£ & & E A K #%2,860,0007T
EEREETEE-

17 FRHEESE

R BARRKRER S

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFIT

Land use rights 5 P A 485,678 506,614
Leased property HEWM= 62,230 75,295
Leased machinery THE®R 16,195 19,619
Leaded office equipment HERAEERME 144 288
564,247 601,816

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

BaERIINEHEEBN TSR -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREETFIT

Depreciation charge of right-of- A& ESTE L H

use assets

Land use rights 5 P A (20,936) (21,807)
Leased property HEYE (39,292) (35,186)
Leased machinery THEMES (7,266) (5,948)
Leased office equipment HERAEHRME (144) (150)
(67,638) (63,091)

Expense relating to short-term  BRAEHHAENHX
leases 73,367 68,662
Interest expense in lease liabilities & & &2 5 8 H X 3,508 4,340

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

17 EREEEE)

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
The additions to right-of-use FAN AEFRABEEREE
assets and total cash outflow SR BRBRAMAOT -
for leases during the year are
summarised as below:
Additions to right-of-use assets REF AEEE 30,069 54,585
Total cash outflow for leases HERESRLERE 126,470 114,403

For both years, the Group leases various warehouses and
equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 6 months to 10 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has obtained the certificates for all land use
rights with the term of 50 years.

MERRE AEEREZEREZ [
RERERE -HEANZBEATEFHA
ANERAE+F - MERKIMZERI &
R WBERZH TR
o REE & 5 S 7 il 1 A] UaH 58
FAMHARE AEEEBAOHE
& WETA QA RHMITAHME -

REBDESA L E RN L
AR - BE50%F »

FEEmAERDE Fik 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 BLEE
Franchise
Goodwill rights Others Total
BE RBIREE Hith Loy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFTT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H
Cost (DN 1,846,799 1,659,475 2,984 3,509,258
Accumulated amortisation Rzt - = (747) (747)
Net book amount BRTE 5 EE 1,846,799 1,659,475 2,237 3,508,511
Year ended 31 December B ZE2021%12H318 1
2021 FE
Opening net book amount  ERfIBRME S48 1,846,799 1,659,475 2,237 3,508,511
Additions NE - - 19,666 19,666
Transfers (note 16 (i) R (fRE16() = = 8,348 8,348
Amortisation charge By - - (6,486) (6,486)
Closing net book amount HARBRTE S 50 1,846,799 1,659,475 23,765 3,530,039
At 1 January 2022 202251 A1R
Cost BXAR 1,846,799 1,659,475 30,998 3,537,272
Accumulated amortisation 2zt - - (7,233) (7,233)
Net book amount BREHEE 1,846,799 1,659,475 23,765 3,530,039
Year ended 31 December & ZE2022F 1283181
2022 FE
Opening net book amount  HA¥IBR[E H58 1,846,799 1,659,475 23,765 3,530,039
Additions N - - 6,813 6,813
Transfers (note 16 (ii)) st (FEEL6(I) = - 2,860 2860
Amortisation charge o - = (7,807) (7,807)
Closing net book amount HARBR 58 1,846,799 1,659,475 25,631 3,531,905
At 31 December 2022 720225128318
Cost B AR 1,846,799 1,659,475 40,671 3,546,945
Accumulated amortisation ~ Z&tH# - = (15,040) (15,040)
Net book amount BREREE 1,846,799 1,659,475 25,631 3,531,905
The franchise rights related to a number of bottling TS B T O ] 442 B)(TCCC)AY

agreements with The Coca-cola Company (TCCC) which
provided the Group with the exclusive rights to prepare,
package, distribute and sell TCCC branded products in 19
provincial — level administrative regions in which the Group

operates.

The agreements reflect the long and ongoing relationship
between the Group and TCCC.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Given the Group’s strategic relationship with TCCC and
consistent with past experience, no consideration is payable
upon renewal or extension of the agreements.

The amounts of franchise rights represented their fair value
at the respective acquisition dates, which have been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent
qualified professional valuer.

The franchise rights have been assigned indefinite useful
lives as the Group believes those franchise rights will continue
to be renewed at each expiration date, after evaluating the
term and conditions in the bottling agreements, history of
renewals and the strategic and mutual beneficial relationship
between the Group and the counter party.

Impairment testing of goodwill and franchise rights
with indefinite useful lives

Goodwill and franchise rights with indefinite useful lives
acquired through business combinations are allocated to
the Beverage CGUs which are monitored by management
at the level of one operating segment identified in Note 7
for impairment testing.

The following table sets out the key assumptions as adopted
by management in the value-in-use calculation for determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverage CGUs:

18

BREE(E)

BN A B BETCCCZ 5 IS A 1R I BE
BELR B0 RS A B E
BAXZHERKE -

RSN SR AR EE
AMATLE ZEARBRIRES
& ST 5 M T 1T £ LS
H o

AR E IR 2 1R5K - BRI A8
RAKEEZSHTF 2 HNEKEEE
MEER BAKERCREERRAS
aNETE - IR AR EREZSRT
B REN S T A &R

BEREARG TREZFTEER
R
BREBEHBBERSHTHEEZ
BEMIFREEIEERMERSE
EBEM ZRCELBENAEEER
B EE7 P sk Bl 2 — R AR & 3 BF 2 K%
EITRERHEER -

TREEEENEEREELEM
A Y m & BRI R 2 (E R EERED
ZEBRK

2022
20224

2021
20214

Sales revenue HERA(FEBRER)
(annual growth rate)

Budgeted gross margin

TEORI K9 E T

Long term revenue growth rate ~ REFUWAIE R =R
Pre-tax discount rate T RTHTIR =

35.97% - 36.29%

2% - 3.39% 2.03% - 6.06%
35.82% — 36.29%

2% 2%
13.80% 14.90%

F 3] 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18 EBREEE (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill and franchise rights BERGEASOTIREZEEER

with indefinite useful lives (continued) AR (&)
The Group has determined the values assigned to each of REEBEF HIKBEIFrERRERZEE
the above key assumptions as follows: mn

Assumption
B

Sales revenue

Approach used to determining values
RAREEEE 2R E

Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period; based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market development.

HEKA TFERSREANTEFERE  REBBEHMSERCTEHAMETE -
Budgeted gross margin Based on past performance and management’s expectations for the future.
TEOR B EF = ERBERBREBBEARK AL -

Long-term revenue growth rate This is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows
beyond the budget period. The rates are consistent with forecasts included
in industry reports.

SE TR LA TEE AR LAONR R E 2 T8 R E - 2t REITE R
ERETEA -5 -

Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments and the countries in
which the Group operates.

RRBBOMEASERLRAERR 25 ERR -

RHEJURAE K K
Pre-tax discount rate

AT X

The Directors and management have considered and
assessed reasonably possible changes for other key
assumptions and have not identified any instances that could
cause the carrying amount of the Beverage CGUs to exceed
its recoverable amount.

EEREEBDERNAEMER
SR AR EE)  BYWE|BRAE

A SR ELEUKRAERS

HA[El S 1E0

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19 FENSRE ReERHEMER

RECEIVABLES ;IE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTTT

Prepayment to suppliers TE A 4 FE P 3R 613,884 329,533

VAT recoverable AT U B 12 (B 161,045 89,412

Prepaid marketing expenses TEfT & SR 17,532 21,001

Other receivables H Ath pE Y5k IE
— Deposits and others — e REM 63,424 49,143
855,885 489,089

240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20 EAFREFAREMEZEKE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZEREE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREF T
Bills receivables B E & 5,209 41,357
Considering the bills receivables are held by the Group for ERAEERKOE LR RE LT
both collection of contractual cash flows and selling of the ENEEMEEMFERRERGE
related financial assets (via the endorsement of bills BRHERERKEERIEANSE
receivables to suppliers as the Group’s settlement of related B IERAENRIBAER) AaEE s
payable balances), the Group has designated bills receivables TEREKNEE SR ATEF AEMER
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Wz &MEE -
income.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 EWEZSRIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
Trade receivables FELE 5 K08 374,082 340,889
Allowance for credit loss EEFBEEE (14,047) (13,143)
360,035 327,746

The Group gives credit term to key customers, which granted
with credit term ranging from 7 to 90 days upon delivery.
While for other customers, payment in advance or payment
on delivery is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control commissioner to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to
a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances.

AEERTHEREFEEDR 88
RRERBTEIOR - MEAREAME
B ABEABBRIEXN R BRI
Ko AERBE T RERBREFERE
BRREFMREEEENER %
KB EERBRRERE SRELE
EHECARESR ERAEE SR
RETREPZEKE SR HE
SRRz EPREY NRE - ~AEE
I Rt H B R 5 S IA R A
B K E M EREAR -

F 3] 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21 ERESFE(E)
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, net AT REXEBHAZ5|EINE 558
of allowance for credit loss, presented based on the date (KR EEEERE)NRE DT

of the delivery of goods:

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Within 6 months ~NEA R 352,902 324,404
6 to 12 months ANE+TZ@EA 7,133 3,342
360,035 327,746
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for BEE E2022%F k202112 A31H
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out I FERINE ZFIERET HFE
in note 4.1 (b). R EE4.1(0) e
22 INVENTORIES 22 FE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RM/B’OOO
AR¥T T ARETTT
Raw materials R 407,594 175,865
Finished goods K o 1,480,108 1,757,449
1,887,702 1,933,314
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in the @;T;%O%fﬁlgﬂ?:lﬂ JJ:%F;‘:Z R R
consolidated statement of profit or loss amounted to GRERERBRAZNTERARA
RMB13,358,201,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 E\%13,358,201,00015(2021¢ CA
(2021: RMB12,614,064,000). R#12,614,064,0007T) °
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 HEeRHRELEHEER
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Cash and bank balances B RIRTT4 R 1,037,408 1,591,703
Pledged bank deposits EIRIRITFER 2,916 18,737
1,040,324 1,610,440
Less: Pledged bank deposits for & : BhIE =IERER 2 R1T7F
bills payable (note 25) A (FizE25) (2,916) (18,737)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEIER 1,037,408 1,591,703
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily ﬁ}i{)ﬁéf&ﬁ%i&é&}ﬁﬁfiﬁﬁ%
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged bank *iJ’f‘EJFrng??;u_\*'J;—‘%HXZ‘J\MS RIT
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent %Dﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁﬂfTﬁa\%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@
history of default. KRR EEBRI 21T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & A1 7% # 2 i1 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 B
Number of shares Share capital
[dvig =] ;&N
HKD’000
FHIT
Authorised: VERE ¢
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares 4,000,000,000% & & &
of HKD 0.10 each 0.108 Tz Bk 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid BEITRER
At 1 January, 31 December 2021 120214 K&2022F1H1H
and 2022 2,797,223,396 X12H31H
ordinary shares of 2,797,223,396 X FR% M
HKD 0.10 each 80.10/8 T 2 & BAX 2,797,223,396 279,722
Equivalent to RMB’000 ERARETT 293,201
25 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25 ENESRARERE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Trade payables JEfTE 2 BRK 674,780 445,408
Bills payable S 15,200 29,484
689,980 474,892

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables

ENESEARRBRRERHZT

presented based on the delivery date. RIBRBR DATLA T o
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Within 3 months =EAR 621,999 461,587
3 to 12 months —@AzZ+=—EAR 65,685 13,229
Over 1 years BiE—F 2,296 76
689,980 474,892
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and ENESGEREALREEABTTE  — K

are normally settled in one to three months and one to six
months, respectively.

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the pledge
of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to RMB2,916,000
(2021: RMB18,737,000).

WNFBADBIR—E=EAR—EX
@A -

AEBEETRERNZBEUSE/ARY
2,916,0007T(20214F : AF#518,737,000
TO) X ANSRBIRT TR T DASE R ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

26 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26 HiENSREREES
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTIT
Accrued marketing and promotion FE&HE §5 M {2 $5 5 52
expenses 1,084,796 1,194,733
Sales rebate SHEITH 414,156 702,190
Accrued expenses FERTRISE 343,577 315,981
Deposit for fridges KFEIR 585,616 548,170
Accrued payroll (Note) FERT T & (PMI3E) 620,391 493,104
Tax element of contract liabilites & 48 EFE 113,014 195,678
Payables for purchases of BEYE BWENEERNE
property, plant and equipment (B 83,292 173,772
Dividends payable to non- ANE R F T 4N
controlling interests 92,573 149,604
Taxes payable JE BB 3N 57,882 74,894
Accrued logistics expenses FERT YR B 2 39,766 37,613
Others EAb 200,967 210,876
3,636,030 4,096,615

Note: The payroll include salaries,
allowances and benefits in kind and employer’s contribution

discretionary bonuses,

Mz FeeEHFe WIBHEA 2HK
Bz A K fR I SR R AE A ET &)

to a retirement benefit scheme, which is defined contribution (BN AR EHFRETED) AR -
plan.
27 LEASE LIABILITIES 27 HEER’
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETIT
Within one year —FR 36,074 34,826
Within a period of more than one #BE—FETZHMRE RN
year but not more than two HAH
years 17,495 27,277
Within a period of more than two FBEMFETZHRAFHNA
years but not more than five HAH
years 4,101 15,089
Within a period of more than five FFEMN E
years 39 43
57,709 77,235
Less: Amount due for settlement & : BB EIE NERAI12
with 12 months shown under & A 2 HA & FE 19 308
current liabilities (36,074) (34,826)
Amount due for settlement after  JERBNBEIE NERA12(E
12 months shown under non- RiBEM R
current liabilities 21,635 42,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

28 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28 SHERE
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARETFT
Sales of beverages $HE SR 987,013 1,581,310

The followings table shows how much of the revenue

TREIAFEERERS DB EER

recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward ZWAEHE -
contract liabilities.
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Revenue recognized that was REVFTAELNEBELZHRZ
included in the contract B R A
liability balance at the
beginning of the year 1,581,310 1,767,588
29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29 ELEFTEH
(i) Deferred income tax assets (i) EZEMEHEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
The balance comprises EREE T EREER
temporary differences =8
attributable to:
Accruals JEETRE 421,960 349,274
Unrealised profits BIRFE 25,908 52,354
Deferred income FRIEUT A 41,428 42,745
Impairment of property, plant  #12% &&= K& ERE
and equipment 16,095 16,095
Provision for impairment of FEREREE
inventories 11,709 13,055
Lease liabilities HEARE 367 199
Net impairment losses on TREEREBEFE
financial assets 4,057 3,646
Tax losses IR B 40,800 =
Others HAth 5,582 4329
Total deferred income tax EEFMBSHEERRE
assets 567,906 481,697
Set-off of deferred income tax 1RIEHE B AR SR
liabilities pursuant to set-off FissiaE
provisions (252,718) (219,669)
Net deferred income tax assets EZLEFTSHEEFRE 315,188 262,028
TEREMRERAT FiR 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 29 EERBH(E)
(i) Deferred income tax assets (continued) (i) EEFMEHEEGE)
The following are the major deferred income tax assets TYHIEERTERELEMRSE
recognised and movements thereon: MEERHET :
Provision Net
[mpairment for impairment
of property,  impaiment [osses on
Unrealised ~ Deferred ~ plant and of lease financial Tax
Accruals ~ profits ~income equipment inventories liahilites  assets  losses  Others Total
VER SHEE
RER BEL FEWE AEKE

B MR OEEK\ REHE  BR ERRR PR BEER R &%
RMBOOD RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOD RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOX)
AEET ARETR ARETT ARMTT ARETR ARBTT ARRTT ARETR ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2021 R221E1A1H 21492 20800  3H298 61444 16062 338 3204 2,601 763 412072
Credited(charged) fo profit and  WBZEHA/ (H1)
[oss 7178 31554 7447 (45349)  (3,007) (139 312 (2601 3566 69625
At 31 December 2021 ROORLE12A31 349274 52354 42745 160% 13085 19 3,646 - 439 481697
Crectted/(charged) to profit and 5BETA/ ()
loss 72680 (26,446)  (1317) - (1,346) 168 411 40,800 1253 86209
At 31 December 2022 R02F128318  4219%0 25908 41428 1609 11,709 367 4057 40800 582 567,906
(i) Deferred income tax liabilities (i) EZEMEHAR
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
The balance comprises HEREE T EG TR
temporary differences E8
attributable to:
Accelerated tax depreciation — MIRFAIEITE (303,724) (222,450)
Fair value adjustments of BmREE AT ERAE
intangible assets (32,094) (36,203)
Total deferred income tax EEFSHAERAE
liabilities (335,818) (258,653)
Set-off of deferred income tax 1R 35 #E 5 1K S5 IR IE FT
assets pursuant to set-off BHEE
provisions 252,718 219,669
Net deferred income tax EEFEHAETHE
liabilities (83,100) (38,984)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 29 ELEFTEH(E)
(ii) Deferred income tax liahilities (continued) (i) ELEFMBHREEBEE)

The following are the major deferred income tax

TXHIERREZREMS

liabilities recognised and movements thereon: HeaEREEE :
Fair value
Accelerated adjustments of
tax intangible
depreciation assets Others Total
BREEZ
MEHERE ATVERE Hit wat
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT
At 1 January 2021 120211/ 1H (153,532) (37,351) = (190,883)
(Charged)/credited o~ RBE(FABR),FHA
profit or loss (68,918) 1,148 - (67,770)
At 31 December 2021 20214 12A31H (222,450) (36,203) = (258,653)
At 1 January 2022 M2022%1A1R (222,450) (36,203) = (258,653)
(Charged)/credited o~ RBR(FBR),FHA
profit or loss (81,274) 4,109 - (77,165)
At 31 December 2022 1202212 A31H (303,724) (32,094) = (335,818)

Pursuant to the EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China or offshore incorporated enterprises
which are regarded as Chinese Resident Enterprises
(the “CREs”). Pursuant to the approvals received by
the Company from the State Administration of Taxation
of the PRC, the Company and most of its offshore
incorporated subsidiaries are regarded as CREs and
relevant enterprise income tax policies shall be
applicable to the Company and these subsidiaries
starting from 1 January 2013. As a result, the Company
and these subsidiaries are therefore no longer liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by their
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of retained earnings generated. No deferred income
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes on the
unremitted earnings of the subsidiaries or associates
established in Mainland China at 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).

REPEEEMBHRE EH
B AL 2 SNE T E KA B
SNEMKRZ2HBEEREE
(THFEEREE]RIINERE
FEEIRBE B RERE AN
10% 2 I - REA QR E
TEBERBERBAEHL
ZAN/NCTDS S WiV 2N 311124
SH)H B R R E AT BE
R{% RB2013F1H1H &
BRBRERMETUE ALt
ZAN/NCTDESl 2ol = PN S
HERPBERMAKLZHE A
AIE AR E &M 2 IR S
BANTE R o 120224F12 A31
B ¥WARBLASEEZFBE A
R 2B AR ERTZ
oK BE < & N FE AN 75 e BB R A PR
515 (20214F « &)~

FEEmAERDE Fik 2022

24



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & 871 75 #% 2% H7 &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

30 DEFERRED INCOME 30 EZEWA
Deferred
government
grants
BB /B
RMB’000
ARETT
At 31 December 2020 202012 H31H 215,560
Addition NE 30,293
Credited to the consolidated statements of profit st A%RAEZEE
or loss (16,811)
At 31 December 2021 R2021412A31H 229,042
Addition NE 15,194
Credited to the consolidated statements of profit st A%R&EZEE
or loss (11,551)
At 31 December 2022 12022412 A318 232,685
31 DIVIDENDS 31 RE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Dividends for ordinary REERRADIRKIAA T
shareholders of the Company TmRRE RS ¢
recognised as distribution
during the year:
2021 final — HK 12.5 cents 20215 RH — R T AR
(2020: final — HK 10.6 cents in  12.5/1l1(2020% : G
respect of the year ended 31 #HZ=2020F12A318 1
December 2020) per ordinary ~ FERHARE10.67&1l)
share 297,051 248,953

R|BEPRR - EFEZFZREIE
ZF2022F 12 H31H IEF 8 72 RER

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022

CHINA FOODS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

of HK13.3 cents (2021: HK12.5 cents) per ordinary share,
in an aggregate amount of HKD372,031,000, equivalent to
approximately RMB327,275,000 (2021: HKD349,653,000,
equivalent to RMB297,051,000), has been proposed by the
Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in
the forthcoming general meeting. This proposed dividend is
not reflected as a dividend payable in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation
from retained profits for the year ended 31 December 2022.

B BT B 13.378 (20214 :
12.5781lll) - 48 % % =372,031,000/8
TT(HHE R A AR ¥327,275,0007T )
(20214 : 349,653,000/ 7T (18 E 1
AR #297,051,0007T)) B F 1 E &
REREFAG LERRIE - EES
A 75k R T Bt R RO B B T R BR 7
FEAT B B - 1B % = iR 2 B 20224
12A31 A I FERREB &M L e




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 32

(a) Cash generated from operations

BRERER

(a) REXBHEzRE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Profit before income tax: BREE A& A 1,614,448 1,422,855
Adjustments for: ATIEB fEH AR -
Depreciation of property, M B R EEITE
plant and equipment 605,621 530,649
Depreciation of right-of-use  {EREEETE
assets 67,638 63,091
Amortisation of intangible BB EEH
assets 7,807 6,486
Net impairment loss/ EEEORERE)
(reversal of impairment) A
— property, plant and o/ E Ry
equipment 579 6,034
— inventories —-FE 8,959 (7,426)
— receivables — EUR IR 3,825 2,300
Losses/(gains) on disposal of HEWE M= Kk&RiE
property, plant and B8 ()
equipment 5,290 (2,780)
Gains on disposal of assets HESFEAFTERFE
classified as held for sale BEWE - (13,420)
Share of profits of associates —JE 1k B 2 A 5% ) (29,894) (29,447)
Investment income wEUA - (150)
Bank interest income RITH EWA (18,827) (30,893)
Finance costs B E R A 3,508 4,488
Amortisation of deferred ERE 7 AR A 2 R i B
income in connection with 2 IEFEYR A Bk 5E
assets related government
grants (11,551) (16,811)
Operating cash flows before ZBAIKEEERE
movements 2,257,403 1,934,976
FEBRmBRAE FiIR 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 32

BEn&R (&)

Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) RBEXEMBRL(E)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Increase in trade receivables  FEWE ZFIHIE N (35,671) (24,331)
Decrease/(Increase) in BFERD, /(3m)
inventories 71,676 (92,737)
(Increase)/decrease in TERSRIE 1= e R EME
prepayments, deposits and Wk IE (& hn), TR
other receivables (367,239) 111,455
Increase in amounts due from BAIEMA &R FIE N
the ultimate holding
company (8) (1)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts [E—#ZEHI T2 &R
due from entities under (& m), Sm
common control (29,138) 38,165
Decrease/(increase) in FEUS BB A B) 2 FEFEAR 4
amounts due from non- T RER /(35 0)
controlling interests in
subsidiaries 83,697 (254,462)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts B2 A RI/R R (#h0),”
due from associates A (18,563) 811
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEiEIHEITFEZRD
bank deposits (£Ehn) 15,821 (18,737)
Decrease/(increase) in financial & AFETAEMEE
assets at fair value through Wz emEERD
other comprehensive income  (3&/0) 36,148 (6,643)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts &K [E—#E %I T A & 5E
due to entities under #n, CRd)
common control 112,368 (132,434)
Decrease in amounts due to  FE{FHIE A R 2 FEIEA%4E
non-controlling interests in i K R
subsidiaries (17,817) (9,418)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts KB A FIFIEE I,
due to associates CR2>) 130,648 (34,734)
Increase/(decrease) in trade ERTE S ERARER
and bills payables #hn,/ Crid) 215,088 (65,442)
(Decrease)/increase in other HMENFIEREFAE
payables and accruals (R A), /180 (305,097) 171,010
Decrease in contract liabilities & &8 &R 4 (594,297) (186,278)
Cash generated from REEBEZ RS
operations 1,555,019 1,431,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #% &

BB A 2

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

33

34

32 RERER(E)

(b) Reconciliation of liahilities arising from financing bh) MEFBELEEBZHER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRFVWWAEBRMEEFFEL
liabilities arising from financing activities, including NBEEE BFEIRS RIER
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising EH METHELANEE
from financing activities are those for which cash flows EIRESREE W AKIRER
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the ESEENAEESZEESRER
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash Ao BEARMEEZHIREREN
flows from financing activities. BE-
Lease Dividend
liabilities payables Borrowings
HEEE EARE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1H1H 90,468 40,412 20,000
Dividends declared EEIRKE = 539,511 =
Interest expense MBS H 4,340 - =
Financing cash flows MERERE (45,741) (430,319) (20,000)
New leases entered eI AE 28,168 = =
At 31 December 2021 12021412 A31H 77,235 149,604 -
Dividends declared 25 IR E = 737,509 =
Interest expense MBS H 3,508 - -
Financing cash flows MERSRE (53,103) (794,540) =
New leases entered eI HE 30,069 = =
At 31 December 2022 R2022912H31H 57,709 92,573 -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HBEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have REREHAR - A& E I [ E AL
any significant contingent liabilities. BEE-
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34 EBEAREE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Capital expenditure in respect of B E MIEHREANEFT LEE
purchase of property, plant and E{B&ARHeEE 2 WE
equipment contracted for but [RE Mkt 2 B A HE
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 62,064 236,397
FERRERAE FiIR 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

B R B A

35 BBAXRS

Apart from the transactions and balances (a) BREFEMIEHERE Mhtth 5 BT
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BEoRSREHN AEBR
statements, the Group had the following material REERNEBFEAFETZEX
transactions with related parties during the year: BT :
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBEFIT
Transactions with entities under Eﬁiﬂ ZEHIT AR
common control: R :
Sales of goods SHEE m 1,195 3,284
Purchases of goods 0% 5 i 1,624,919 1,517,507
Rental expenses e 15,876 15,868
Service fee expenses R E S H 12,555 12,866
Interest income F B HBA 12,289 9,094
Transactions with the ultimate B RER AR ZR S -
holding company:
Sales of goods Fi=k=lu 18 33
Transactions with associates: BN E) 2 R
Purchases of goods ,ﬁ\%/ﬁﬁuu 3,059,488 2,677,464
Processing services AT ARFE 197,500 171,049
Transactions with non-controlling  E2f} & A TZ#? S B
interests in subsidiaries: 25
Purchases of goods E%%f?é’ﬁu:&n 3,262,066 3,151,299
All of the above related party transactions constituted Lt B B 5 R B EAR
continuing connected transactions discloseable in & LT AR Bl AT T i B A 5 4R
accordance with the Listing Rules. EBRG o
These transactions were carried out in accordance ZERGNIEBES2HEFEH
with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the FERETE 2 AR R MR AT o
parties involved.
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of h) HAEEFBFTEESE AEB 2 RN
the Group
The remuneration of directors and other members of RAFE BEFhEMTEE
key management during the year was as follows: BAEZHMEZIMT
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RM‘B’OOO
ARET T AREET T
Short term employee benefits %2 HA{E & & F 17,757 24,485
Pension scheme contributions  #RRET B 5K 1,138 1,334
Total compensation paid to key NN TFTEEERAEZ
management personnel HREM 40 58 18,895 25,819
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EEZENEST B £ /&
emoluments are included in note 37 to the consolidated — S HBEHNG A B R E M

financial statements.
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 38 2 Hf &7
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

Balances with related parties

Balances with the ultimate holding company,
associates, entities under common control and non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries are trade related,
unsecured and interest-free.

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due from
related parties are set out in note 4.1.

The ageing of balances with related parties, presented
based on the date of the delivery of goods, was as
follows:

(c)

35 BEALXRE(E

ERERRE T VA B
HERERAR BEQAF-
it IS N = FNC]
BB EHRRE S
B BB NGRS -

BBt 2 B] R SR E RE AR BV RF 1B
XML -

REBEEmRN BHZ25 6 EE
BT RERR Z PRER AN TS -

Within 3to
3 months 12 months  Over 1 year Total
=EAE
=@AR +=@EAR BAE—F st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥ETR AR®Tr AR®TR
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12H31H
Cash and cash FERR—ZHT
equivalents deposited NG a8
in the entity under +EEEE
common control 790,000 - - 790,000
Amounts due from JRE LB 1) R IR
associates 35,482 7,135 - 42,617
Amounts due from F—#H T AR
entities under common R
control 32,851 37,345 7,738 77,934
Amounts due from B AR 2
non-controlling interests  FEIERRAERR FIA
in subsidiaries 227,267 147 - 227,414
Amounts due from the — EWRGEAIEREAA]
ultimate holding A
company - 10 - 10
Amounts due to [T & A R FB
associates (268,840) (15,871) - (284,711)
Amounts due to entities ~ RE—EHI T AF)
under common control IR (146,019) (6,786) - (152,805)
Amounts due to non- ERHB AR Z
controlling interests in IR R IR
subsidiaries (1,047) (676) - (1,723)

RERmERDR FI]K 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 &

B R B A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (continued)
The ageing of balances with related parties, presented
based on the date of the delivery of goods, was as

follows: (continued)

R

12 O 25

Hop X

35 BEMALXRZ(HE)

(c) EREARETT KA ER (AR)
NEHZ5AEE

s s RR Z BRIRIN T - ()

Within 3 to
3 months 12 months  QOver 1 year Total
—f@R=
=@AR" +=@EAR BiR—F fBET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETRT ARBTT ARETT
At 31 December 2021 ®20214%12831H
Cash and cash FERRE—ZEHTA
equivalents deposited AlzRekBAEE
in the entity under =R
common control 790,000 - - 790,000
Amounts due from JIE it Bst & A B 2B
associates 24,054 - - 24,054
Amounts due from Gt VAEIYSE
entities under common
control 37,389 6,604 4,803 48,796
Amounts due from e B AR
non-controlling interests  FEHEEARIE S 1A
in subsidiaries 310,813 298 - 311,111
Amounts due from W R AR AR A 7]
the ultimate holding HIE
company - 2 - 2
Amounts due to JE (T & A B RUE
associates (154,053) (10) = (154,063)
Amounts due to entities ~ RE—ZEH T A A
under common control A (40,405) (32) = (40,437)
Amounts due to non- ERIBARZ
controlling interests in IR R TR
subsidiaries (18,854) (686) = (19,540)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Transactions and balances with other State-owned
Enterprises

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government through
its numerous authorities, affiliates or other organisations
(collectively “State-owned Enterprises”). During the
year, the Group entered into extensive transactions
covering, but not limited to, sales of goods, purchases
of raw materials, property, plant and equipment and
other assets, and receiving of services with certain
State-owned Enterprises, other than COFCO Corporation
and its affiliates, on terms comparable to those with
non-State-owned Enterprises. The Directors consider
that transactions with those State-owned Enterprises
were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group, and that dealings of the Group
have not been significantly or unduly affected by the
fact that the Group and those State-owned Enterprises
are ultimately controlled or owned by the PRC
government. The Group has also established pricing
policies for products and services, and such policies
do not depend on whether or not the customers are
State-owned Enterprises.

35 BEALXRE(E

(d)

BREMRALENRZ RER

AREELNKBERREFHE
ERZ/TBERFBRBERS
WE - BEREIEMARE
BRI ER JIEHI R B (5
BIEBEER] ANFEAKH
HRLEAPRETHERZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & B 75 #8 2% B7 aF
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F 12 A31H It F[&

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36 ARDQFHBEARRE
COMPANY
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% B K& 2 5
Right-of-use assets FREEE 851 =
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR 2 %E 1,769,560 1,769,560
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 1,770,413 1,769,565
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FBSFIA 7% K H At

receivables e ZR I8 30,534 18,542
Trade receivables U E 55108 2 2
Amounts due from subsidiaries B A 7R ZK (K 5F)

(Note) 1,334,162 1,347,373
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEER 11,463 10,355
Total current assets REEELE 1,376,161 1,376,272
Total assets BEMALE 3,146,574 3,145,837
Non-current Liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEEE 49 =
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEEE 49 =
Current liahilities REEE
Other payables and accruals B IENEEE 1,764 1,695
Amounts due to subsidiaries KRBT JE R B FIA (KIEE)

(Note) 94,470 187,552
Current income tax liabilities BNEAF S B & 5,048 5,057
Lease liabilities HERE 802 =
Total current liahilities REEEHEE 102,084 194,304
Total liabilities BEAE 102,133 194,304
Net assets FEE 3,044,441 2,951,533
Equity =
Share capital A% 7R 293,201 293,201
Share premium and reserves f&19 i (8 & k1 2,751,240 2,658,332
Total equity EREE 3,044,441 2,951,533

Note: Balances with subsidiaries are trade related, unsecured and

interest-free.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 75 #8 2< /T it
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36 AQTHMBEMRARK(E)
COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s share premium and reserves: NARIRDHEE R FEEEEOT -
Share
premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
% 13 B AR BABER R & st

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRE

At 1 January 2021 MW2021F1A1H 30,820 2,294,331 436,704 2,761,855
Profit for the year E ARG T - = 145,430 145,430
2020 final dividend declared B 5 &k20205 & Hif% 2 = - (248,953) (248,953)
At 31 December 2021 M2021%12A31H 30,820 2,294 331 333,181 2,658,332
Profit for the year F R F) = = 389,959 389,959
2021 final dividend declared B2 EE2021E KL S = - (297,051) (297,051)
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31H 30,820 2,294,331 426,089 2,751,240

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 37 EERSHRITHAEME
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remunerations for the year, RIEER LR RATHERIHE 2
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and REEEZRSRITHA BB E
Companies Ordinance, is as follows: (I N
(a) Executive Directors (a) B|ITE=E
Mr. Mr. Mr.
Qing Lijun Shen Xinwen' Shen Peng? Total
BIERE XKL MR 4?2 Mt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARBTR AR%®TR ARETR

2022 20224
Wages and salaries I&KkEHS 917 150 538 1,605
Discretionary bonuses — BIHIEAT 3,083 788 2,088 5,959
Allowances and AR E Y Fz=

benefits in kind 6 12 27 45
Employer’s contribution {&=EFERAREFFTE

to a retirement 2R

benefit scheme 257 55 161 473

4,263 1,005 2,814 8,082

h
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & A1 7% #8 % I i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

37 ESRERITHAENE

(&)

(a HMTEZ=E)

Mr. Mr. Mr.
Qing Lijun Shen Xinwen!  Shen Peng? Total
BYERLE LI E! LR A2 HBET
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETE ARETRT
2021 20214
Wages and salaries I&ENEHS 1,000 = 750 1,750
Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAL 4,247 = 3,102 7,349
Allowances and benefits 8L R E ¥z
in kind 6 = 44 50
Employer's contribution to {& 3£ &t iR K78 FilET 2
a retirement benefit PN
scheme 269 - 229 498
5,622 - 4,125 9,647

e Mr. Shen Xinwen has been appointed as a executive
director of the Company with effect from 29 September

2022.

2 Mr. Shen Peng has been resigned as a executive
director of the Company with effect from 23 September

2022.

The executive director’'s emoluments shown above

were for their services in connection with

the

management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & A1 7% # 2 i1 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412 318 IEFE

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 37 EERSHTITHAEME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
(b) Non-Executive Directors (b) FHITEE
Mr. Mr. Ms. M.
Chen Lang'  Chen Gang? Xiao Jianping® Chen Zhigang Total
PBREAE A BREItE? HEYZLE® RBERLE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETR
2022 20224 - = = = =
2021 20214 - = = = =
1 Mr. Chen Lang resigned as a non-executive director i PR BA 7t 4 B BEE A A Bl FEH
of the Company with effect from 29 September 2022. 17 % B H202249H29H
HBAED
2 Mr. Chen Gang has been appointed as a non-executive 2 FRA R E AR QR
director of the Company with effect from 25 August MITE S B2021948A25
2021. HitBAER -
3 Ms. Xiao Jianping resigned as a non-executive director 3 HEF X TgERRNTIEH
of the Company with effect from 24 August 2021. 172 £ B20219F8H24H
HBAERK o
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above FMIERTEETME RREE
were for their services as directors of the Company. RARNTEERERBE M
2% o
(c) Independent Non-executive Directors () BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNENBIIERITEEZ
during the year were as follows: HWEEHNOT -
Mr. Mr. Mr. Ms.
Stephen Li Hung Kwan, Mok Wai Bun, Leung Ka Lai,
Edward Clark' Alfred Ben Ada? Total
wusksE
(Mr. Stephen
Edward Clark)! ZB#%4E EFHELE RRBaL? @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT AR%®ETT AR®ETT AR%Tn
2022 20226
Fees we 141 339 339 199 1,018
2021 20214
Fees e 303 303 303 - 909

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 7 June 2022.

Ms. Leung Ka Lai has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 7 June 2022.

. T X = & A (Mr. Stephen
Edward Clark)BH{EAR R
SOIEHAITE F 0 B2022F6
A7BARK -

2 ARELLEZTALADNF
B IEHITE S 520224
6A7REAR

FEEmAERDE Fik 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & A1 7% # 25 i1 i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022F 12 A31H ILF[E

37 DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c) Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of

the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year. There was no
compensation for the loss of office as a director in
connection with the management of the affairs of any

member of the Group.

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled
to bonus payments which are determined in relation
to revenue growth, profit, market share, and quality

measures.

38 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 15 July 2022, COFCO Beverages (CCBMH) Limited
(“CBL", an indirectly 65%-owned subsidiary of the Company),
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing Holdings Limited
(“CCBMH") and other relevant parties entered into a master
agreement, pursuant to which it has been conditionally
agreed that CBL shall procure the COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages (China) Investment Limited (“CBL Purchaser”,
another indirectly 65%-owned subsidiary of the Company)
to purchase from CCBMH, and CCBMH shall sell to the
CBL Purchaser, the equity interests in several associates
(Note 13) with an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB544,396,000. The above transaction was completed in
early 2023, the Company was in the process of evaluating

related financial impacts.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFHBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AEBREAEVBRFERECEEREE B
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, EEIEEREREENEEEE T 2K
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial G BHRE  WKEY REEEFD
statements and restated and reclassified as appropriate, is set out - BEANREA TN :

below:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A310LLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARKTT AR%Tn

CONTINUING OPERATION FERERY

Revenue WA 20,967,837 19,784,422 17,249,138 17,172,027 15,648,051
PROFIT FROM OPERATING FS—yea

ACTIVITIES 1,588,062 1,397,896 1,242,675 1,025,202 768,822
Finance costs AERKA (3,508) (4,488) (25,059) (53,626) (74,835)
Share of net profit of FREREARZ

associates accounted for FE {8 & 2 )% Al

using the equity method 29,894 29,447 35,602 41,033 44,168
Profit before income tax BRER A A1 1,614,448 1,422,855 1,253,218 1,012,609 738,155
Income tax expense Frisfi s i (404,022) (348,172) (299,955) (236,773) (161,790)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM #ELE XK

THE CONTINUING FERRF

OPEARATION 1,210,426 1,074,683 953,263 775,836 576,365

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 4R Ib#&8& %5
Profit from discontinued ¥ ST v

operations 5 7 - = = = =
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERER 1,210,426 1,074,683 953,263 775,836 576,365
Attributable to FEfL7

Owners of the Company ANEHEEA 659,836 572,415 498,734 417,789 320,858

Non-controlling interests RS 550,590 502,268 454,529 358,047 255,507

1,210,426 1,074,683 953,263 775,836 576,365

ASSETS, LIABLITIES AND EE -8R

NON-CONTROLLING FERER

INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 15,062,955 15,168,064 15,110,192 14,448 364 13,288,450
TOTAL LIABITIES “aaE (6,200,743) (6,778,769) (7,030,972) (7,136,009) (6,575,014)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JFiZfR#Es (3,341,996) (3,231,864) (3,125,299) (2,771,888) (2,494,524)

5,520,216 5,157,431 4,953,921 4,540,467 4218912
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AR EF

DIRECTORS

Chairman and Executive Director
Mr. Qing Lijun (Managing Director)

Executive Director
Mr. Shen Xinwen

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Zhigang
Mr. Chen Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben

Ms. Leung Ka Lai, Ada, SBS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben
Ms. Leung Ka Lai, Ada, SBS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Ms. Leung Ka Lai, Ada, SBS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Qing Lijun (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Shen Xinwen (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Chen Zhigang

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Qing Lijun (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Shen Xinwen
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda
SOLICITORS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman
AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers
PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

33/F., COFCO Tower
262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Progressive Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinafoodsltd.com
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
B % B

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL RESULTS

Wednesday, 29 March 2023

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting: Thursday, 1 June 2023 to Tuesday,
6 June 2023 (both days inclusive)

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed

final dividend: Thursday, 15 June 2023 to Friday, 16 June 2023
(both days inclusive)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Tuesday, 6 June 2023
DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend: NIL

Proposed final dividend: RMBO0.117, equivalent to HK13.3 cents
per share (Payable on or around Friday, 7 July 2023)
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COFCO

BRZIR SR

33rd Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

EB S S LITE2625: T8 K B33

Tel 5% (852) 2833 0388
Fax {E (852) 2833 0380

www.chinafoodslitd.com
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